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INTRODUCTION

Advise. Inform. Connect.

Qur vision

We will he the 'go to' company in the international Marketing Services and

Legal sectors to:

* Provide advice to businesses on how to improve their performance and ROL

» Inform customers using data. content & insight with the provision of business
intelligence products; and

e Connect specific communities through media and events.

We will provide cutting-edge insight and analysis. building strong and lasting

relationships with our customars and aiming to defiver long-term sustanable
returns 10 our shareholders.

Cur business

Certaur is an international pravider of busingss informalion and specialist
conrsLitancy that inspires and enabes people to excel at what they do within
the marketing and legal professions, Our Xeim and The Lawyer business units
serve the marketing and legal sectors respectively and, acrass bath, we offer
our customers a wide range of products and senvices targeted al helping them
add value.

Qur rgputation is based on the lrust and confidence arising from a deep
understanding of these sectors and we have developed a strong track record
for providing insight, content and data. Our key sirengths are the expertise of
aur people, the quality of cur brands and praducts, and our ability to harness
technology to innovate continually and develop our offering. This enables us to
help our customers raise their aspirations and deliver better performance.

Qur brands

Xe!xcenllnce in marketing : THE LAWYER
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N HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Centaur concluded a radical transformation programme to reshape the Group into a much simpler business focused on two
sectors: the marketing and legal professions.

We successfully completed the divestments of our non-core legacy businesses in financial services, human resources,
business travel and meetings, and engineering for a gross consideration of £21.75m.

The Group now consists of Xeim, the new name given to cur marketing businesses at the beginning of last year, and The
Lawyer.

The simplification enables the Group to focus on growth, capitalise on synergies and deliver shareholder value.

As we look towards Centaur’s next stage of development, we announced our Margin Acceleration Plan 2022, MAP22. This is
our three-year plan to improve EBITDA margins to at least 20% by 2022 through a combination of profitable revenue growth
and operating cost efficiencies.

The formation of Xeim enabled significant cost reduction during 2019, as duplicate brand management and processes were
eliminated. Additionally, the simplification of the Group facilitated the reduction of central overhead costs by £5m on an
annualised basis. The benefits of this will be seen in 2020.

Xeim focused on growing its profitable revenue and rationalised its portfolio of low margin/loss making businesses, delivering
a considerably enhanced margin.

Influencer Intelligence continued to develop its international offering to remain at the forefront of the fast-growing influencer
marketing sector;

Marketing Week launched a digital subscription platform and redesigned website; and
We built on the success of the Mini-MBA programme and launched a new marketing brand course.

The Lawyer continued its growth through the successful launch of the Litigation Tracker and the Marketing Leadership Summit
event was a successful addition te The Lawyer's events porifolio.

T

The Group reported an adjusted® operating loss in 2019 of £1.1m (2018: a loss of £2.2m)}. On a statutory basis the Group
made an operating loss in 2019 of £8.4m (2018: a loss of £20.3m). The Group’s performance improved during the year with the
benefit of trading seascnality and initial cost savings from the Group's simplification.

Xeim and The Lawyer combined have increased adjusted EBITDA' by 21% due to cost savings in Xeim and revenue growth in
The Lawyer.

A final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share is proposed, which, together with the interim ordinary and special dividends of 3.5p
per share, gives a total of £5.7m (4.0p per share} paid out as dividends relating to 2019,

From 1 January 2020, Centaur has adopted a new progressive dividend policy targeting a pay-out ratio of 40% of adjusted
earnings, subject to a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share.

' See financial performance review for explanation of adijusted resuits and alternative performance measures
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“In September, the
Board faunched
MAPZ22, its strategy
for driving revenue
growth and improving
EBITDA margins to at
least 20% by 2022”7

COLIN JONES
Chair

Annual Report and Financial Statements *= * <

s onded 31 Docemae 2018

W CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

2019 was a year of significant
transformation for Centaur. The Group
started the year with a clear strategy o
simplify its structure through business
divestments, eliminating central costs
and repositioning the Group to focus
on two sectors. the marketing and
legal professions. where it has leading
brands and competitive advantage.

The Board is pleased with the progress
Centaur has macde against this strategy
and it enters the new financial year well
positioned for its next stage of development
under its Margin Acceleration Plan 2022
{MAP22).

Strategy

During the first half of the year the Board
focussed on the divestment of its smaller,
non-core businesses. These divestments
were completed guickly and successfully,
generating gross proceeds (before costs
and working capital adjustments) of nearly
£22m and a profit on disposal of £7.8m.
The use of these proceeds is set out below,

Centaur also received a number of offers for
The Lawyer, but the Board determined that
retaining this business was a more attractive
option and offered greater opportunity to
create value for shareholders. This decisian
has been vindicated by the strong financial
performance of The Lawyer throughout
2019.

The divestments were the trigger for a
significant restructuring and simplification of
the Group during the second half. Central
functions were reorganised, low margin or
unprofitable products were eliminated, and
annualised cost savings of £56m had been
delivered by the end of the year.

Centaur's management is now focussed
on growing its two remaining business
units — Xeim, which brings together the
Group's marketing brands, and The
Lawyer, the leading business information
brand for the legal profession. Both offer
scalable digital products and services in
global marketplaces that are undergoing
disruption.

In Septembaer, the Board launched MAPZ22,
its strategy for driving revenue growth and
improving EBITDA margins to at least 20%
by 2022. The immediate focus for 2020 is to
develop the two business units, increasing
and broadening their client bases, investing
to expand their product offerings, driving
further operating efficiencies and continuing
to develop new subscription-based digital
capabilities.

Group performance

In 2019, Centaur achieved Group revenues
of £48.9m, an adjusted operating loss

of £1.1m and a statutory operating

loss of £8.4m, but these results do nat
fully reflect the impact and timing of the
strategic initiatives taken 1o restructure the
portfolio and simplify the Group. Although
the disposals were completed by the
summer, they were followed by a pericd of
transitional services provided to the various
buyers which meant that most of the cost
reductions arising from the simplification of
the Group could not be implemented until
the final quarter. The full benefit of these
savings will be seen in 2020.

Underlying revenues for the Group (after
adjusting for businesses sold and closed)
fell by 2%. A strong performance from

The Lawyer, up 9%, was offset by a 4%
decling in Xeim revenues. The results from
The Lawyer were particularly pleasing given
the distractions of the sale process in the
first half, and it also improved its adjusted
operating margin. The Xeim portfolio
continues to face challenges, particularly

in its MarketMakers business, and the
revenue performance was mixed. However,
the benefits from the strategy of focusing
on profitable revenue can be seen in the
improvement in its adjusted operating
margin from 8% to 10%. Swag Mukeriji
discusses trading performance in more
detail in his review beginning on page 8.
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Governance and people

I joined Centaur's board in September 2018
and succeeded Neil Johnson as Chairman
in July 2019. Neil played an important

role in the strategic review that led to qur
divestment programme and the dramatic
simplification of the Group that followed.

Cn behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Neil for his vaiuable contribution to
Centaur’s strategic development.

Since | became Chairman, the Beard has
taken a number of key decisions regarding
Centaur’s strategy, management and
dividend policy. Those decisions have

given me the cpportunity to consult with our
shareholders on multiple cccasions and |
thank them far their suppert. We are also
pleased to have welcomed a number of new
shareholders to the register.

in September, we said gocdbye to Andria
Vidler as CEO after six years spent driving
Centaur's transition from a traditional print
publisher to a digitai provider cf insight,
content and data. The Board would

like to thank Andria for her Lunwavering
enthusiasm, commitment and leadership
during this time. | was delighted that Swag
agreed to replace Andria as CEQ. Swag has
an in-depth understanding of Centaur and,
as the orchestrater of the MAP22 strategy,
was the ideal candidate to guide Centaur
through its next stage of development.

Simon Longfield succeeded Swag as
Centaur's new CFO in November 2018.
Having spent ten years as CFO of BMI
Research, Simon's extensive financial
experience and understanding of B2B
information rmarkets will be valuable assets.

| am also pleased to welcome Carol Hosey
and Leslie-Ann Reed as new independent
Non-Executive Directors. Carol will
succeed me as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and brings with her over 20
years of experience in senicr HR and
remuneration roles. Leslie-Ann Reed,

an experienced Non-Executive Director
who has spent over 25 years in financial
management, will become Chair of the Audit
Committee in succession to Robert Boyle.
Robert and Rebecca Miskin will retire as
Non-Executive Directors on 31 March 2020
and the Board recognises their valuable
contribution over the last decade.

Centaur prides itself on being a business
that operates with integrity, transparency
and accountability, and the Board remains
committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance. More detail on our
governance policies are set out on pages
37 to 40. Our Section 172 Statement on
pages 27 10 28 also highlights the significant
progress made in developing Centaur’s
values and culture and in particular ensuring
that diversity, inclusion and environmental
ambitions are areas of focus across all parts
of the Group.

Since joining Centaur, | have been greatly
impressed by the energy, hard work and
good humour our employees have exhibited
during a period of significant change and |
would ke to thank them for their dedication
- | know it has not always been easy.

QOur people are our primary asset and our
success is built on the back of their efforts
and commitment.

Capital allocation and
dividend

The divestments during 2019 provided the
trigger for the Board to review Centaur's
dividend policy. After discussions with
shareholders, in September the Board
announced a new progressive dividend
policy, to apply from 2020, with a target
pay-out ratio of 40% of earnings subject to
a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share. This
reflects the smaller size of the Group and
the desire for a more sustainable distribution
to shareholders which grows in ling with
earnings. Pursuant to this policy, the Board
is recommending a final ordinary dividend
of 0.5p per share, equivalent to £0.7m,
payable in May 2020.

The interim dividend of £5m paid in Ogctober
2019 was largely funded from the proceeds
of the business divestments, including the
special dividend. The Board was intending
to propose the payment of another special
dividend in May 2020, but has decided

to defer this decision until there is more
visibility around the impact of coronavirus on
the Group's cash flows.

STRATEG C REPORT

Outlook

Training and avents provide an important
revenue stream for Centaur and, not
surprisingly, the Group has recently started
0 see customers delay decisions arcund
event attendance. At this stage Centaur
expects 1o postpone a number of second
quarter events until later in the year but, until
there is more certainty around the timing
and impact of coronavirus, it is impossible
to provide guidance arcund the full year
results,

The Groug has a stronger balance sheet,
including cash of £9.3m at the end of 2019,
and trading in January and February was in
ling with the Board's expectations. Global
health concerns apart, Centaur has begun
2020 as a far simpler and more focused
Group, with new energy to address the
many opportunities we see in our markets.
We will continue to develop strong, recurring
revenue streams, invest in new digital
products to grow our customer base, and
capitalise on the synergies of our simplified
portfolic as we progress toward our MAP22
objectives,

COLIN JONES
Chair

17 March 2020
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Centaur is an international provider of
business information and specialist
consultancy, From our origins as an
advertising-supported trade publisher.
the Group has evolved rapidly in recent
years as we have moved to focus

on the paid prowvision of business
intefligence, consultancy, traning,
events and lead generation, building
on the reputation and trust established
from our history in providing highly
valued thought-leading content.

Annual Report and Financial Statements 7o tae paar 2odod 3T S oo e

At the end of 2018 and following a

strategic review, Centaur initiated a radical
transformation programme to concentrate
our efforts on two attractive sectors: the
marketing and legal professions. These
large, international and growing industries
are facing considerable competitive and
technological disruption, creating demand
for the intelligence, insight and expertise that
our businesses offer.

In order to create this more focused group,
Centaur began a far-reaching programme
to divest our smaller and ex-growth
businesses in financial services, human
resources, business travel and meetings
and engineering. During 2019, we disposed
of 21 of our 28 brands, raising net cash

of £16.4m and establishing the platform

to drive margin enhancement through
profitable revenue growth and margin and
cost synergies.

S 209

Centaur now has strong, well-established
brands that have been serving these sectors
for decades — brands such as Marketing
Week, Econsultancy and The Lawyer. We
continue to evolve these brands and have
developed a track record for innovation,
generating revenue from new products

and services that our customers need

to respond to the rapid changes in their
sectars. This has allowed Centaur to
develop strong and continuing relationships
with many large international enterprises.

= Read more about The Festival of
Marketing on page 10
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The completion of our divestment programme in July 2019 allowed us to set
dbioul byin THe griundwork 1o the néxt stage of Centaur's development.
The centrepiece of this is our Margin Acceleration Plan 2022 (MAPZ22), 4
three-year plan to improve margins, targeting an EBITDA margin of at least
20% by 2022,

Three-year plan to improve EBITDA margins, targeting at least 20% by 2022




Centaur Media Plc Annual Report and Financial Statements ‘o 1o yae < ndod 31 Dogemse: 2019

N STRATEGY

A new Centaur
The new Centaur is a much simpler business consisting of Xeim, the new name adopted by
our marketing business at the beginning of last year, and The Lawyer. This has allowed us
to streamline management, improve efficiency, eliminate silos and reduce complexity within
the Group, a process which has allowed for a significant reduction in business unit costs and
central overheads.
The simplification has enabied us to have a clear focus on the reporting of the Group’s
revenue categories. We interact with customers by using the power of our brands and
generate different types of revenue streams. This creates both cross-selling opportunities and
operational synergies, whilst also giving visibility of how the Group’s revenues are derived.
From 2019 onwards, we will report revenue for Xeim and The Lawyer under the following
categories:
- Premium content comprising subscription-driven paid content services;
Marketing services through campaign management and marketing automation;
»  Training and advisory from marketing consultancy, digital learning programmes and face-
to-face training;
» Events including sponsorship and delegate revenue from conferences, awards and large-
scale events;
Marketing and advertising solutions including digital advertising, display and bespoke
client campaigns together with sector focused job advertisements; and
- Telemarksting services comprising lead generation and data services.

The chart below shows which brands derive revenue from each category:

Training Marketing and
Premium  Marketing and Advertising Telemarketing
Content  Services ﬁqvisory Events Solutions Ser\.'iggsw‘

Econsultancy {inc.
Oystercatchers)

Influencer Intelligence
and Fashion &
Beauty Monitor

Marketing Weok
inc. Mini-MBA)

Festival of Marketing

Creative Review
/Design Week

Really and
MarketMakers

The Lawyer

The Board believes Centaur's transformation has helped improve the quality of the Group's
ravenue streams. The developments in both Xeim'’s brands and The Lawyer mean that 62%
of our underlying revenue (2018: 56%) arose from repeatable and recurring sources, whereas
only 14% of revenue came from marketing and advertising solutions. The strength of product
innovation is reflected by the fact that £5,.5m of revenue, or more than 11%, was generated
from new revenue streams created since 2015, excluding acquisitions.

J
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Premium CGontent
Marketing Services
Training and Advisory

* & @& ¢

Events
- Marketing and Aavertising Solutions

S

® Telemarketing Services

Ll
Xel m

Excellence in marketing
Xeim takes its name from excelience in
marketing and its purpose is to accelerate
performance for marketers. The Xeim
pertfolio brings together the Group's
marketing brands to deliver business
information and specialist consultancy
to the marketing sector. it achieves this
by providing the advice, intelligence and
connections that marketers need to set
themselves apart from their peers. Our
market-leading brands and industry experts
orovide insight, analysis and proprietorial
content, attracting cver six million digital
contact points every month.

Xeim includes the foliowing brands:

+  Influencer Inteligence — A leading
source of intelligence for brands and
marketers on influencers and celebrities
and their digital reach. It is at the
forefront of the fast-growing influencer
marketing sector with plans for further
international expansion during 2020;

Econsultancy — The authoritative guide
to marketing best practice, and a
leading provider of training and research
in digital marketing transformation.
Strengthened through the addition of
Oystercatchers, the specialist agency-
focussed consuitancy Centaur acquired
in 2016, with its skills in pitch partnering
and iis senior networking club;

+  Festival of Marketing — An annual
learning and networking event that
has become the largest giobal event
dedicated to brand marketers,
which underpinned its strong margin
performance in 2019;

> Marketing Week — For over 40 years,
the most influential scurce of marketing
informaticn in the UK. During 2018,
Marketing Week launched its digital
subscription service and redesigned its
website to make it easier to find news,
insight and opinion;

»  Mini-MBA, — As part of Xeim’s eLearning
development, the strength of Marketing
Week’s brand has enabled Xeim to
create its fast-growing programme,
which has attracted over 5,500
marketers and professionals since its
launch in 2016. A new marketing brand
course, available to Mini-MBA alumni,
was introduced in September
2019, and
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THE INSIGHT’S
IN THE DATA
SEE THE BIGGER

PICTURE

Turning case reports
into actionabie market
intelligence.

Welcome to the new Litigation Tracker.

S:nce 2005, The rackod cwery Col

s and all judements o 15 UK migis courls

Now this comprehensive, aggregated data is available to you to search, chart
and download via our Hew shline portal, delivering timely and targeted insight.

THE LAWYER

Litigation Tracker

+  MarketMakers — The UK's number cne
B2B telemarketing agency, the industry
leaders in lead generation. This brand
includes Really, the award-winning
marketing services business that
delivers creative campaigns to drive its
clients’ return on marketing investment.

By bringing these brands together under
the Xeim umbrella, we have been able to
capitalise on their synergies, manage the
brands more effectively, and cross-sell to
our clients a broader range of services in an
integrated and coordinated manner.

Subscribe today for exclusive access.
Visit thelawyer.com/litigation-tracker

Xeim's immediate priorities include
capitalising on the success of Influencer
Inteligence and expanding digital learning
revenues across Marketing Week and
Econsultancy. At the same time, the Board
is focussed on addressing the margin drag
from MarketMakers and recently hired an
experienced managing director to refocus
this business.

THE LAWYER

in The Lawyer, Centaur owns the most
trusted brand for the UK legal profession

STRATEGIC REPORT

and a leading provider of intelligence tc the
global legal market, delivered via a scalable
digital platform. The Lawyer has built on

its heritage and reputation for providing
incisive analysis of the UK legal market to
develop a much more international business
providing market intelligence to the worid's
largest law firms. The Lawyer now has

over 300 corporate clients, a 12% increase
since 2018. 90% of the top 50 UK and top
50 US law firms in London are corporate
subscribers.

The award-winning editorial team publishes
a series of market reports to help leading
firms benchmark themselves against their
peers. This is part of a strategy that, over
the past five years, has grown paid premium
content revenues that are more than 40% of
the total for the business unit.

During 2019, The Lawyer continued its
growth through the launch of Litigation
Tracker, a digital product that offers near
real-time insight into the LK litigation
market.

Events are another important source of
revenue, with the Marketing Leadership
Summit a successful addition in 2019 to our
portfolio.

After a strong 2019 performance, the
business is poised for centinued growth in
an attractive market. The Lawyer's strategic
priorities include building subscription
revenues, deepening customer relationships

Next steps

in 2020, our focus is operational
execution. We aim to become the “go
10" company in international marketing
services and the legal sectors to:

businesses on how to
improve their performance and
RO

> 'rionm customers using data,
content and insight with the
provision of business intelligence
products; and

»Zoniee specific communities
through media and events.

Qur key priority for 2020 is to grow

our EBITDA margin through profitable

revenug growth, creating a high-

performance sales operation, driving

subscription products and maintaining

control over Group overheads following

the cost reduction programme.

P
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“2019 marked the start
of a new chapter in
Centaur’s evolution.
As described in the
strategy section,
the completion
of our divestment
programme has made
Centaur a much
simpler business”

SWAG MUKERJI
Chigf Executive

N PERFORMANCE:

Overview of 2019

I am pleased to deliver my first report
to you as Centaur's CEQ, having
succeeded Andria Vidler in September.
Having worked closely with Andria
since joining Centaur as CFO in 2016,
I have a thorough understanding of
how the Group has undergone a
profound transformation in recent years
and have sat the MAP22 strateqy
geing forward. | would like to thank
Andria for her considerable guidance
and support over the last few years.

2019 marked the start of a new chapter

in Centaur's evolution. As described in the
strategy section, the completion of our
divestment programme has made Centaur
a much simpler business.

These divestments were compieted shortly
before Centaur moved into attractive
maodern ¢ffices close to London’s Waterloo
station. Our new home was designed to
foster collaboration, with 270 employees
on a single floor, and | think | speak for all
employees in saying that the move has
injected fresh energy and mementum into
our businesses.

The move is one example of how Centaur’s
simpier structure has unlockad important
benefits and efficiencies. Through the
elimination of costs needed to support

the businesses sold last year and other
measures, the Group has reduced
annualised central overheads by the end of
2019 by £5m, as promised, and the full year
effect of this will be seen in 2020.

Results for the year

2019 was a complex year for Centaur

with many moving parts and the reporting
requirements make it difficutt to clearly
articuiate what has fundamentally happened
to the Group. We earned profits from the
disposed businesses until the day they were
sold, and this is reported under discontinued
operations. During this period, we maintained
the full central overhead functions required to
support these businesses and this is shown
in continuing operations. Once they were
sold, we continued to provide services to
these businesses generating income for the
Group from Transitional Service Agreements
(TSA), the last of which expired at the end

of 20138. We therefore could not eliminate a
proportion of the overhead costs immediately
after the disposal, atthough they were
removed by the end of 2019 and will defiver
the £5m annualised benefit in 2020.

While both Xeim and The Lawyer grew
their profits in 2019, the impact of the
higher central overhead resulted in Centaur
achieving an adjusted operating loss of
£1.1m and a statutory operating loss of
£8.4m on revenues of £48.9m. Group
adjusted EBITDA' margin has grown

from 3% to 5%. 't should be noted that
the seasonal trading pattern of the new
simplified group will result in the majority of
profits arising in the last quarter of the year.

Centaur ended the year with £9.3m of
cash (2018: £0.1m}, having received net
proceeds of £16.4m from the businesses
sold during the year.

Details of the trading performance are
contained within the Operational Review of
my report beginning on page 9.

The divestments encompassed the sale

of our financial services division, including
titles such as Money Marketing, Mortgage
Strategy, Platforum, Taxbriefs and Headline
Money to Metropolis Group. Centaur Media
Travel and Meetings Ltd, the owner of the
Business Travel Show and The Mestings
Show, was sold to Narthstar Travel Media
UK Limited. Centaur Human Resources
Limited, which includes Employee Benefits,
was acquired by DVV Media International
and our engineering tities, including the
Engineer and Subcon, were sold 1o Mark
Allen Group.

Dividend

The reshaping of the Group was a catalyst
for the Beard to review its dividend policy,
having distributed mere than 100% of
cumulative earnings to shareholders over
the previous three years. In September,

we announced a new progressive dividend
policy which targets a pay-out ratio of 40%
of adjusted sarnings, or 1.0p per share,
whichever is the higher. This came into force
on 1 January 2020.

We also announced a distribution of £5.0m,
comprising an interim dividend of 1.5p per
share and a special dividend of 2.0p per
share, paid in Octeber 2019, Under the
new dividend policy, we will now pay a final
ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share in May
2020. Dividends to shareholders, ordinary
and special, relating to 2019 therefere total
£5.7m (4.0p per ordinary share).

We had planned to pay a further special
dividend alongside our crdinary dividend in
May. However, we have decided to defer
this degcision until there is more visibility
around the impact of coronavirus on the
Group's cash flows.

' Excluging the impact of IFRS 16 order to show a
comparison to 2018
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Operational review

Centaur now comprises two business units,
Xeim and The Lawyer. Xeim is Centaur's
largest business and contributes 83% of
Group revenues, with The Lawyer making
up the halance. Each business unit is run
on a stand-alone basis with dedicated
management teams. As explained above,
the 2019 central overhead did not reflect
the simplified group and going forward,

in 2020, there is a lean central function,
primarily focused upon external governance
and reporting, following the £5m overhead
saving.

L]
xelm

Excellence in marketing
Xeim was formed in early 2019 ang brings
our marketing brands into a single business
unit, allowing us to manage them more
effectively, cross-sell our products more
efficiently, eliminate duplication of effort and
enhance their margins.

In 2019, Xeim delivered a turnover of
£40.7m, a 4% decrease from the previous
year as a result of management action to
reduce low margin and loss-making revenue
streams such as Marketing Week Live,
together with disappeinting performances
from MarketMakers and some parts of
Econsultancy.

Xeim also identified further opportunities to
eliminate costs and improve our operational
efficiency. As a resuft, Xeim increased its
adjusted EBITDA margin from 12% to

15%, achieving a business unit adjusted
EBITDA of £6.3m, which represents &
pleasing growth of 24% from the prior year.
This growth was driven by the introduction
of new products such as the Mini-MBA
Brand course, growth in brand margins
and eliminating duplicate costs in the brand
rmanagement structures.

As discussed earlier, we interact with
custormers by using the power of our brands
and generate different types of revenues
from this. This creates both cross-selling
opportunities and operational synergies

and Xeim'’s customer centric strategy is
achieving success with its largest customers
as we create more tailored solutions and
integrated services across multiple brands.
Qur Top 50 customers in 2019 renewed
contracts on terms that were 35% higher
than the prior year reflecting the value
created from the additional services that

we delivered. This reflects the new Xeim
operational structure which successfully
cross-sold a wider portfolio of Xeim's
products and services and therefore
increased the average value sold to each
customer.

STRATEGIC REPORT

In Xeim, Premium Content revenues are
generated, in the main, from our Influencer
Intelligence and Ecensultancy brands.
Creative Review has been successfully

put behind a paywall and the recent move
of Marketing Week to a digital platform,
incorporating a paywall, is showing good
early signs.

The globa! influencer marketing market,
currently worth an estimated US$5.5bn,

is projected to grow to US$22.3bn by
2024 {source: MarketsandMarkets 2019).
Influencer Intelligence, our market leading
source of trusted information and analytics
for brands seeking to harness the power
of global influencers, continued to perform
well, with revenue increasing 11% in 2019.

This underpins our growth strategy in

a dynamic sector and is one of our key
subscription revenue growth drivers for
MAP22. in 2020, we are adding c.100k
international influencers to our content

and making significant improvement to our
products such as extended analytics on
new social media networks, brand analytics,
campaign management and measurement
functionality.
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At Econsultancy, we launched a new
platform which has two clear and distinct
customer offerings for subscribers:

Insight: Econsultancy’s proprietary
content now sits behind an
ecommerce-driven subscriber paywall
as part of a fully integrated, easy-to-
navigate sarvice which makes the
content easier to digest and more
practical to use; and

*  Learning: The platform includes a
dedicated "Econ Learn” section which
brings together all Econsultancy’s digital
learning content. Users can assess
their skills using the Digital Skills Index
and follow a tailored learning journey
based on their results, dip into learning
modules or engage in Econsultancy’s
structured elearning courses - all within
a single intuitive product environrment,

Econsultancy saw renawals by value
ncreasing to 83% in 2019, up from 54%

in 2018, While still lower than desired,

it is pleasing to see that the downward
trend from 2018 has been revarsad.
Econsultancy is also a leading provider

of training and has been strengthened
through the addition of Oystercatchers

into the Econsultancy brand. Our focus

on blended learning underpins our growth
strategy and is supparted by both improved
product design and an enhanced sales
team. A key element of the Oystercatchers
business model is the relationship and
chemistry between agencies and clients
and for 2019 we placed more emphasis on
this important dynamic. While its revenues
have shrunk, the decision to pull back the
team responsible for selling and marketing
Econsultancy in the US to the UK, has
worked and is improving Econsultancy
margins while continuing to provide services
to our US customers. Although the overall
revenues from Econsuitancy did not grow
in 2019, billings and margins have, which
will ba reflected in improved performance
in 2020.

Marketing Week has shown early positive
signs following the launch of a new digital
clatform which incorporates a paywall to
enable e-commerce, improved search
functionality, new navigation anc a
cleaner design. it is possible 10 upgrarct=
to a combined Marketing Week and
Econsultancy service via a single log-in,
which gives our customers an efficient

10
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way of accessing our products. The new
Marketing Week Knowledge Bank allows
Xeim to generate additional revenues from
white papers and research on its website.

The Festival of Marketing, Xeim’s flagship
event, delivered another compelling line-up
of speakers in 2019 and received positive
feedback from delegates and sponsors.
Attendance was up by 48% in comparison
with 2018 and there was a deuble-digit
improvement in e-commerce sales. The
VIPs in attendance included almost 200
senior management and CMO level guests.
This gave the Festival a palpable buzz and
generated a positive experience for our
avent sponsors and strategic partners.
Speakers at the event included Dave Lewis,
CEOQ at Tesco, actress and activist Rose
McGowan, TV presenter Davina McCall
and Marketing Week columnist Mark Ritson
who set the scene with a packed session
on brand excellence. This success puts the
event in a strong position for 2020.

elearning, which includes the Mini-MBA,

a joint initiative with Mark Ritson, has gone
from strength to strength with revenue
growing 75% in 2019 underpinned by a
47% year-on-year increase in delegates.
The feedback is overwhelmingly positive
across every intake with an average net
promoter score of +76. Bullding on this
success, in September 2019 we launched
a new marketing brand course with two
turther courses planned for 2020, The new
Mini-MBA Brand Management course is
only available to Marketing Week Mini-MBA
alumni and aims to help marketers with the

skills they need to become brand managers.

BGOK YOUR PLACE ROW
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MarketMakers had a challenging 2019 with
marketing services revenues at Really down
4% year-on-year and telemarketing services
down 3%. This was driven by increased
customer churn within telemarketing
services in the SME sector, reduced spend
from certain key accounts and lower than
anticipated renewals at Really in the first half
of the year. Due to the relatively low margins
in this business, the profit impact is limited.

At the end of 2019, Centaur announced the
appointment of Jude Bridge as managing
partner of Oystercatchers and Darren McGill
as managing director of MarketMakers.
Jude was an award-winning marketing
director at Marks & Spencer and Save

the Children and brings deep expertise in
building some of the UK’s strongest brands.
Darren has a wealth of experience in senior
commercial roles, most recently as chief
revenue officer at Signal Al, the leading
media information business. Both are
already having an impact and will take on
broader roles within Xeim. Jude will develop
and lead a marketing excellence programme
to ensure best-in-class marketing practice,
while Darren will develop and lead a sales
excellence initiative to improve customer
retention and sales productivity.

The key drivers of Xeim going intc 2020 are
the growth of our Influencer Inteligence and
Econsultancy subscription revenues, the
continued success of the Mini-MBA and
building upon the success of the Festival

of Marketing by attracting new and repeat
delegates and sponsors. The disappointing
performances of MarketMakers and
Econsultancy are being addressed and,
whilst improved performances are expected
in 2020, they remain a challenge.
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THE LAWYER

The Lawyer is a leading provider of
inteligence to the globa! legal market,
generating revenue from digital
subscriptions, live events and marketing
solutions. The Lawyer represented 17%
of Group revenues in 2019 and achieved
a 9% increase in underlying revenue, a
16% increase in adjusted EBITDA and an
adjusted EBITDA margin of 35%.

The successful move to & multi-channel
digital platform continues to support The
Lawyer's growth. Alongside a 12% increase
in corporate clients since 2018, the website
has seen a double-digit year-on-year
increase in the frequency of subscriber visits
and increased content consumption, with
50% of subscribers now visiting on a daily
or weskly basis.

We have continued to develop The Lawyer’s
premium content business which represents
just over 40% of its total revenue, with a
growth of 17% in underlying revenue over
the year.

In January 2019, The Lawyer iaunched

the Litigation Tracker, an interactive tool

that extends the functionality of The
Lawyer's current market insight products
and provides real-time insight into the UK
litigation market. With over 40 corporate
clients and extremely positive feedback from
users, we are pleased with its reception and
plan to build on this momentum, including
the addition of further data sets in 2020.

The Lawyer's events business alsc grew

by 17%, propelled by the first new event
launches since 2016. This included the
inaugural Marketing Leadership Summit,
which was well-received with a net promoter
score of +567 from attendees.

Encouragingly, our more established events
also performed well with particularly strong
year-on-year growth achieved in cur GC
Summit and In-House Financial Services
conferences, our European Awards and our
roundtable events for individual clients.

Revenue from marketing and advertising
solutions continued to be a challenge and
fell by 4% during the year, although the rate
of decline has slowed.

People and culture

Qur executive committee is committed

to ensuring we maintain a culture that
supports, engages and empowears
employees to fulfil their potential. It is

this culture that underpins our business
ambitions and we continue to develop
internal training plans and communication
processes to ensure our employees’
SUCCEsS.

Across the Group, the gender balance is
good with a male-female ratio of 49:51.

At Board level, half of our non-executive
directors are female, but there is more
work to be done to encourage and
promote women onto our senior leadership
team which only has a one-third female
represaentaticn.

As a company, we understand the
importance of family and we offer enhanced
maternity and paternity leave. Curing 2019,
we intreduced a wider range of flexible
working arrangements to coincide with our
new office environment in London. We have
a high rate of maternity returners (85% in
2019) and 8% of our workforce have part-
time working arrangements.

In 2019 we established a workforce
advisory panel t¢ cover diversity, inclusion,
culture and engagement {DICE) to ensure
that our cutture supports and empowers
our employees and promotes their
ongoing develepment. DICE reports to me
and frequently meets with the executive
committee. There is also a nominated non-
executive director to oversee the working of
DICE. Our policies and working practices
embrace an inclusive working environment
and takes a proactive and progressive
approach to supporting diversity. Our
hiring policy is focused on appeinting the
best person for the job irrespective of race,
gender, sexual orientation or disability. The
Caompany also offers a range of mental
health, wellbeing and fitness sessions.

In 2019 we continued with our formal
mentoring programme which was launched
in 2018, We delivered face-to-face coaching
sessions to more than 100 staff at all levels
and now have qualifieg Mental Health First
Aiders in the business. We ran workshops
for line managers to support flexible and
remote working, and staff continue ta
participate in and be advocatas of cur Mini-
MBA programme.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Summary

In 2019, Centaur radically transformed the
shape of our business. In simplifying our
portfolio and concentrating our attention
on two key markets, we have a more
streamlined customer-facing group that can
direct its focus at developing its product
offerings and digital capabilities. Cross-
selling, technology platform enhancement
and employee expertise will enhance these
product offerings and quality of revenue,
The Lawyer, Influencer Intelligence and
elLearning will be key drivers of revenue
growth towards MAP22,

Coronavirus has trought uncertainty to
global markets and whilst our customers
remain committed, some of their decisions
are being delayed. We have carried out
detailed risk analysis across the tusiness
and have postponed two of The Lawyer's
key events from Q2 to Q4. The Festival

of Marketing will go ahead in October, as
planned, and we shall keep our remaining
events under review. We have a strong
balance sheet and an undrawn £25m credit
facility. We will be keeping a close eye on
cash through these uncertain times.

The dramatic scale and pace of change in
Centaur has made this a tough year for our
employess. Centaur's transformation has
ondy been achievable through thelr expertise
and commitment and | am incredibly grateful
for the energy, resilience and positive
approach they have demenstrated during
this period of change, As we now enter the
next stage of the Group’s development, |
am confident that we have the strategy and
structure and pecple in place tc achieve
our MAP22 goal. | lock forward to building
towards this in 2020.

SWAG MUKER.!
Chief Executive

17 March 2020
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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The Group has set out the following core financial and non-financial metrics to measure the Group’s performance. The KPls are monitored by the Board by
reference to the annual budget and the focus on these measures will support the successful implementation of the MAPZ22 strategy. These indicators are
discussed in more detail in the CEC review and Financial Review.

KPI Statistic Commentary

Unaartying ra

The growth in total revenue adjusted to exclude the
impact of event timing differences, as well as the revenue
contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses.

2018 2019

Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue where
adjusted EBITDA is defined as adjusted operating

profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible
assets, and amertisation and impaiment of intangible
assets, other than those acquired through a business
combination. For comparative purposes, the 2019 figure
excludes the impact of IFRS 16 (Leases)

{see Financial Review pages 14 to 21),

Adjusted diluted EP

v

Diluted earmnings per share calculated using the adjusted
earnings, as set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

2018 2019

Jasb o conversion 100% The percentage by which adjusted operating cash flow

covers adjusted EBITDA {on continuing and discontinued

80% operations) as set out in the Financial Review.

B0%
40%

20%

"See defimitons in Financial Review on page 21.
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KPI Statistic Commentary
STy e R T L R E 000

Number of unique delegates attending the Festival of
Marketing.
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“By removing non-
core assets, we
have been able to
achieve a significant
reduction in
overhead costs”

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report and Financial Statements ‘o e yea ended 31 Bacs o 2019

N PERFORMANCE:

Overview

2019 was a significant year for Centaur
as it completed its restructuring
through the divestment programme
described in the CEO's review.

Despite the impact of the divestment
programme on the Group and its
employees, | am delighted to report
that both Xeim and The Lawyer grew
adjusted operating profit, adjusted
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA margin
in 2019. Combined with the annualised
overhead cost savings of £5m that we
promised at our interim results, the

full year impact of which will be seen

in 2020, this performance has put
Centaur well on the path to obtaining
our MAPZ22 target of at least 20%
adjusted EBITDA margin by 2022
(without the benefit of the impact of
IFRS 16).

2019 was dominated by the divestrment
programme in the first half of the year with
incorme generating transitional arrangements
continuing leng into the second half of

the year. The result of the divestment
programme is a simpler, more streamlined
Group with increased focus on its two core
businesses. By removing non-core assets,
we have been able to achieve a significant
reduction in overhead costs and have
recognised exceptional restructuring costs
in the income statement as a consequence
of the cost reduction plan of £2.5m.

Due to the divestment programme, the
Group is required to report its current year,
and also restate its prior year, results in

line with IFRS 5 (Non-current assets held

for sale and discontinued cperations),

s that only the results of the continuing
business are reported as part of revenue
and adjusted operating prefit. The results

of the disposed businesses up to the date
of their divestment are therefore shown in
net income from discontinued operaticns,
Howaver, as most of the £5m cost reduction
took place in the second half of the year, the
lost contribution of the disposed assets was
not immediately offset by the cost savings.
This caused the Group to report an adjusted
operating loss for the year, albeit reduced
compared to 2018 due to increases in
business unit EBITDA.

The Group received total cash consideration
of £20.4m from the divestment programme.
After transaction costs of £2.3m and
working capital adjustments of £1.7m,

net cash received from the divestment
programme was £16.4m.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 but took the
exernption not to re-state comparatives
for the prior year. As a result, year-cn-year
business unit profitability is not directly
comparable except at a pre-IFRS 16
adjusted EBITDA level, reflected in the
discussion below,

Performance

o

The Group is reporting a statutory profit
after taxation of £1.9m (2018: a loss of
£14.2m) primarily due to the profit on
disposal of £7.8m from the divestment
programme. The Group's adjusted
operating loss of £1.1m is an improvement
from the restated adjusted operating loss

of £2.2m for 2018. This was driven by
significant cost reductions within Xeim
resulting in a 24% increase in Xeim's
adjusted EBITDA, together with adjusted
EBITDA growth of 16% in The Lawyer. The
adjusted EBITDA for the two business units
is therefore 21% higher than 2018 despite a
revenue decline of 3%.

Reported revenue of £48.9m represents a
decline of 3% over 2018. On an underlying’
basis, Group revenue fell 2% from £48.6m
in 2018 to £47.7m in 2018, Xeim underlying
revenie fell by 4% - increases in eL.earning
and Influencer Intelligence revenues were
mere than offset by reductions due te

the withdrawal from public training within
Econsultancy, and lower revenues at
Qystercatchers, Really and MarketMakers.
The Lawyer showed strong underlying
revenue growth, up 9%, driven by growth in
its subscriptions and events business.

! Underlying is a nen-GAAP measure — seg Measurements

and non-statutory adjustments section
of Financial review for turther explanation
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Excellence in marketing
Influencer Inteligence was merged with
Year Ahead during the year and saw strong
revenue growth of 11%. Xeim substantially
grew its el earning revenues in 2019 which
saw 75% revenue growth year on year,
driven by the success of the Mini-MBA and
the launch of the new marketing brand
course. The Mini-MBA saw volume growth
of 47% with a pleasing corresponding
increase in yield.

Econsultancy’s training revenue fell in the
year due to the decision to restructure

its global sales operaticn in the US and
withdraw from public training, replacing
this with a new set of courses. As planned
the loss in revenue was more than offset
by cost savings and margin improvement.
Econsultancy subscription products had

a difficutt period with lower volumes in the
year partially offset by strong improvement
in yields, especially on new business.
Rerewal rates continue to improve, both in
terms of volume and yield, but the revenue
benefits will not be felt until 2020, as the
deferred income unwinds.

MarketMakers had a challenging year.
Marketing services revenues at Really
remained flat from the half year and
consequently ended 4% down yaar on

year. However, our telemarketing operations
struggled in the second half of the year, with
revenue declining 3% in 2019 due to fower
realised revenue on some key contracts and
lower than expected campaign renewals
from its smaller clients.

We consider profitable revenue growth to
be a key pillar to our future success and
accordingly we decided to close Marketing
Week Live and end public training in our
Econsultancy business to focus on more
profitable revenue streams and remove
duplicate brand and rmanagement costs of
£2.4rm. The impact of this has been that
adjusted business unit EBITDA {(before the
impact of IFRS 16) in Xeim has grown by
24% in the year despite a 4% reduction in
undertying revenue.
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THE LAWYER

The Lawyer showed strong underlying
revenue growth, up 9%, driven by:

growth of 17% in its premium content
business, due in part to the launch

of new products such as Litigation
Tracker, and increases in corporate
subscriptions; and

axcellent performance in its events
business, up 17%, resulting from
development of the new Marketing
Leadership Summit and higher revenues
across most of the other avents.

Revenue from Marketing and Advertising
Solutions fell by 4%, although this is a lower
decline than in 2018. Adjusted EBITDA has
increased by 16% from £2.5m to £2.9m
with a healthy increase in adjusted EBITDA
margin from 32% to 35%.
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N PERFORMANCE:

New Accounting Standards

IFRS 16 has been adopted for the current reporting period and the Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective transition
appreach where comparative periods are not restated. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019,

As at 31 December 2019, the right of use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment at a value of £3.7m and lease
liabilities of £4.3m have been presented on the consolidated staterent of financial position. This is after £1.6m depreciation expense and
£0.2m impairment charge in the year, The overall impact of IFRS 18 on the income statement was an additional expense of £0.1m with
expenses now classified as depreciation on the right of use asset and interest expense on the finance liability.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2019, after applying IFRS 16 (post-IFRS 16) of £4.4m, is £1.8m higher than if the new standard had not been applied,
giving an adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16) of £2.6m. For the purposes of comparison, the adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 18) and related margin
have been compared to 2018 in this commentary. For further details of the transition to IFRS 18 please refer to note 20.

Measurement and non-statutory adjustments

The statutory results of the Group are presented in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (‘IFRS”). The Group also
uses alternative reporting and other non-GAAP measures as explained below and as defined in the table on page 21.

Ad)isting e ms
Adjusted results are not intended to replace statutory results but are prepared to provide a better comparison of the Group's core business
performance by removing the impact of certain items from the statutory results. The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted
earnings per share are the most appropriate way to measure the Group’s operational performance because they are comparable to the prior
year and cansequently review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internally.

Statutory operating loss from continuing operations reconciles to adjusted operating loss and adjusted EBITDA as follows:

2y 2018

Note o £m

Statutory loss before tax v R

Adjusting iterms:

Exceptional operating costs. 4 1.7 2.0
Impairment of goodwil 10 - 12.8
Amertisation of intangible assets 11 2.4 25
Share based payments 25 C.3 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 .t -

73 181

Adjusted operating loss 1. 2.2)

Depreciation, software amortigation and impairment 3 5.3 386

Adjusted EBITDA (post-IFRS 16) 41 1.4

Adjusted EBITIA margin (post-iIFRS 16) = 3%

Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16) 26 1.4

Adisted EBITDA margin re-R$ 7 N %

Adjusting items from continuing operations generated a loss before tax of £7.3m (2018: £18.1m) as follows:

Adjusting item Descnptron

Exceptronal costs of £4.7m (2018: £2 Om) rnclude de £2.5m (2018 EO 4m) ef staff restructurrng
costs related 1o the Group’s cost reduction plan following the completion of the divestment
programme in 2019, £2.2m (2018: £1.3m) of divestment programme related costs and £nil
(2018: £0. Sm) of costs relatrng to strategic corporate restructunng initiatives.

In 2018, £nil (201 8: £12. 8m) relates to the impairment of goodwill. The 2018 charge primarity
related to the Xelm portiolio.

Arnortlsatron of acquired intangible assets of £2. 4m (2018 £2.5mj has decreased in the year
follow ing the full amortlsatlon Df certain |n1ang|ble assets.

Share based payments in 201 9 of £0.1m (2018: £0. 8m) have deoreased srgnrﬁcantly due to the
reduction in the number of share options from 10.8m to 7.6m. Forfeitures and lapses of 0.5m
and 5.6m share options respectively resulted in a reversal of charges previously recognised.
This was offset by an expense recognised for 3.6m new share options granted during the year
and an additional charge recognised on 1.6m share options that vested during the year.

Exceptional operating costs

Impairment of goodwill
Amortisation of intangible assets

Share based payments

Loss on disposal of subsidiary

16

The less on disposal of subsidiaries of £0.1m (2018: £nil) relates to the sale of Venture
Business Research Limited ("VBR").
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The Group also measures and presents performance in relation to various other non-GAAP measures, such as underlying revenue, These have
been presented to provide users with additional information and analysis of the Group's performance, consistant with how the Board monitors
results. The Group's activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore currency movements do not have a material impact on results.

In the year, the Group dispased of VBR which was included in The Lawyer business unit. Due to its size it has not been treated as
discontinued and its revenues are therefore reported as part of the Group's continuing revenue. Howaver, for underlying reporting purposas,
its revenue (2019: £0.1m 2018: £0.3m) has been excluded. Marketing Week Live, which was included in Xeim, has besn closed and
therefore its revenue has also been excluded for underlying reporting purposes.

AR aad sege s oL

At the half year we disclosed our internal profitability performance measure by segment — contribution after portfolio costs (“CAP”). We
reported CAP for three different segments — Xeim, The Lawyer and Central. CAP was an interim measure so that we could illustrate the
contributions of the business units while the Group was transitioning to the new simplified model.

in order to increase clarity over the underlying profitability of our business units, Xeim and The Lawyer. we are now reporting the “segment profit” of
our business units, being the adjusted operating profit of each segment. Segment profit builds upen and replaces the concept of CAP by inciuding
specific allocations of the central support teams and overneads that are directly related to each business unit, in order to demonstrate the stand-
alene profitability. Any costs not specifically attributable to either Xeim or The Lawyer, remain as part of central costs. This is different from the
concept of segmental reporting used in prior years when central overheads were fully allocated on a revenue basis 1o the operating segments.

The table below shows the statutory and underlying revenue for each business unit:

Restated
cie T Txaim T The Lawyer | Total
2018 2018 2018
T £m _fm o Em
Underlying revenue T T
Prernium Content 11.¢ 3 143 11.2 29 141
Marketing Services 4.0 - 13 4.5 - 4.5
Training and Advisory TE - 76 8.0 - 8.0
Events 3.4 21 5.3 3.2 1.8 5.0
Marketing and Advertising Solutions i3 t5 8.9 4.6 2.7 7.3
Telermarketing Services &.3 - 5.3 9.6 - 9.6
Tetal underlying revenue 39.8 ' 7.7 41.1 7.4 48.5
Underlying revenue growth . [
Revenue from closed or disposed
businesses it St e 1.5 0.3 1.8
_Icltf" statutory revenue WL 52 5.9 jZ.S 7.7 k§0~3w
The table below reconciles the adjusted operating profit/{loss) for each segment to the adjusted EBITDA:
Vom Tt e Oty RIFLIY Xeim The Lawyer Central Total
o i ' 2018 2018 2018 2018
o - n “n £m £m em £m
Reverve 457 TR - w428 LT T  eas
Other income - - 1.3 1€ - - 0.8 0.8
Operating costs 13661 1= 1.1 {51.8) (39.3) 6.7} 8.3) (53.3)
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 11 L T RIS 3.3 20 (7.5} 2.2)
Adfiusted operating margin o S e 8% 26% 4%
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment A . 2.0 1.8 0.5 1.3 36
Adjusted EBITDA {post-IFRS16) s L NS boi
Adjusted EBITDA margin (post-iFRST6) I - &
Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 18) ! - s 5.1 2.5 6.2) 1.4
Adjusted EBITDA marghn (ro FRS16) ' 2% 2% 3%

As described above, the Group adopted IFRS 16 in 2019 but took the exemption not to re-state the comparatives for the prior year.

As a result, year-on-year business unit profitability between 2019 and 2018 is not directly comparabie except at a pre-IFRS 16 adjusted
EBITDA level which for both years includes property rent charges. Both pre-IFRS 16 and pest-IFRS 16 adjusted EBITDA for each business
unit for 2019 are provided in the table above. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment for 2019 includes the higher depreciation charge

arising from the application of IFRS 16.

17
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N PERFORMANCE:

Net finance costs

Net finance costs were £0.3m (2018: £0.2m). The Group reported an opening cash position at 1 January 2018 of £0.1m and has held more
significant cash balances following the divestment programme. Consequently, the vast majority of finance costs in 2019 are as a result of the
commitment fee payable for the revolving credit facility.

Taxation

A tax credit of £0.7m (2018: £1.1m) has been recognised on continuing operations for the year. The adjusted tax charge was £0.5m {2018:
a credit of £0.4m) giving an adjusted effective tax rate (compared to adjusted profit before tax) of nil% (2018: 17%). The Company’s profits
waere taxed in the UK at a blended rate of 19.0% (2018; 12.0%). On a reported basis, the sffective tax rate is 8% (2018: 6%). See note 7 for
a reconciliation between the statutory reported tax charge and the adjusted tax charge.

Discontinued coperations
Discontinued operations relate to the four divestments made during the first half of the year as described in the CEQ's repart. The profit from
discontinued operations in 2019 and a recongciliation of the 2018 results compared to the results reported last year is as follows:

St Discontinued Continuing As reported
cota 2018 2018 2018
I £m £m £m
Reverue S T 202 503 705
Cther operating inccme - - 0.8 0.8
Net operating expenses v 3 (13.9) {71.4) (85.3)
Profit on disposal 7.8 0.1 - 0.1
Cperating profit/{loss) 1).5 6.4 (20.3) (13.9)
Finance costs - - 0.2) 0.2)
Profit/(loss) before tax 139 6.4 (20.5) (14.1)
Taxation 0.G (1.2) 1.1 0.1)
3 5.2 (19.4) (1‘1:',2.)“

_Profit/{loss) after tax

Earnings/losses per share

The Group has delivered adjusted diluted eamings per share for the year of 0.3 pence (2018: 2.6 pence). Diluted sarnings per share for
the year were 1.3 pence (2018 a loss of 8.9 pence). Full details of the earnings per share calculations can be found in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Dividends

in Qctober 2019, an interim dividend of 1.5p per share was paid relating to 2019 (2018: 1.5p). A return of cash of 2.0p per share, in the form
of a special dividend, was also announced as part of the interim results and paid along with the interim dividend.

At the time of the interim results, the Group confirmed a new dividend policy, applicable from 1 January 2020, such that Centaur will target a
pay-out ratio of 40% of adjusted earnings, subject te a minimum dividend of 1.0p per share per annum.

In light of this new policy, a final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share is propoesed by the Directors in respect of 2019 (2018: 1.5p). giving a
total ordinary dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of 2.0p (201 8: 3.0p). This brings the total of ordinary and special dividends
paid te shareholders relating to 2019 to £5.7m (4.0p per share), which is £4.3m (3.0p per share) more than the dividends that would have
been paid under the new policy.

The final dividend in respect of the year is subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Mesting and, if approved, will be paid on 28
May 2020 to ali ordinary shareholders on the register at the close of business on 11 May 2020

After starting the year with only £0.1m of cash, the £16.4m net proceeds from divestments have been spent on the excess dividends

of £4.3m and exceptional costs relating to the Group's centrai cost reductions and divestment programme of £4.7m while retaining an
acceptable minimum level of liquidity for the Group. The Board was planning a further return of cash as a special dividend alongside the
ordinary dividend in May. However, the uncertainty resulting from coronavirus pandemic has caused the Board to take a prudent approach
and there will be a delay in any further special dividends until we have better clarity of the potential impact on Gentaur, if any. The Group
closed 2019 with cash of £9.3m (2018: £0.1m).
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Cashflow

2018

£m

Adjusted operating loss E e
Depreciation, amortigation and impairment .7 3.7
Movement in working capital 1.3
Adjusted operating cash flow Tz 7.8
Capital expenditure RN 2.8)
Cash impact of adjusting items e {0.8)
Taxation i (1.2)
Repayment of finance lease obligations 2.2 -
Interest and finance leases 0.2 0.4)
Loan arrangement fees - 0.2)
Free cash flow 3.6 22
Acquisitions KSAN! (1.8)
Disposal of subsidiaries 15,1 0.3
Share repurchases {00.6] {C.4)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders 7.1 4.3)
Increase/(decrease) in net cash 9.2 4.0)
Opening net cash SN 4.1
Closing net cash 9.3 0.1
Cash convearsion 10075 85%

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. Centaur defines adjusted operating cash flow as cash flow from operations
excluding the impact of adjusting items, which are defined above. The Directors use this measure to assess the parformance of the Group
as it excludes volatile items not related to the core trading of the Group and includes the Group's management of capital expenditure. A
reconciliation between cash flow from operations and adjusted operating cash fiow is shown in note 1(b) to the financial statements. The
cash impact of adjusting items primarily relates to exceptional restructuring costs in both years.

MAP22

As referred to in the CEQ's report and our interim resuits presentation, the Group introduced its Margin Acceleration Programme (MAP22) in
Septernber 2019 which targets an adjusted EBITDA margin of at least 20% by 2022 (excluding the impact of IFRS 18). This will be achieved
by the targeted costs savings of £5m per annum together with profitable revenue growth. Targeted cost savings represent roughly half of the
increase in EBITDA required to meet the targetad 20% EBITDA margin. This cost saving targst had been achieved on an annuatised basis
by the end of December 2019 and the full benefit will be reflected in the 2020 financial performance.

Financing and bank covenants

In November 2018, the Group agreed an amendment and extension of the existing £25 million revolving credit facility which had been signed
in 2015. The fagility's terms include quarterly testing of leverage and interest cover ratios and security has been granted over the Group's
assets. The initial period of the extension was three years until November 2021 with the option to extend by two further single years subject
to bank approval.

The principal financial covenants under the facility are: the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA shal!l not exceed 2.5:1, and the ratio of
EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1. The Group remained well within its banking covenants during the year and had not
drawn down any of its £25 million revolving credit facility at the end of 2019.
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N PERFORMANCE:

Balance sheet
A summary of the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below:

Restated
2018
£m
Goodwill and other intangiole assets O N
Property, plant and equipment I 1.3
Deferred taxation ’ 0.3
Deferred income o {15.0)
Other current assets and liabilities R 2.0
Non-current liabilities 2.3 (0.1)
Net assets before cash 51.3 66.6
Net cash 3.3 0.1
Net assets 511 66.7

It should be noted that the prior year balance sheet, unlike the income staternent, is not adjusted to reflect the divestment programme that
accurred in 2019. However, trade receivables and other payables in 2018 have been restated to gross up credits of £0.8m which had been
previously reported in trade receivables as described in note 1 (a) {ii).

In 2018, goedwill and other intangibles have reduced by £16.9m mainly due to the impact of the divestment pregramme (£12.8m). Property,
plant and equipment have increased mainly as a result of the right-of-use property assets of £3.7m recognised under IFRS 16. Other
current assets and liabilities have been significantly reduced year-on-year by the divestment programme as shown in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Going concern

After due consideration, as reguired under IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, including consideration of the Group's net current
liability position, the Group's forecasts for at least twelve months from the date of this repert, and the effectiveness of risk management
processes, the Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. As detalled under the Risk Managerment section, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group over a three-year period to December 2022 and the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company will be able to continue in operation and mest its liabilities as they fall due over the period to December 2022.

Conclusion

The Group has successfully completed its strategic divestment programme and is now leaner and fitter for the future as it focuses on Xeim
and The Lawyer. Our balance sheet is stronger than before with over £9m of cash in the bank at year end and a £25 banking facility that
the Group is not intending to draw down in the foreseeable future. Notwithstanding the impact of coronavirus, we stand in a strong place to
exacute MAP22 having met our targeted annualised cost reduction programme of £5m. | would like to thank all the employees of Centaur
for their commitment and patience as the Group has completed its divestment and restructuring programmes.

SIMON LONGFIELD
Chief Financial Officer

17 March 2020
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Alternative performance measures

Measure

- T T TR Adjusted operating prafit before depreciation and impairment of tangible assets and
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through a
business combination, before the impact of IFRS 18 to remove property rent charges.

Definition

AL ZTTTL L e s By Adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible assets and
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through
a business combination, after the impact of IFRS 18 to remove property rental charges.
This measure is new, reflecting the adoption of IFRS 16.

IR TR Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 18) as a percentage of revenue.
Addpastan off e e Adjusted tax charge as a percentage of Adjusted profit before tax.
RV EPS calculated using Adjusted profit for the period.

o s lterns as set out in the statement of cansolidated income and notes 1{b) and 4 of the
financial statements including exceptional items, and volatile items predominantly relating
to investment activities and other separately reported items.

Acinet o e peolitrisggg Operating profit/(loss) excluding Adjusting items.

S o s ol Tax Profit before tax excluding Adjusting items.

SRR Revenue generated by a segment less its costs of sales and all costs attributable to
marketing, selling, content production and delivery of that revenue. This measure is new as
described on page 17.

It Adjusted operating cash flow/adjusted EBITDA (post-IFRS 16).

Exe dnt, sy oy ltems whare the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be non-
recurring in nature as shown in note 4.

T T Increase/decreass in cash for the year before the impact of debt, acquisitions, disposals,
dividends and share repurchases.

B Adjusted operating profit of a segment after allocation of central support teams and
overheads that are directly related to each segment or business unit. As explained in the
Financial Review, centrai costs were fully allocated in prior years.

[ AN Revenue adjusted to exclude the impact of revenue contribution arising from acquired,
disposed or closed businesses {"excluded revenue”).
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N RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management approach

The Beard has overall responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are regularly monitoraed by the Audit
Commiittee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
Committee in this financial year can be
found in the Audit Committee Report on
pages 41 to 43.

The Executive Committee, Company
Secretary and the Head of Legal are
responsible for identifying, managing and
monitoring material and emerging risks in
sach area of the business and for regularly
reviswing and updating the risk register, as
well as reporting to the Audit Committee in
relation to risks, mitigations and controls.
As the Group operates principally from one
office and with relatively short managerment
reporting lines, members of the Executive
Committee are closely involved in day-ta-
day matters and are able to identify areas
of increasing risk quickly and respond
accordingly. The responsibility for each risk
identified is assigned to a member of the
Executive Committee. The Audit Committee
considers risk management and controls
regularly and the Board formally considers

22

risks to the Group's strategy and plans as
well as the risk management process as
part of its strategic review,

The risk register is the core element of the
Group’s risk managemant process. The
register is maintained by the Company
Secretary with input from the Executive
Committee and the Head of Legal. The
Executive Committee initially identifies the
material risks and emerging risks facing the
Group and then collectively assesses the
severity of each risk (by ranking both the
likelinood of its cccurrence and its potential
impact on the business) and the related
mitigating controls.

As part of its risk management processes,
the Board considers both strategic and
operaticnal risks, as well as its risk appetite
in terms of the tolerance level it is willing

to accept in relation to each principal risk,
which is recorded in the Company’s risk
register. This appraach recognises that

risk cannot always be eliminated at an
acceptable cost and that there are some
risks which the Board will, after due and
careful consideration, choose to accept.
The Group's risk register, its method of
preparation and the operation of the key
conirols in the Group's system of internal
control are regularly raviewed and overseen

by the Audit Committee with reference to
the Group's strategic aime and its operating
environment. The register is also reviewed
and considered by the Beard.

As part of the angoing enhancement of
the Group's risk monitering activities, we
reviewed and updated the procedures
by which we evaluate principal risks and
uncertainties during the year.

Principal risks

The Group's risk register currently includes
cperational and strategic risks. The principal
risks faced by the Group in 2019, taken
from the register, together with the potential
effects and mitigating factars, are set out
below. The Directors confirmn that they

have undertaken a robust assessment of
the principal and emerging risks facing the
Group. Financial risks are shown in note 28
to the financial statements.

Risk number 1 has been updated from

last year's Annual Report to include the
wider risk of failure to deliver a high growth
performance culture, Risk number 2 has
been updated from last year's Annual
Report to include the wider risk of sensitivity
to the UK/sector economic conditions,
instead of just the risk related to print
products,
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Hank

Hisk

Failure 1o deliver
a high growth

performance culture.

The risk that Centaur
is unable to attract,

develop and retain
an appropriately

skilled, diverse and
responstble workforce

and leadership

team, and mantain

g healthy culture
which encourages

and supports ethical

high-performance
behaviours and
decision-making.

Difficulties in recruiting

and retaining staff

could tead to loss of

key senior staff.

Failure to implement

the simplification
programme.

Sensitivity to UK/
sector economic
conditions.

Lescription of risk and impact

Centaur’s success depends on growing
the business and completing the MAP22
strategy. In order to do this, it depends in
large part on its abllity to recruit, motivate
and retain highly experienced and quaiified
employees in the face of often intense

competition from other companies, especially

in London.

In 2019 it was exacerbated by:

a. the simplification programme;

b. the formaticn of the Xeim greup; and
c. the reduction of overheads.

Investment in training, developmenit and pay
awards needs to be compeiling but wil be
challenging in the current economic climate.

Implementing a working environment that
aliows for agile and remote delivery is
necessary to keep the *millennial” workforce
engaged.

High staff churn {a challenge for all media
and events companies) affects budget,
preductivity and continuity for customers.

Developing the 2022 business strategy and
changes required in skill set and culture are
challenging and costly.

Centaur's UK focus makes Centaur highly
sensitive to UK/sector econcmic conditions.
This risk remained high during 2019

and continues while the terms of the UK
leaving the EU are uncertain. The current
uncertainties caused by coronavirus have
also increased the shorl-term risk 1o the
Group.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Risk mitigation/cantrol procedure

We regularly raview measures airmed

at improving our ability fo recruit and
retain employees and to track employee
engagement.

The move to WeWork in Waterloo, a
bright, modern and flexible workspace,
and with good transport connections
should be a compelling environment for
staff and improve our ability to recruit and
retain employees and to track employee
engagement,

Waeekly “check-ins” via ENGAGE ensure
we have a weekly “mood” of the business
and an understanding of any key risks or
challenges as they arise.

An employee engagement team has
been set up, known as DICE to focus
on Diversity, Inclusion, Culture and
Engagement along with other key issues
and cppertunities that can challenge the
buginess. This is sponsored by the CEO
and a Non-Executive Director.

Key senior ieaders have had their
reward packages reviewed and, whera
appropriate, increased notice periods
and restrictive covenants have been
introduced.

A review takes place annually to ensure
flight risks and training needs are
identified which become the focus for
pay, reward and development areas.

All London based staff continue 1o be
paid at or above the London Living
Wage.

Our HR processes inciude exit interviews
for all leavers to resclve areas of concern.

Most of the rnisk impacts Centaur
inclirectly from our customers.

Part of the strategic plan for Centaur is
1o increase international organic growth
in the mid to longer term, focusing on
the US and Asia in particular, in order to
mitigate this risk.

Many of the Group's products are
market-leading in their respective sectors
and are an integral part of our customers’
operational processes, which mitigates
the risk of reduced demand for our
products.

The Group regularly reviews the political
and economic conditions and forecasts
for the UK, including specific risks such
as coronavirus, and the main sectors

in which it operates to assess whether
changes 10 its preduct offerings or pricing
structures are necessary.

Movement in
rigk

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year,
following the
simplification
programme.

The Board
considers this
risk to have
increased since
the prior year.
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Rank

HISK

Fraudulent or
accidental breach
of our security, or
ineffective cperation
of IT and data

management systems
lsads to loss, theft or

misuse of personal
data or confidential
information or
other breach of
data protection
requirements.

Requlatory; GDPR,
PECR and cther
similar legislaticn
invelve strict
requirements
regarding how
Centaur handles
personal data,
including that of
customers and the
risk of a fine from
the (CQ, third party
claims {e.g. from

customers) as well as
reputational damage

if we do not comply.

Description of risk and impact

A serious occurrence of a loss, theft or
rmisuse of personal data or sensitive or
confidential information could result in
reputational damage, a breach of data
protection requirements or direct financial
impact. See risk 4: GDPR, PECR below,

Centaur collects and processes parsonal
data and confidential information from some
of its custcmers, users and other third
parties.

Centaur is at risk from a serious occurrence
of a loss, theft or misuse of personal data
or confidential information on our software/
hardware due to the actions of a Centaur
employee, partner or third party.

The General Data Protection Regulation
{'GDPR"), which is the data protection law
that came into force in May 2018, invelves
much stricter requirements for Centaur
regarding its handling of personal data.

This includes:

»  customers and employees having greater
rights on haw we use their data;

+  Centaur having to provide specific
information to cur customers on how we
use their personal data;

+  strict rules around how we conduct our
direct marketing activities;

personal data being kept more securely;
time and access;

«  contracts with suppliers that handle our
data to include GDPR compliant clauses;

= new rules about notifying the 1CO in the
event of a breach of GBPR;

»  ashort time period for responding
to “subject access requests” from
customers and employees;

»  arequirement to demonstrate how
we comply with GDPR, which means
mere onercus internal recerd-keeping
obligations;

Risk mitigation/control procedure

Appropriate [T security is undertaken
for all key processes to keep the IT
environment safe.

Websites are hosted by specialist third-
party providers who provide warranties
relating to security standards.

All of our websites have been migrated
onto a new and more secure platform
which is cloud hosted and databases
have been cleansed and upgradea.

External access to data is protected and
staff are instructed to password protect
or encrypt where appropriate.

The Group Head of Data ensures

that rigorous controls are in place to
ensure that warshouse data can only

be downloaded by the data team.
Integration of the warehouse with cumrent
databases and data captured and stered
alsewhere is ongoing.

Centaur has a business continuity plan
which includes its T systems and there
is daily, overnight back-up of data, stored
off-site.

Please see risk 4 below for specifics
relating to GDPR compliance/data.

Centaur has taken a wide range of
measures aimed at complying with the
key aspects of GDPR.

The measures taken inciude:

»  updating the marketing permissions
on our websites and event
registration pages to ensure
language is specific/unambiguous;

= updating the unsubscribe process;

» improving our data complaints
procedures;

«  improving our procedures for
removing individuals from databases
where details are inaccurate/not
needed,;

+  updating our standard terrms and
conditions across all products;

+  updating our privacy and cookies
policy and website terms and
conditions; and

»  amending our contracts with
suppliers who pravide us with
perscnat data (ie lists) or who handle
data on our behalf.

oo 31 Dacemce 2018

Movement in
ik

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
orior year.

e

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year.
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Raiih

Hisk

Description of risk and impact

«  arequirerment to carry out data impact
assessments for new types of personal
data processing undertaken; and

« areguirement to keep under review the
need for a Data Protection Officer.

The Privacy and Electronic Communications
Requiations (PECR) implements the EU
*E-Privacy” Directive and sits alongside the
GDPR. PECR includes specific obligations for
businesses like Centaur regarding how they
conduct electronic marketing calls, emails,
texts, and on their use of cookies and simiar
technologies, among other things.

In the event of a serious breach of the GDPR
and cor PECR, Centaur could be subject

to a significant fine from the regulator (the
{C0) and claims from third parties including
customers as well as reputational damage.

The maximum fing of 20 million Euro for
breach of GDPR is much higher than fines
under the cld UK data protection legislation.

The maxirnum fine for breaches of PECR is
£500,000, and directors’ fiability for serious
breaches of marketing rules has recently
been introduced.

The cbligations for Centaur under the GDPR
and PECR ae complex and continuing,
meaning this area requires continued focus.

Following the adoption of the GDPR by EU
member states, certain other countries and
wirisdictions woridwide are also reviewing
and updating their own laws relating to
data and privacy. The extent to which
Centaur is required to comply with the laws
in each of these jurisdictions depends on
the circumstances, and there is a risk that
Centaur may not be compliant with alt such
laws and could therefore be subject to
regulatory action and fines from the relevant
regulators and data subjects.

STRATEGIC REPORT

: e Movement in
Risk mitigation/control procedure riukv
More recent measures taken to improve
the Company's compliance with the laws
on electronic marketing include:

»  adata deletion exercise in order to
ensure data maintained is in line
with our data retention policy;

»  outsourcing CPTS screening to a
third-party supplier for specific list
scresning;

»  quarterly training for sales and
marketing staff; and

+ anewly formed Data Protaction
Compliance Committee which is
responsible for meonitoring Centaur's
onguing compliance with data
protection laws.

Recent guidance published by the

1CO relating to the use of cookies, and
further changes to the laws relating to
data privacy, ad tech and electronic
marketing expected in late 2019/20, wil!
further increase the regulatory burden

for businesses like Centaur, and the
requirerments in this regard will need to be
kept under review.

The business has taken advice on what
it needs to mitigate its risk in respect of
the CCPA and has a plan in place for
actioning this.

Staff training will be provided in-house
on key legislation, and any changes to it,
where appropnate including PECR.

Centaur's in-house lawyer keeps abreast
of material developments in data
protection iaw and regulaticn and advice
from external law firms is sought where
appropriate. Given the increasingly
global nature of our business and our
customers Centaur’s approach to
complying with data protection laws in
other jurisdictions should be kept under
review.
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Rank Risk

Serious systems
failure (affecting core
systems and multiple
products or functions)
orbreach of IT
network security (as a
result of a deliberate
cyber-attack or
unintenitional event).

Description of risk and impact

Centaur relies on its IT network to conduct
its operations. The IT netwark is at risk of

a serious systems failure or breach of its
security controls. This could result from
deliberate cyber-attacks or unintentional
avents and may include third parties gaining
unauthorised access to Centaur's IT network
and systems resulting in misappropriation of
its financial assets, proprietary or sensitive
information, corruption of data, or aperational
disruption, such as unavaitability of our
websitas and our digital products to users or
unavailability of support platforms.

[t Centaur suffers serious cyber-attacks,
whether by a third party or insider, any
operaticnal disruption may directly affect our
revenues or collection activities.

Centaur may incur significant costs and
suffer other negative consequences, such
as ramediation costs (including liability for
stolen assets or information, and repair of
any damage caused to Centaur's IT network
infrastructure and systems). Centaur may

controls.

also suffer reputational damage and loss
of investor confidence resulting from any
operaticnal disruption.

Viability statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,
the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period to
December 2022, taking account of the
Group’s current position, the Group’s
strategy, the Board’s risk appetite and,

as documented above, the principal risks
facing the Group and how these are
managed. Based on the resuits of this
analysis, the Directors have a reasonable
expectaticn that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period to
December 2022.

The Board has determined that the
three-year period to December 2022 is an
appropriate period over which to provide

its viability statement because the Board's
financial planning horizon covers a three-
year period. In making their assessmeant, the
Directors have taken account of the Group’s
existing financing arrangements to 2022
{which allows extensicns to 2023 on similar
terms), cash flows, dividend cover and other
kay financial ratios over the period.

These metrics are subject to stress testing
which involves sensitising a number of

the main assumptions underlying the
forecasts both individually and in unison.
The main assumption sensitised included

a scenario where the Group's forecast
EBITDA dropped by 50%, as well as short
term cash conversion issues. Scenarics
relating to the current immediate risk relating
to coronavirus werg also considered. In a
scenario where the Group's EBITDA fell by
86% over the three-year financial planning
horizon, and without management taking
mitigating actions, the Group would breach
its banking covenants in tha fourth quarter
of 2022. Where appropriate, this analysis

is carmied out to evaluate the potential
impact of the Group's principal rigks actually
occurring, such as failure to deliver a high
growth performance culture, UK economic
conditions, breach of security, data
compliance and systems failure. Sensitising
the model for changes in the assumptions
and risks affirmed that the Group would
remain viable over the three-year period to
December 2022.

Risk mitigation/control procedure

Centaur has invested significantly n

its IT systems and where services are
outsourced to suppliers, contingency
planning is carried out to mitigate risk of
supplier failure.

The ongoing development of CRM (PCI
compliance) and finance systems.
Lockton's, our insurance acdvisor, has
actvised us in relation to additional cover
that is appropriate to insure against a
serious failure of IT network security

Movement in
rick

The Board
considers
this risk to be
broadly the
same as the
prior year.

QOur policies were upgraded in 2018 to
further ensure our staff are clear and
accountable for their IT compliance. This
is checked on an ongoing basis.

In 20719 Centaur also impiemented a
number of security improvements to
better protect and monitor our network,
systerns and data eg CloudStrike.

New starters receive both Terms and
Conditions plus the staff [T policy.

Going concern basis of
accounting

In accordance with provision 30 of the

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,
the Directors’ statement as to whether
they consider it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements and their
identification of any material uncertainties,
including the principal risks outlined above,
to the Group's ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial
statements and for the foreseeable future
can be found on page 38.
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The Board recognises its responsibility

to take into consideration the needs and
concerns of all our stakeholders as part

of its discussicn and decisicn-making
processes. By understanding and
communicating with our key stakeholdar
groups, we can factor their insights and
concerns into these discussions and ensure
that we act in a way most likely to promote
the success of the Company for the benefit
of members as a whole.

Qur people are our most important asset
and are crucial to our success, Having the
right people with the right skills at all levels
in our organisation is critical to building a
quality, sustainable business and delivering
our strategy. Gur culture is characterised

as customer focused, commercial, diverse,
grounded and innovative with a Can do, Will
do, Now! attitude,

The Beard also recognises the importance
of developing the values and cutture of

the Company and the necassity for high
standards of business conduct throughout
the Group to support its strategy. These
values and standards are cascaded to

the business from the executive directors,
through the Executive Committee and the
senior leadership team, and to employees
via town hall gatherings and other formal
and informal methods of communication.

During 2019 we established a workforce

advisory panel to cover Diversity, Inciusion,

Culture and Engagement (DICE). This
comprises ten employees from across
the Group and is led by one of cur senior
leadership team. DICE reports to the CEO
and Carol Hosey has been appointed as
the Non-Executive director sponsor of
DICE. Her role is to ensure that employee
sentiment is clearly communicated to the
Board.

She will also ensure that our gender,
diversity and environmental ambitions are
realised with actionable plans.

Mare information an people, talent
develcpment, health and safety, diversity,
gender pay. anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy, environment, emissions
and charitable donations can be found in
the Corporate Responsibility saction on
pages 29 to 31,
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The table below sets out our key stakehoider groups. Each stakeholder group requires an individual engagement approach to promote
effective and mutually beneficial relaticnships.

Shareholders

Qur shareholders
play an important
rale in monitoring
and safeguarding the
governance of the
Company.

Cusioners
Without customers thers
is no business.

Employaes

The Company has a
divarse workforce which
is recognised as a key
assat of our business.

At 31 December 2019
there was a total of 565
employees based in
London, Pertsmeuth and
New York,

Stratague SLBOLOTS
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How we engage?

Formal documented shareholder
readshow rmeetings, post results
prasentations and market updates.

Other ad hoc shareholder meetings as
required and requested.,

Annual General Meeting

Consultation prior, during and post
strategic decision making or execution.

Every day we interact with a wide variety
of existing and potential customers. This
is with a view to understand customer
requirements/feedback, to manage their
expectations and to generate profitable
revenue.

Bi-monthiy Executive Committee
meetings.

Maonthly Leadership team meetings.
Weekly team meetings.

Quarterly town hails to empioyees are
recorded for viewing by our Pertsmouth
and New York offices.

A weekly online sense check
questionnaire {"ENGAGE").

A quarierly engagement survey.

Annual appraisals and objective-setting
process.

DICE established so that &l employees
have a voice and their views are
considered.

Mestings with suppliers as appropriate,
together with negotiations on the terms
and conditions of supply.

The Company supports lccal
communities and charitable
organisations through diract fundraising
and donations. During the year, the
Company supported two charities.

Why we engage?

We work to ensure that our shareholders
and their representatives have a good
understanding of, and are supportive of,
our strategy, business mode!, opportunity
and cultura.

To help cur custcmers achieve their

goals. Customers provide repeatable and
recurring revenues and some customers
provide significant revenue. The impact of
strategic decisions on our customers are
carefully considerad and monitored on an
ongoing basis.

To ensure that communication is clear and
understood throughout the Company.

The Company is working hard to drive
its status as a destination employer by
creating the right environment and culture.

ENGAGE analyses general motivation
and sentiment. This is anonymised and
therefore encourages employees to be
honest about issues or problems.

Quarterly employee engagement surveys
for all employees to have a voice with
measurable KPI's benchmarked. The
Company believes that diversity enhances
business performance and environment.

There are certain strategic suppliers
who underpin the business operaticns.
Strategic decisions consider the impact
on these suppliers, in terms of capability,
scale, value for money and risk.

To be a good corporate citizen and give
back to the communities and charities
that are imporiant to our employees.

What matters to this
Group?

Strategy and business
model, long term
share valus growth,
sustainable dividend
pelicy. financial stability
and culture.

Innovative preducts.

The customer
axpenence.

Customer satisfaction.

Opportunities for
employee development
and progression. Agile
working patterns.
Opportunity to share
ideas and make a
difference, diversity and
inclusion and climate
consideration.

To ensure that Centaur
can comply with agreed
terms and conditions.
The values of our
suppliers and their high
standards of business
conduct.

Innevation and product
development.

Inclusion of employee
sentiment and what is
important to them.
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Our people

Tolens dzuzgorent

Centaur Media is committed to developing
a culture of enwircnrmental awareness and
social responsibility and we seek, where
appropriate, to incorporate environmentally
and socially responsible practices into the
way we deliver services and products to
our customers and procure goods and
services from third parties. The Group has
a whistleblowing poficy in place enabling
employees to report any concerns about
improper practices, including relating to

its environmenta! and sccial responsibility
practices.

T SOATT e T

‘We have adopted an online application
(ENGAGE) which gives employees the
opportunity to provide feedback on a weekly
basis and enables management to get a
reguiar temperature check on mativation
and real time feedback from their teams.

“eentn and sotats

We are committed to the safety of our

staff. We have a health and safety policy
which sets out Centaur's responsibilities
and those of its staff concerning health and
safety in the workplace. Our Health and
Safety Committee, which is responsible for
overseeing the application of this Palicy,
meets at least every six months and reports
directly to the Board on all material related
matters, Due to the nature of the business
and following our move to WeWork serviced
offices in Waterloo, risk of work-based
accidents is relatively low, but the Group
takes its responsibilities for the health and
safety of its employees seriously. Cur Office
Manager is responsible for maintaining a
safe environment for employees and an
accident book is available to all staff in
Reception. We periodically carry out internal
health and safety reviews, taking follow

up action to maintain standards where
necessary, and undertake staff training in

STRATEGIC REPCRT

relation 1o fire safety. Where work-related
activities take place, which have a higher
risk attached — such as travel, marketing
events and outdoor activities — additional
planning is undertaken which includes a
risk assessment and mitigation plan. To
minimise risk to the health and safety of our
employees in the event of a major disaster
or emergency, our business continuity plan
is regularly revised and tested.

D3ty

Centaur Media strongly encourages diversity
across the Group and is committed to
recruiting and promating the most talented
people from the widest pool and providing
equal opportunities for all employees and
prospective ermployees. To support this aim,
the Group has an Equal Qpportunities Policy
which covers recruitment and selection,
promotion, training and development and
standard contract terms for all staff. We also
support apprenticeships which increass our
talent pool and demcnstrates the Group’s
commitment to reaching out to young
people from a variety of backgrounds.

Wae offer internships and work experience
opportunities for people from a variety of
backgrounds.

At 31 December 2018 one of our six (17%)
Board members was female and cne out of
five (20%;} of our Executive Committee was
female. The percentages fluctuated during
the year due to changes in the Board’s
membership. From 1 April 2020, following
the appointment of two new Non-Executive
Directors, one-third of the Board will be
fermale.

As at 31 December 2019, our workforce
overall was 51% female (288 employees)
and 49% male (277 employees). We proudly
support flexible working opportunities, and
8% of staff are employed on a part-time
basis.

et 1
foenilier L0y

We carry out an annual analysis on Gender
Pay and will be submitting and publishing
the result for 2019 at the beginning of April
2020. The report can be found at www.
centaurmedia.com.

s
PIS R
We implemented the provisions of the

UK Modern Slavery Act 2015in 2016
and adopted an anti-slavery and human
trafficking policy. Our Slavery and Hurman
Trafficking Statement is published on

our website in March each yvear at www.
centaurmedia.com.
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Environment and climate
change

DAttt
Climate change remains cne of the

greatest challenges of our times and every
company has to play its part in minimising
its environmental footprint. Centaur Media
operates in the media sector, predominantly
in the United Kingdom, and consequently,
while Centaur recognises that its business
has an impact on the environment, including
through the use of energy and paper, our
impact on the environment is less significant
than that of companies operating in many
cther sectors. As we continue to increase
our digital capabilities and products, and

to reduce our reliance on print advertising,
we are reducing our use of consumable
iterns such as paper and plastic over time.
The majority of our employees worked out
of a single location at Wells Street, London
until we moved to WeWork in Waterloo,
London during November and December
2019, We have only one other UK location
in Portsmouth which means that the

Group has been abie to take advantage of
consolidating building-related environmental
impacts and benefiting from Group sharing
of items such as photocopiers. The Group
also has a small serviced office in New York.

The Group actively seeks to minimise
adverse environmental impacts and te
promote good environmental practices
wherever possibie. We increasingly aim
to ensure that our major suppliers are
environmentally responsible. For example,
our main paper and print supplier helds the
ISC 14001 {environmental management)
accreditation and is certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council and Programme for
the Endorsernent of Forestry Certification.

Wsa donate used computer equipment

to Camara Education, which is a social
enterprise dedicated to improving education
in disadvantaged communities across

the world. Donations made by Centaur

in 2019 have benefited schools in Kenya
and Tanzania. Each will impact at least 24
children and the donated equipment will go
on to benefit at least 1,500 children.

Sorme of our other measures taken at
Wells Street, prior to cur move to WeWork,
included:

use of energy-efficient lighting, including
replacing existing light fittings with
energy efficient LED light fittings in

the Wells Street building including all
comman parts;

installation of motion sensors in offices
to control lighting;

analysing and adjusting the timing

of boilers and chillers for office air
conditioning to increase energy
efficiency;

+ stopping the use of non-recyciable cups
and reducing the use of paper hand
towels;

*  buying paper that is Forest Stewardship
Council ('FSC") accredited which means
that the paper has been sourced in
an environmentally friendly, socially
responsible and economically viable
manner;

* active engagement in the recycling of
cans, ting, plastic, glass, cardooard
and paper, including the replacement of
traditional waste bins with recycling bins
throughout the Wells Street building as
part of a centralised recycling system
originally rolled out in 2015, together
with a monthly report showing the
percentage of waste collected that was
recycled:;

+  use of follow-me printing and recycling
of printer cartridges where possible,

» increasing the use of aqueous inks,
which limit the release of woiatile organic
compounds;

~  use of eco-friendly taxis and courier
vehicles that are less than three years
old, and use of cyclist couriers, where
possible;

+  cycle to work scheme and other
measures that facilitate cycling to work
by employees, such as the provision of
showers, changing rooms and Icckers,
as well as bike storage facilities at the
Wells Street building; and

«  encouraging staff to use public
transport by provision of season ticket
loans.

Following the move to WeWork at Waterloo
we now benefit from WeWork initiatives that
span across three operaticnal programme
pillars: energy, materials and health. They
have eradicated single-use plastic from
100% of EMEA sites, reducing waste
disposal and ocean pollution. By influencing
the wider supply chain they prevent more
plastic from entering their buildings. They
partner with Creator Awards winner
BicBean to recycle four tonnes of coffee
per month, which are turned into burnable
logs. Office recycling bins and increased
waste streams are in 100% of UK buildings.
WeWork look for opportunities to upcycle
their waste streams into new products using
circular design and turn textiles and plastics
into new materials for their spaces. They
have achigved "Zero Waste to Landfill” for
100% of their EU sites. WeWork energy
initiatives are focussed around giobal
continuity, growth impact reduction and
innovation making current operations as
energy efficient as possible. WeWork
spaces are designed to promote wellbeing
showcasing innovative design for healthier
and wellness-focused work environments,
using a robust indoer environmental quality
sensor network and using healthy and
sustainable cleaning products and methods
in their buildings. They also promote
wellbeing and social impact through regular
community led events. {source: Operational
sustainability at Wework EMEA overview
2019)
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We continue to measure our carbon footprint by monitoring our energy usage and we are
pleased to confirm that we are compliant with the EU Energy Efficiency Directive 'Energy
Saving Cpportunity Scheme’ ('ESOS’).

The greenhouse gas {GHG’) emissions from our operations during the year are sat out
below.

Yt m T D 2300 = TG T
2018

LTI Tonnes CO?
Scope 1 (gas, fuel and car mieage) .5 72
Scope 2 (electricity and steam) 34 428
Total GHG emissions 132 500
Average number of employees 338 758
Emissions per employee 507 0.7
Community
Crer b 2 doranons

The Group suppeorts local communities and charitable organisations through direct
fundraising, denation and pro-bone work. During the year, a total of £75,125 was donated
to The Alzheimers Society our chosen charity partner for 2019. These donations comprised
employee contributions, a Group contribution, and third-party contributions raised through
our events. We used our events to raise money from third parties including requesting
donations in return for entry for awards and taking collections at the events. In 2018,
£71,443 was donated to Macmillan Cancer Support and £25,713 was donated to The
Connection at St Martin-in-the-Fields. Every year, the Group offers each employee a paid
day off to spend volunteering for the not-for-profit cause ar charity of their choice. Employee
contributions were raised through a range of Company-wide fundraising events including
sporting events and bake sales. We also operate a Give-As-You-Earn scheme through the
payroll and cffer employees the option to undertake Volunteer Days.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the
Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

¥7 March 2020

STRATEGIC REPORT
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Colin joined Centaur on 1
September 2018 and became
Chair on 30 June 2019, Until
mid-June 2018, Colin was
Finance Director of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC
(Euromoney), where he worked
in leadership roles for 22 years,
He is also an independent
non-executive director, and
audit committee chair, at M&C
Saatchi PLC, and a non-
executive director and trustee
of City Lit., London’s leading
adult education coliege. During
his time at Euromoney, Colin
contributed to its growth to
become a glokal, multi-brand
information business that

has successfully transformed
itself from its traditional media
origins into a company that

is more customer-centric

and subscription-based. He
has extensive M&A expertise
through Euromoney’s many
successful transactions. Prior
to joining Euromoeney, Colin wag
a Director at Price Waterhouse
Europe, where he qualified as a
Chartered Accountant (ICABW).

Member of the Bemuneration
and Nomination Committees.
Chair of Remuneration
Committee until 5 February
2020.

Swag joined Centaur in July
2016 and has previously

held senicr international
general management and
commercial financial positions
with several blue chip FMCG
companies, including United
Biscuits plc, Guinness

plc and Virgin, where he
operated as a trouble-shooter,
value creator and change
agent. As Group Finance
Director of Biccompatibles
International plc, he co-led the
commercialisation and growth
of the company with the CEQ,
increasing the share price
fourfold in a falling market. Since
then he has been a C-suite
director of three private equity
backed businesses in a variety
of sectors with the common
themes of strategy refresh and
turnaround. He has also led

a substantial number of M&A
transactions and multi-lender
refinancings. Swag qualified
as a Charered Accountant at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and is a Warwick MBA.

Simon jeoined Centaur on 6
November 2019. He has spent
the past 10 years as CFO

of BMI Research, a leading
provider of macroeconomic,
industry and financial market
analysis, which was acquired
by Fitch Group in 2014, During
his time at BMI Research
revenues more than doubled
as the company exganded
internationally with Simen's
support, Prior to this, Simen
was CFO of Newfound, an
AlM-listed property and leisure
group. Simon began his career
at PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP where he qualified as a
Chartered Accountant and
worked in London and Australia.

Wiiliam joined Centaur in July
2016. William is Chairman

and CEQ of Clear Channel
International. He served as a
non-executive director of Hays
plc from 2004-2014, has been
a board member of the Donmar
Warehouse Theatre since

2013 and is an independent
non-executive director of Britvic
plc. Wiliam was a Partner and
Leader of European Branding
Practice at McKinsey & Co.

He has previously served in
international leadership roies

at major advertising agencies,
inciuding as European Chairman
and CEC of BBDO (Omnicom),
European Chairman of Young
and Rubicam (WPP Group);
Chairman and CEQ of Ammirati
Puris Lintas Northern Europe
{Interpublic Group); Global
Strategic Planning Director of J.
Walter Thompson Worldwide;
and CEQ of PPGH/AJWT
Amsterdam.

Member of the Rermuneration
and Nomination Committees.
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Non-Executive Director

Rebecca joined Centaur in
January 2011. She began her
career in media at Reed Elsevier
launching telecom-based
information services across
Europe. She has since worked
across the USA and UK at
Excite@Home, NBC Universal
and Hearst Gerporation. In her
current executive consultancy
capacity, Bebecca focuses on
re-aligning organisations using
a data driven, customer-centric
and collaborative operational
approach.

Member of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration
Committess. Rebecca will retire
from the Board and Committees
on 31 March 2020,

Robert joined Centaur in
January 2010. Robert,

a qualified Chartered
Accountant, was a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
where he was Chairman of the
PwC European Entertainment
and Media Practice for 12 years,
retiring in 20086, Since then

he has been a non-executive
director and chairman of the
audit committee of a number

of public companies.

Chair of the Audit Committee
and mamber of the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. Robert will retire
from the Board and Committees
on 31 March 2020.

Chair of the Audit Commitiee
and mernber of the
Remuneraticn Committee.
Robert will retire from the
Board and Committees on
31 March 2020.

Carol joined Centaur cn 5
February 2020. Carol is
currently Group HR Director
at Mace, the internaticnal
consultancy and construction
group. She has extensive
remuneration experience at
executive and board level
and has spent over 20 years
in senior HA roles, including
pasitions at Mitie Group plc,
Nationwide Building Society and
Lloyds Banking Group.

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee with
effect from & February 2020.
She is also the Non-Executive
Director sponsor of Centaur’s
workforce advisory panel known
as DICE.

Leslie-Ann joined Centaur on

1 March 2020. Leslie-Ann

is a Chartered Accountant
and will become Chair of
Centaur's Audit Committee
when Robert Boyle retires from
the Board on 31 March 2020.
Leslie-Ann is an experienced
non-exacutive director and
chairs the audit committees at
Learning Technologies Group
plc and Induction Healthcare
Group PLC. Sheis also a
non-executive director of
Bloomsbury Publishing Pic.
Leslie-Ann's executive roles
have included CFO of the B2B
publisher Metal Bulletin plc
and the online auctioneer Go
Industry ple.

Member of the Audit,
Nomination and Rermnuneration
Committees.
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Group Head of HR

Steve is Group Managing
Director of Xeim. He oversees
the Xeim brands ccmprising
Marketing Week, Festival of
Marketing, Creative Review,
Econsultancy including
Oystercatchers, Influencer
Intelligence and Fashion

& Beauty Monitor, and
MarketMakers including

Really. Prior to this Steve was
responsible for Centaur’s
Media and Events portfolios
and Home Interest Division.
Before joining Centaur in 2015
Steve held Managing Director
roles at WGSN, i2i Events,
Emap Communications (now
Ascential) and Emap Consumer
Media {(now Bauen). He has
experience of running multi-
media, international businesses
in key sectors across both B2B
and consumer markets.

Andy is Managing Director of
The Lawyer. He joined Centaur
in 2017 and has over 20 years’
axperience of running B2B

and B2C online businesses,
including Managing Director
pasitions in online acquisitions
and start-ups at ITV, Trinity
Mirror and Guardian Media
Group. Prior to joining Centaur,
he was Managing Director of
Public Sector at EMAR, part of
Ascential, where he successfully
transformed the market-leading
Health Service Journal from
print to digital-only, and from
advertising to subscriptions.

At Centaur he has successfully
delivered substantial new digital
products and accelerated
growth in subscriptions. Angy
holds a first-class degree from
Oxford and an MBA from IMD
Business School, Switzerland.

Jacquie is the Group Head of
HR and joined the Executive
Committee in January 2020,
Prior to joining Centaur in 2015,
Jacquie worked for Lioyds
Banking Group, where she
undertook a number of senior
HR roles. She also spent five
years working for Lloyd's Retail
Banking Division in Gustomer
Experience and as Head of
Engagement in the London
2012 Sponsorship Team. Talent
and performance are critical to
get right in any business and
Jacquie is particularly interested
in the role that diversity, culture
and engagement piay in
ensuring that Centaur achieves
to its highest potential.
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- DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Centaur Media Plc ('the Company’ or 'the Group’),
a company incorperated and demiciled in England and Wales,
prasent their report on the affairs of the Group and Company
together with the audited Company and consclidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,

There are no significant events since the balance sheet date for
disclosure in the financial statements.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business
information and specialist consultancy to selected professicnal and
commerclal markets within the marketing and legal prefessions, our
two sectors. The principal activities of the Company are those of a
holding company.

Business review

The Strategic Report, incerperating the CEQ's Review, on pages

4 to 31 sets out a summary of the Group strategic objectives,
business model, key performance measures, operating and financial
reviews, future developmenits, principal risks, $172 statement and
the corporate responsibility staterment.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Details of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions are included in the
Corporate Responsibility section on page 31.

Research and development activities

The Group invests in systemns and wehsite development activities —
see note 11 to the financial statements for the internally generated
amecunts capitalised during the year. The Group does not incur any
significant research costs.

Dividends

A final ordinary dividend under the new dividend policy in respect

of the year to 31 December 2019 of 0.5p per share (2018: 1.5p) is
proposed by the Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at
the Annual General Meeting, will be paid en 29 May 2020 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business ¢n 11 May 2020.
On 25 October 2019, Centaur paid a special dividend of 2.0p

per share as a distribution of the proceeds from the divestments
along with the interim dividend of 1.5p per share. The Directors are
proposing a final ordinary dividend of 0.5p per share in May 2020.
The total ordinary and special dividends paid to shareholders relating
to the year will therefore be 4.0p per share (2018: 3.0p).

Swagatam Mukerji 80,289
Simon Longfield (appointed 6 November 2019) -
Colin Jones -
William Eccleshare -
Rcbert Boyle 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800
Carol Hosey (appointed 5 February 2020) -
Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1 March 2020) -
Neil Johnsan {resigned 30 June 2019)

Andria Vidler {resigned 30 September 2019) 185,190

1t Or date of resignation if earlier

Share capital and substantial shareholdings

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

24 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2018, and 17
March 2020 {being the last practicable date prior to publication),
notifications of interests at or above 3% in the issued voting share
capital of the Company had been received from the following:

31 December
2019

Aberforth Partners LLFPT 24.86% 24.86%
Artemis Investment Management
LLP* 9.52% 9.52%
Chelverton Asset Managementtt 8.10% 8.10%
Quaero Capital (Argos Funds)Tt 7.82% 7.82%
Grasham House Asset
Management 5.94% 6.09%
Graham Sherrentt 5.73% 573%
Ficelity Internationaltt 4.78% 5.26%
Aberdeen Standard Investmentstt 4.21% 4.27%
Harwood Capitalt1 3.46% 3.46%
Herald Investment Managementtt 3.16% 3.16%

t This Includes Wellcome Trust Limited which is managed by Aberforth Partners LLP

" (On 22 August 2019 Artamis announced that its posmons in the Company had been
historically over-reported. The correct parcentage of voting rights attached to their
shareholding is 9.52% rather than 14.18%

1t Figures derived from share register analysis

At 17 March 2020 and 31 December 2018, 6,964,613 (31
December 2018: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in
treasury, representing 4.60% (2018: 4.80%) of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2019, there were 800,000 (2018: 800,000) deferred
shares of 10p each which carry restricted voting rights and carry no
right to receive a dividend payment.

Directors and Directors’ interests

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are detailed below. All Directors served from 1 January
2019 unlass otherwise stated. The Board has decided to continue
obsening best practice by offering themselves for re-election annuaily.

56,312 136,601 137,754
34,499 34,499 34,499
120,000 120,000 120,000
- 117,037 117,037

- 14,800 14,800
100,000 100,000 N/A
189,638 N/A

4,348

The Directors’ interests in long-term incentive pians are disclosed in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 45 to 61.
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Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions

By virtue of article 217 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision (within

the meaning given by section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006) is in force at the date
of this report in respect of each Director of
the Company and was in force throughout
the year,

The Company has purchased appropriate
insurance in respect of legal actions against
Directors and officers.

Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made donations
of £75,125 to The Alzheimers Society its
nominated charity for 2019, which included
third party donations collected at events
{2018: £71,443 donation to Macmilan
Cancer Support and £25,713 to The
Connection at $t Martin-in-the-Fields).

No political donations were made during the
year (2018: £nil).

Employment policy

The Group is an equal opportunities
employer and appoints employees without

reference 1o age, sex, ethnic group or
religious beliefs.

It is the Group’s policy to give full
consideration to suitable applications

for employment by disabled persons.
Oppoertunities also exist for employees of the
Group who become disabled to continue in
their employment or to be trained for other
positions in the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee
involvernent at ali levels, both through
monthly employee briefings and by direct
access to managers and the Exscutive
Committee. In 2019 a workforce advisory
panel known as DICE was set up and more
details can be found in the Strategic Report
on page 11. In addition, the Share Incentive
Plan as described in note 25 encourages
employees' participation in the Group's
performance.

All employees are regularly briefed on the
financial and economic factors affecting the
Group’s performance and new initiatives
through monthly town hall meetings and
management cascade communication.

36

Significant agreements

The Group's bank facility agreement is a
significant agreement that is terminabie
on a change of control of the Company.

In addition, awards under certain of the
long-term incentive plans, details of which
are set out in note 25, will vast or may be
exchanged for awards of a purchaser’s
shares upon a change of contral of the
Company.

Conflicts of interest

Following the implementation of legislation
on conflicts of interest, reflected in the
changes to the Company’s Articles of
Association in 2008, procedures are in place
to deal with such conflicts and they have
operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation to the financial
risk management and use of financial
instruments by the Group is presented in
note 28 to the financial statements.

Information required under the
listing rules

In accordance with the UK Financial
Conduct Authority’s Listing Rules (LR
9.8.4C), the information to be included in
the Annual Report and financial statements,
where applicable, under LR 9.8.4, is set out
in thig Directors’ Report, with the exception
of details of transactions with sharehclders
which ts set out on page 58.

Going concern

The Directors have carefully considered the
Group's net current liability position, have
assessed the Company's ability to continue
trading, and have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources
to continue In operational existence for

at least twelve months from the date of

this report and for the foreseeable future.
This inciudes consideration of downside
scenarios relating to the current immediate
risk from coronavirus. See note 1{a} of the
financia! staterments for further details and
page 26 for our viability statement.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company
are shown in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

The Directors' Staterment on Corporate
Governance in respect of the Group's
compliance with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code is set
out on page 37.

Auditor and disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors confirm that, so far as the
Directors are aware, there is no relevant
audit inforrmation of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and the Directors
have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Directors in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit inferrmation and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of that
informaticn.

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions
of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors’ responsibility statement is
included on page 62.

Approved by the Beard of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

17 March 2020




www.centaurmedia.com

- DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to high standards
of corporate governance and supports the
UK Corporate Governance Code published
in 2018, The Board sets out its report below
on how the Group has applied the principles
of, and complied with, the UK Corporate
Governance Code during the year.

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the provisions
set out in the UK Cerporate Governance
Code throughout the year. The Board is
committed to maintaining a structure which
establishes a sound corporate governance
framework on behalf of the Company’s
shareholders. Throughout the year, the
Group has complied with all the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
axcept for those set cut below.

In contravention of Provision 32 of the
Code, Colin Jones remained as Chair of
the Remuneration Committee when he was
appointed as Chair of the Company on 30
June 2019 to ensure continuity following
Neil Johnson’s resignation and whilst the
recruitment process for new non-executive
directors took place. Carol Hosey was
appointed as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee, in place of Colin Jones, when
she joined the Board on & February 2020.

The Board

As at 31 December 2019, the Board had
four Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors (Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer). On 5 February 2020,
Carol Hosey was appeinted to the Board as
an Independent Non-Executive Director and
as Chair of the Remuneration Committee.
On 1 March 2020, Leslie-Ann Reed was
appointed to the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and will become
Chair of the Audit Committee when Robert
Boyle retires on 31 March 2020. In addition,
Rebecca Miskin will also retire from the
Board on 31 March 2020. Biographies for
each currently serving Director are shown

on pages 32 to 33, The Board endeavours
to maintain diversity in its composition

with respect to gender, skills, knowledge
and length of service in order to ensure
the balanced and effective running of the
Company. Cofin Jones is Chair of the Board
and was independent on appointment, He
leads the Board and ensures that both
Executive and Non-Executive Directers
make available sufficient time to carry cut
their duties in an appropriate manner, that
all Directors receive sufficient financial and
operational information, and that there is
proper debate at Board meetings.

The Board is responsibie for the leadership
of the Company and the Group, and in
discharging that respansibility it makes
decisions cbjectively and in the best
interests of the Group and its stakeholders.
The section 172 Statement is set out in the
Strategic Repaort ¢n pages 27 to 28. The
Board sets the vision, culture, values and
standards for the Group. The balance of the
Board, together with the advice sought from
the Executive Committee members and the
Company's external adviscrs, ensures that
no one individual has unfettered powers

of decision. The Board delegates day-to-
day responsibility for the running of the
Company to the Chief Executive.

The Chair is responsible for the effective
performance of the Board through a
schedule of matters reserved for approval
by the Board (comprising issues considered
most significant to the Group in terms of
financial impact and risk) and control of the
Board agenda. The Chair conducts Board
and sharehoider mestings and ensures
that all Directors are properily briefed. The
Chief Executive, supported by the Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Committee,
is responsible to the Board for running

the business and implementing strategy.
The Board reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors and the Group against
agreed budgets and against the Group’s
objectives, strategy and values.

The Senior Independent Director is William
Eccleshare, who is also a member of the
Rermuneration and Naomination Committees.
The Company Secretary is Healen Silver.

The Company Secretary assists the Chair

in ensuring there is efficient communication
hetween all directors, the committees

and senior management, as well as the
professional development of Directors.
Independent advisors including lawyers,
rermuneration specialists and external
auditors are available to advise the Non-
Executive Directors at the Company's
expense. All of the Non-Executive Directors
are independent, and the Chair was
independent on appeintment. Committee
meetings are held independently of Board
mestings and invitations tc attend are
extended by the Committee Chair to

other Directors, the Group's advisors and
management as appropriate. The terms

of reference of the Audit Committee,

the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committes, including their
roles and the authority delegated to them by
the Board, are available on reguest from the
Company Secretary and will be available at
the AGM.
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Board meetings
During the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows:

Colin Jones ! Chair - Member Chair
William Eccleshare Senior Independent Director - Member Member
Rebecca Miskin Non-Executive Director Meambear Member Member
Robert Boyle ? Non-Executive Director Chair Member Member
Carol Hosey ' Non-Executive Director - Chair Member
Leslie-Ann Reed 2 Non-Executive Director Member Member Member
Swagatam Mukerji Chief Executive - - -

Simon Longfield Chief Financial Officer - - -
{appointed 6 November 2019)

Formor direactors

Andria Vidler Chief Executive - - -

{resigned 30 September 2019)

Neil Johnson ' Chair - - -
{resigned 30 June 2019)

! Carol Hosey was appomnted as Chair of the Remuneration Committee and Colin Jones stepped down as Charr of the Remuneration Committee on 5 February 2020.
Colin Jones replaced Neil Johnson as Chair of the Board on 30 June 2019,

? Leslie-Ann Reed was appainted to the Board on 1 March 2020. She will replace Robert Boyle as Chair of the Audit Committee when he refires on 31 March 2020.

The number of scheduled full Board mestings and committee meetings during the year along with attendance of Directors was as follows:

Number of scheduled 7 5 4 3
meetings held:
Meetings Meetings Meatings Meetings
Meatings eligible to Meetings eligble to Meetings eligible to Meetings eligible to
attended attend attended attend attended attend attended attend
Colin Jones 7 7 3 3 4 4 3 3
William Eccleshare® 6 7 - - 4 4 2 3
Rebecca Miskin 7 7 5 5 4 4 3 3
Robert Boyle 7 7 5 5 4 4 3 3
Swagatam Mukerji 7 7 - - - - - -
Simon Longfield (appointed 6
November 2019} 1 1 - - - - - -
Neil Johnson (resigned 30 June
2019) 3 3 - - - - 1 1
Andria Vidler {resigned 30
September 2019)° 5 5 - - - - - ~
Carol Hosey {appointed 5
February 2020)
Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1
March 2020}

1 7 addrtional unscheduled Board meetings were held mainly relating to the divestments. 3 additional Remuneration Comimitiee meetings and 1 addiional Nomination Committee
meeling were also held.

2 Wiliam Eccleshare was due to dial into fwo meetings but was unable 1o do so due to technical issues.

3 Andria Vidier's married surname is Gibb and she appears as Andria Gibb on some records kept by Companies House
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If a Director is unable to attend a meeting
he or she is provided with the same level
of information as the other Directors in
advance of the meeting and given the
opportunity to exprass views, which wil
then be shared at the meeting.

In addition to the key items identified for
discussion by the Committees above, the
Beard discussed the following matters at
the Board meetings during the year:

+  Review of financial performance against
budget and prior year;

- Review of Group strategy leading to
the divestment of various parts of the
business;

Review of dividend policy and
payments;

+  Review and approval of budgets;

»  Review of Group key performance
indicators;

+  Approval of divestrments;

«  Approval of financial reports and
communication to shareholders and
investors; and

Approval of the Group’s internal control
policy, including a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks and
corporate governance environment.

Board assessment and Directors’
performance evaluation

The Beard undertakes a formal evaluation
of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Diractors.
Individual evaluation aims to show whether
each Director continues to contribute
effectively and to demonstrate commitment
to the rcle {including commitment of time
for Board and committee meetings and
other duties). Evaluations are undertaken
annually by self-assessment and the
Chair's performance is also evaluated by
the other Non-Executive Directors at a
separate meeting for this purpcse each
year. In addition, the Chief Executive is
subject to an annual performance review
with the Chair. New Directors receive an
induction programme and all the Directors
are encouraged 1o undertake continuous
professional development programmes as
appropriate. The Group maintains insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its
Directors.

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day
running of the Campany to the Executive
Directors, wha in turn share the operational
running of the Group with the Executive
Cammittee. Throughout the year, the
Executive Committee was the primary body
implementing operational management
across the Group. The role of the Executive
Committee is to review:

Financial performance, the budget and
forecasts;

> Human capital management and
resource allocation including capital
expenditure;

+  Operational efficiency and
developments {including Group IT,
procurement and facilities);

»  Product development;

»  Market development;

+  Business continuity planning;

* Internal and external communications;

*  Business transformaticn and change
managerment; and

»  Acquisition and disposal plans,

The biographies of the members of the
Executive Committee are set out on
page 34.

Relations with sharehoiders

The Company encourages meaningful
dialogue with all stakeholders. Shareholder
communication centres primarily on the
publication of annual reports, periodic
press releases, investor prasentations

and trading updates. The Chairman

and Executive Directors are availatle for
discussions with shareholders throughout
the year and particularly around the time
of results anncuncements. The Sentor
Independent Director is also available
should any shareholder wish to draw any
matters to his attention. The Directors

are available for comment throughout

the year and at all General Meetings of

the Company. Centaur Media values the
views of its shareholders and recognises
their interest in the Company’s strategy
and performance, Board membership and
quality of management. The Group therefore
has an active programme to meet and make
prasentations to its current and potential
shareholders to discuss its objectives.
More details on engagernent with our
stakeholders are set out in the section

172 Statement in the Strategic Report on
pages 27 to 28. investors are encouraged
to attend the AGM and to participate

in proceedings formally or sharing their
views with Board members informally

after the meeting. The Chairs of the Audit,
Remungration and Nomination Committees
are available to answer questions. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each issue so
that they can be given proper consideration
and there is a resolution to approve the
annual report and financial statements.

The Cornpany counts all proxy votes and
indicates the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution, after it has been voted on
by a show of hands. All shareholders can
gain access to the annual reports, trading
updates, announcements, press releases
and other Information about the Company
through the Gompany's website,
www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the business
are identified and assessed, and appropriate
controls and systems implemented to
ensure that the risk is managed. The
Group's risk register is kept by the Company
Secretary with the input from the Executive
Committee and Head of Legal and is
reviewed by the Audit Committee reguiarly
with appropriate mitigation actions also
being reported to and overseen by the
Committee.

Principal and emerging risks

The principal and emerging risks facing the
Greup, with asscciated mitigating controls,
are detailed on pages 22 to 26 within the
Strategic Report.

Ethics

The Group carries out its business in a

fair, honest and open mannet, ensuring

that it complies with all relevant laws and
regulations. The Company has specific
policies on fraud, director conflict, bribery,
whistleblowing and slavery and hurnan
trafficking, which are widely distributed and
compliance with these policies is monitored.
The HR team ensures that new job
opportunities are made available to existing
employees as well as to outside applicants
and that all employees are able to benefit
from training, career develogpment and
promotion opportunities where appropriate.
The recruitment of new personnel is made
without prejudice. and the Group believes in
equal opportunity and encourages diversity.
The analysis of the Group's workforce and
Board by gender is set out in the Corporate
Responsibility Report on page 29.

39



Centaur Media Plc

Annual Report and Financial Statements - 172 year ended 31 Deas moer 2019

- DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Through all our interactions with our
customers and partners we ensure that we
treat them fairly and openly while abiding

by the terms of contracts and relevant law.
Equally, we treat our suppliers fairly, and

do not exploit them cr their employess,
including the objective of paying all suppliers
within the agreed payment terms.

Meonitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group's system of risk
management and internal controls, and
these are reguiarly monitored by the Audit
Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit
Committee in this financial year can be
found in the Audit Committee Report on
pages 41 to 43.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosure in respect of the greenhouse
gas emissions of the Group that are
aftributable to human activity in tonnes of
carbon dioxide is set out in the Corporate
Responsibility Report on page 31.

Fraud

While the Group cannot guarantee to
prevent fraud, an internal control framework
is in place to reduce the likelihood of fraud
arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy
is available to employees on the Company’s
intranet, should any employee become
aware of any incidence of fraud.

Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary Directors are required
to natify their employing company of all
directorships they hold. Annual conflict

of interast disclosures require them to
disclose such directarships or other
relationships, which they or a person
connected to them may hold. These are
reviewed by the Board to assess the impact
on the Company and whether it would
impair the Group’s objectives.

Bribery Act 2010

In response to the Bribery Act 2010, the
Beard performed a risk assessment across
the Group and formalised its policy to
prevent bribery. The Beoard has in place
processes to prevent corruption or unethical
behaviour. The policy explains what is
considered a bribe or facilitation payment,
which are prohibited, and provides guidance
aver the levels of gifts, entertainment and
hospitatity that are considered reasonable.
Training is mandatory for all employees.
During 2018, an online training programme
was made available to all employees. The
Group'’s policy is communicated to all
appropriate third parties. The more rigorous
processes around declaring Directors’
interests and identifying potential conflicts
have improved the regular monitoring of the
Group's policy.

Whistleblowing

The Company is committed to the highest
standards of integrity and honesty. Along
with other policies which encourage this
behaviour, the Group's whistleblowing
palicy is available to employees on the
Company's intranet. This policy allows all
employees to disclose openly, in confidence
or ancnymously, any concerns they may
have about possible irmproper practices,

in financial or other matters. An escalation
process has been communicated to
empicyees. Any matters raised will be
investigated and resolved. The Audit
Committee will be notified of any issues
raised through this process and appropriate
action taken. However, no incidents were
noted during the year.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Company is committed to implementing
and enforcing effective systems and
controls to ensure modern slavery is not
taking place anywhere in its business or in
any of its supply chains. The Company’s
slavery and human trafficking statement

for the purposes of section 54 of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 is available on the
Company's website, www.centaurmedia.
com. The Group has in place an anti-slavery
and human trafficking policy which has
been made available t¢ employees on the
Company’s intranet and is notified to all new
joiners. Training has been provided to key
employees and the policy is communicated
to suppliers and other third parties where
appropriate.

Capital structure

Information on the share capital structure
is included in the Directors' Report on
page 35.

Approved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

IR A=
Company Secretary
17 March 2020
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* AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the
Audit Committee {'the Commitiee’) for
the year ended 31 December 2019, my
last as Audit Chair. This report details the
Audit Committee’s responsibilities ang
key activities over the pericd. The role of
the Committee is to protect the interests
of shareholders regarding the integrity

of financial information published by the
Groug and to oversee the effectiveness
of the external audit. It does this through
reviewing and reporting to the Board on
the Group's financial reporting, internal
controls and risk management processes
and the performance, independence
and effectiveness of the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘"PwC’).

Committee composition

During the year, the Committee comprised
Non-Executive Directors, Robert Boyle
(Chair}, Rebecca Miskin, and Colin Jores
until he became Chair of the Board on 30
June 2018, Their biographies are shown
on pagses 32 to 33. The membership of the
Committee is balanced and is considered
to contain the appropriate combination of
recent, relevant financial experience through
the Chair, as well as competence relevant
to the sector. On & February 2020, it was
announced that | will be retiring from the
Board on 31 March 2020 after more than
10 years of service and wil be replaced by
Leslie-Ann Reed, who will become the new
Chair of the Committee. | wish her every
SUCCESS,

The Executive Directors, reprasentatives

of the external auditor and other Group
executives regularly attend meetings at the
invitation of the Committee. The Committee
met five times during the year, with all
members attending. Meetings are held
throughout the year and timed to align with
the overall financial reporting timetable. At
least once during the year, the Committee
meets separately with the external auditor
and with management, and as Chairman |
am in regular direct contact with the external
auditors and with the Chief Financial Officer.

Roles and responsibilities

The main roles and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are to:

Monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any public
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, reviewing {and
approving) significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

Review and monitor the external
auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit
process, taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements;

Review and assess the Annual Report
in order to determine that it can advise
the Board that, taken as a whole,

the Annual Report is fair, balanced

and understandable, and provides
shareholders with the information they
need to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business model and
strategy as required by provision 27 of
the UK Corporate Governance Code;

+  Make recommendations to the Board in
relation ¢ the appointment and terms of
engagement of the external auditor and
t0 review and approve levels of audit
and non-audit remuneration;

+  Develop and impiement policy on the
engagement of the externai auditor to
supply non-audit services;

+  Review the effectiveness of the Group's
internal financial control and risk
management systems;

+ Review the Group’s financial and
operational policies and procedures
to ensure they remain effective and
relevant;

Qversee the whistleblowing
arrangements of the Group and to
ensure they are operating sffectively;
and

+ Report to the Board on how it has
discharged its responsibiiities.

Financial statements

During the year and ug untit the date of this
report, the Audit Committee undertook the
following activities to ensure the integrity of
the Group's financial statements and formal
announcements:

+ Regularly met with management and
the Chief Financial Officer to discuss
the resuits and performance of the
business;

Received reports from managemant
on the internal controls covering the
financial reporting process;
Reviewed and agreed the external
auditor's strategy in advance of their
audit for the year;

Reviewed compliance with requirements
under the UK Corporate Governance
Code, and in particular its impact

on the Strategic Report and Viability
Statement;

Discussed the report received from the
external auditor regarding their audit in
respect of the prior year, which included
comments on significant financial
reporting judgements and their findings
on internal controls;

= Meat with other management personne;

Reviewed and discussed with
management and the Chief Financial
Officer each financial reporting
announcement made by the Group; and

Reviewed compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS’).

The most significant financial reporting
judgements considered by the Audit
Committee and discussed with the external
auditor during the year were as follows:

Carrying value of goodwill,
intangible assets and investments

The Audit Committee has reviewed
management’s assessment of the
recaverability of the Group's goodwill

and intangible assets and whether there
is a need for any resulting impairment.
The recoverable amount of goodwill has
been determined through value-in-use
calculations of each cash-generating unit
{('CGU" based on Board approved forecasts
for the first three years of the value-in-use
calculation and applying a terminal growth
rate of 2.5%.

Management's assessment of the
recoverability of the Group's goodwill and
intangible assets resulted in no impairment
being recognised. At 31 December 2019
the Committee reviewed management’s
assessment of the recoverability of the
Group’s goodwill and intangibie assets. The
Committee has paid particular attention

to the judgements and assumptions used
to forecast cash flows, particutarly around
revenue and adjusted EBITDA growth
rates. The Commiittee was satisfied that
the forecasts reflect the CGUS™ historical
budgeting performance and that reascnable
sensitivities were performed, that the value-
in-use calcuiation reflects management’s
best estimate, and that the booking of

no impairment against any segment

is appropriate. As a result, the Audit
Committee was satisfied with the carrying
value of goodwill and intangible assets in
the Group balance sheet.
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Following the disposal of Centaur Travel and
Meetings Ltd, Centaur Human Rescurces
Lid, Centaur Engineering Ltd and Centaur
Financial Platforms Ltd in 2019, a detailed
review of the carrying value of Centaur
Media plc’s investments in its subsidiaries
was performed. This identified a reduction
in carrying value of £35.7m in the parent
company books.

Further details on goodwill and the
impairment testing are included in note 10
to the financial statements.

Going concern and viability

The Audit Committee received a report
setting out the going concern review
undertaken by management which forms
the basis of the Board’s going concern
conclusion. During the year, the Group
completed a major divestment programme
which reducss the short-term earnings
generated by operations. The Group

has consequently reported an adjusted
operating loss for 2019. The Committee has
therefore carefully considered the capability
of the Group to generate positive operating
cash which is dependent on the Group
making targeted cost savings in 2019 and
2020, combined with profitable revenue
growth.

Following the divestment proegramme, the
Group has a strong balance sheet with over
£6m cash at the balance sheet date and

a small net current liability. The Committee
has reviewed forecasts to cover the twelve
months from signature date with various
downside scenarios explored, including
scenarios specifically related to the current
coronavirus. The Committee has concluded
that the adopticn of the going concern basis
is appropriate.

In addition, the Committee has assessed
the statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group and of the Group's
principal risks to viability, including reviewing
the long-term financial projections for the
period over which the statement is made,
and reviewing qualitative and quantitative
analysis and scenatio testing prepared by
management. The Committee concluded
that the statement in relation to the longer-
term viahility of the Group in the Strategic
Report is appropriate.

Adjusting items
The Audit Committee has challenged

management strongly over recent financial
reporting periods with regard to the
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presentation of excepticnal items and
other alternative performance measures.
Adjusting itemms disclosed in the year include
significant exceptional costs arising in
relation to restructuring activities and the
divestment programme. The Committee
notes that the restructuring activities (both
staff-related and cerperate) arise from
specific change programmes during the
year, and that they are material and could
therefore distort the user’s view of the
Group’s results. The Committee is satisfied
that it is appropriate to present these
iterns as adjusting items on the basis that
they assist the user in assessing the core
operating performance of the Group.

The Committee assesses the
appropriateness of all alternative
performance measures disclosed as
adjusting and the impact these have on the
presentation of the Group's results and is
satisfied that they do not inappropriately
replace or obscure IFRS measures.

Further details on adjusting tems are
included in notes 1(b) ana 4 to the financial
statements.

Completion of Divestment
Programme

In October 2018, the Group anncLunced
that it wolld be exploring the sale of certain
businesses. In 2019, the Group completed
the sales of our financial, engineering,
human resources and travel and meetings
busingss units. The Committee is satisfied
that the accounting for the dispaosals,

the classification as these business as
discontinued under IFRS 5, and the
treatment of the applicable transitional
services arrangements are fair and
appropriate. The Group also disposed of
Venture Business Research Limited. This
busingss has been defined as outside of the
scope of IFRS 5 as it does not represent

a significant separate line of business

or gecgraphical area of operations. The
Commitiee is satisfied that this treatment is
fair and appropriate.

Other areas of judgement discussed with
the external auditor were as follows:

New accounting standards

IFRS 16 has been adopted for the current
reporting period. An impact assessmeant
was performed in 2018 which indicated
that the operating lease arrangements, for
properties from which the Group operated,
be treated as finance leases from the

effective date. Therefore, a right-of-use
asset of £2.3m and a related lease liability
of £3.3m were recognised and recorded
at 1 January 2019.

For further details of IFRS 16, please see
note 1 and 20 to the financial statements.

Risk management

The Group’s management is responsitle
for the identification, assessment and
management of risk, as well as for designing
and operating the system of internal control
as set out in the Strategic Report on pages
4 1o 31. The Committee has assessed
management's identification of risk and
concluded that appropriate mitigating
actions are being taken. The auditer has
also detalled certain risks in their report
and set out the work performed to satisfy
themselves that these have been properly
reflected in the financial statements.

The Committee has worked closely

with management and received detailed
information to assess the effectiveness

of internal financial control and risk
assessment and management systems, and
report on them to the Board {which retains
ultimate responsibility). Details of financial
risks are set out in note 28.

Having monitored the Group's risk
management and internal control system,
and having reviewed the effectiveness

of material contrals, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, the
Committee confirms on behalf of the Board
that it has nct identified any significant
control faillings or weaknesses at any time
during the year and to the date of this
raeport.

Risk of fraud

The Committee considered the risk of
fraudulent financial reporting in the business,
and through its review of the effectiveness
of internal controls and reporting from
management, has concluded that adequate
controls were in place during the year.

Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the Group's
whistleblowing policy and is satisfied that
this has met FCA rules and good standards
of corporate governance. Further details of
the whistleblowing policy are set out within
the Directors’ Statement on Corporate
Governance on page 40.
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Internal audit

The Committee considered whether it was
appropriate to appoint internal auditors
and coneluded that this is not currently
required given the size of the business, its
relatively centralised operations and the
risks identified together with the mitigating
controls.

External audit

The Group’s externai auditor is
PricewaterhouseGoopers LLP. The
Committee monitors the external audit
process to ensure high standards of guality
and effectiveness. This was assessed
throughout the year using a number of
measlires, including;

+  Raviewing the quality and scope of
planning of the audit and the level of
fees;

+  Monitoring the independence and
transparency of the audit; and

+  Obtaining feedback from management
and the Directors on the quality
of the audit team, their business
understanding and audit approach, and
approving reappointment.

PwC have been the Company’s external
auditor since its incorperation in 2004.

The appointment was subject to competitive
tender in 2016.

The Audit Committee has considered the
independence and objectivity of the external
auditor through a careful review of their
terms of engagement, scope of work and
level of fees {which are shown in note 3

to the financial statements). This included
reviewing the nature and extent of non-audit
services supplied by the external auditor to
Centaur, seeking to balance chijectivity and
value for money.

The external auditor is excluded from
providing any non-audit services that
individually, or in aggregate, may impair the
independence of the auditor. Prior approval
from the Audit Committee is required for any
permitted audit related or other services in
accordance with the regulations.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP provided no services to the Group other
than audit and audit-related {interim review)
Services.

The external auditor’s report to the Directors
and the Audit Committee also confirmed
their independence in accordance with
auditing standards and the Committee

concurred. Should non-audit services
be required in the forthcoming year, we
are likely to use suppliers other than
PricewaterhouseCGoopers LLP.

Self-assessment

During the peried the Audit Committes
performed a formal, guestionnaire based,
self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee with satisfactory results.

Report to the Board

The Board has requested the Committee
to cenfirm that in its opinion the Beard

can make the required statement that the
Annual Report taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and pravides
the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy.
The Committee has given this confirmation
on the basis of its review of the whale
Annual Report, underpinned by involvement
in the planning for its preparation, review

of the processes to ensure the accuracy of
factual content and by assurances from the
Remuneration Committee.

Independent auditer

A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers |LP as auditor of
the Company.

ZoTomrou oL, -
DT

Chair of the Audit Committee
17 March 20203
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Centaur Media Plc

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased 1o present the report of the
Nomination Commitiee for the year ended
31 December 2019. This report details

the Committee's ongoing responsibilities
and key activities over the period. The
Committee comprised of myself, William
Eccleshare, Robert Boyle and Rebecca
Miskin, ensuring that there is a majority of
independent Non-Executive Directors on the
Committee.

Nomination Committee
Responsibilities

The Committee’s key responsibilities
include:

+ Reviewing the Board’s structure, size
and composition;

+  Reviewing the composition of Board
Committees;

»  Defining the rcle and competencies
requuired for appointments to the Board;

= Identifying, nominating and reviewing
candidates for appointment to the
Board;

» Putting in place plans for succession
for the Chairman and other members of
the Board, the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer; and

* Reviewing the leadership needs of the
organisaticn, including Executive and
Non-Executive Directors as well as
senior management.

The appeintment of Directors is a

matter for the Board, which considers
recommendations of the Nomination
Committee. The Committee is responsible
for ensuring that the Board and the Board
Committees are properly constituted and
balanced in terms of skills, expetience and
diversity. Our policy on Board diversity is set
out in the Directors’ Report abave and for
the majority of the year we had two female
Board members, representing one-third

of the Board. Following the year end, we
appointed Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann
Reed as Non-Executive Directors to replace
Robert Boyle and Rebecca Miskin who
retire on 31 March 2020. Fermnale Board
members represent cne-third of the Board
from 1 April 2020. Details of diversity/gender
in the Company are set out in the Corporate
Respensibility Statement on page 29.

Annual Report and Financial Statements fo- t1e yoas onte o 31 Soco noes 2018

Activities during the year

During 2019, the primary focus of the
Committee was the changes to the
Executive management team and the
appointment of twoe new independent Non-
Executive Directors in preparation for the
retirements from the Board of Robert Boyle
and Rebecca Miskin. For all appointments
the Committee followed a rigorous process
that was approved by the Board.

it was agreed with Andria Vidler that she
would step down as CEO in September
2019. Following a review of potential internal
and external candidates, the Committee
recommended to the Board that Swagatam
Mukerji be appointed as CEC with effect
from 4 September 2019 as he had played
an important role in Centaur's transformation
and had a comprehensive understanding of
the Group which would be of great benefit
in ensuring continuity and delivering value to
sharehoclders.

Swag retained overall responsibility for

the finance function while the Committee
searched for a new CFO. The search

was undertaken by Equity FD, and a
number of suitably qualified candidates
were considered. Following interviews

with members of the Board and Executive
Committes, the preferred candidate was
Simon Longfield who was recommended
to the Board and joined the Company cn 6
Novermber 2018, Simon's biography can be
found on page 32.

It was a key companent of our specification
that new non-executive members of the
Board bring a similar level of expertise and
experience to replace Robert and Rebecca.
Due to its wide network of contacts, the
Committee was able to identify several
potential candidates without the use of

an external search consultancy or open
advertising. Following a short list and
interview exercise, the appointments

of Carcl Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed

were recormmmended to the Board by

the Committee. A reputed independent
executive search consultant, Inzito,
undertook the referencing process.

Carol was confirmed as a Non-Executive
Directer, Chair of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 5 February
2020. Carol is currently Group HR Director
at Mace, the international consultancy and
construction group. She has extensive
remuneration experience at executive and
board level and has spent over 20 years in
senior HR roles, including positions at Mitie
Group plc, Nationwide Building Society and
Lloyds Banking Group.Carol's experience
also means she is well placed to become
the spensor of the workforce advisory
panel, DICE.

Leslie-Ann Reed was confirmed as a
Non-Executive director and a member of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees with effect from 1 March
2020. She will become Chair of the Audit
Committee when Robert Boyle retires on
31 March 2020.

Leslie-Ann is an experienced non-executive
director and chairs the audit committees

at Learning Technologies Group plc and
Induction Healthcare Group PLC. She is
also a non-executive director and member
of the audit and remuneration committees
of Bloocmsbury Publishing Pic. Leslie-Ann's
executive roles have included CFO of the
B2B publisher Metal Bulletin plc and the
onling auctionesar Go Industry ple.

Following the disposals, the Committee has
determined that a priority for 2020 will be
to review enhanced succession planning to
support and develop a diverse pipeline of
talent across the Group.

‘_,\lL o . AR

Chair of the Nomination Committee
17 March 2020
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- REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

Cn behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Directors’ Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2018,
This is my first report as Chair of Centaur’s
Remuneration Committee since my
appointment on 5 February 2020,

This report is in three parts: (i) this

Annual Staternent; (i) the Directors’
Remuneration Policy section, which sets
out the Remuneration Policy approved

by shareholders at the AGM held on 17
May 2018; and (jii) the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

2019 has been a year of transformation for
Centaur with the strategic objectives set

at the start of the year largely achieved:

the divestment of legacy businesses, the
restructuring of the central functions, and
the creation of a much simpler business
focused on twe sectors: the marketing and
legat professions. Remuneration for 2020
will be aligned with the new MAP22 strategy
introduced towards the end of 2019.

Excellence in marketing

THE LAWYER

Committee membership and work
of the Committee during the year

During the year, Centaur's Remuneration
Committee comprised: Colin Jones (Chair
until 5 February 2020 when Garol Hosey
joined the Board and became Chair of the
Committee), Rebecca Miskin, Robert Boyle
and Wiliam Eccleshara.

The Committee had four scheduled
mestings during 2018 and met a further
three times. The main Committee activities
during the year {full details of which are set
out in the relevant sections of this report)
included:

- Agreeing executive director base salary
levels from 1 April 2019;

+  Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2018 annual bonus;

»  Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2016 LTIP awards which
lapsed in 2019;

«  Obtainirg shareholder approval for the
new Directors’ Remuneration Pclicy and
2019 Incentive Plan {'2019 IPY)

»  Setting the performance targets for the
2019 1P,

*  Agreeing the basis for vesting the 2017
LTIP awards;

»  Agreeing the award levels and
performance tests for the 2019 LTIP
awards;

+  Agreeing the performance against the
targets for the 2019 IP;

»  Reviewing the Company’s share ditution
capacity for LTIP awards;

»  Reviewing and setting remuneration for
the Directors and senicr management;

»  Reviewing workforce remuneration and
alignment of workforce incentives and
rewards;

*  Reviewing gender pay numbers and
disclosures and the CEO Pay Ratic
requirements; and

»  Agreeing the cessation agreement and
termination payments for Andria Vidler.

In additicn, the Committee has considered

how the Policy and practices are consistent

with the six factors set out in Provision 40 of

the new UK Corporate Governance Code:
LAty
Qur Policy (approved by shareholders
in 2019} is understood by our senior
executive team and has been clearly
articulated to our shareholders and
representative bodies (both on an
ongoing basis and when changes are
proposed).

» S.mphcity
The Committes is mindful of the
need to avoid overly complex
remuneration structures which can be
rmisunderstood and deliver unintended
outcomes. Therefore, a key objective
of the Committee is to ensure that
our executive remuneration policies
and practices are straightforward to
communicate and operate.

+ Risk
Qur Policy has been designed to
ensure that inappropriate risk-taking is
discouraged and will not be rewardead
via: (i} the balanced use of annual and
long-term pay with a blend of financial,
non-financial and shareholder return
targets; {ii) the significant role played
by equity in our incentive plans; and (i)
malus/clawback provisions.

+ Procectabiiity
Qur incentive plans are subject to
individual caps, and our share plans
are subject to market standard dilution
limits.

v Tropochio Tnly
There is a clear link between individual
awards, delivery of strategy and
long-term performance. In addition,
the significant role played by
incentive/‘at-risk” pay, together with
the structure of the executive directors’
service contracts, ensures that poor
performance is not rewarded.

L VP Eh) ENRYRT S Wt BN A P

Our executive pay policies are Tully

aligned to our culture through the use of

metrics in our incentive plans.
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Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy in 2019

Tre Committee implemented the
Remuneration Policy in 2019 as follows:

Base salary levels were increased by
2% from 1 Aprl 2013 in line with general
workforce increase;

Swagatam Mukerji's base salary was set
at £320,000 following his promotion to
CEO on 4 September 2019 (previous
CEO salary £380,744). Simon Longfield
joined as CFO on a salary of £175,000
on 6 November 2019 {previous CFO
salary £260,100);

+ There were no changes to pension or
benefit provisions, other than aligning
Sirnon Longfield’s pension with the
waorkfarce from appointment;

»  The Committee operated the 2019
IP during the year {as approved by
sharehalders at the 2018 AGM). The
performance targets under the 2019 IP
were based on maximising shareholder
value from () divestments of non-core
assets, (i) restructuring the central
functions and reducing overhead costs,
and (i) achieving profit targets for the
new Xelm business, After reviewing
performance against these targets, the
Committee approved awards equating
to 63% of the maximum for Andria Vidler
and 70% of the maximurm for Swagatam
Mukerji;

«  The Committee agreed to the 2017 LTIP
vesting six months early on the basis
that the Group had been significantly
restructured by the half year, and the
original performance tests were no longer
easily measuratle. The Committee did
not adjust the EPS targets following the
disposals and awards subject to the EPS
test {(50% of total) lapsed in full. The TSR
test was satisfied in full and awards under
this test (50% of total) vested; and

> No 2019 LTIP grant was made to Andria
Vidler or Swagatam Mukerji in their roles
as CEOQ and CFO respectively. Following
his appointment as CEO, and as part
of a revised remuneration package for
this role including a lower safary than the
previous CEO, LTIP awards were granted
to Swagatam Mukerji on 3 October 2019
over shares equal to 100% of salary with
performance tests based on profitable
revenue growth, Group EBITDA margin
growth and relative TSR {each weighted
one third).

Further details are given on pages 55 to 58.

Implementing the Remuneration
Policy for 2020

The base salaries for the Executive
Directors are expected to increase
from 1 April 2020 by 2% in line with the
expected general workforce increases.
There will be no changes to pension
and benefit provisions;

The maximum annual bonus for
Executive Directors will revert to 100%
of salary. The majerity of bonus potential
will be measured against financial-
based targets with a minority based on
strategic objectives, Any annual bonus
greater than 75% of basic salary will be
awarded in Centaur Media Plc shares
and deferred for three years; and

» LTIP awards are expected to be granted
on a basis consistent with awards
granted in prior years in terms of grant
levels (100% of salary). Performance
targets are expected to be based cne-
third on EBITDA performance, one-third
on EPS and one-third on relative TSR.

Shareholder consultation and
AGM approvals

Maijor shareholders were consulted in
respect of the proposed 2019 Directors’
Remuneration Pelicy and 2019 1P and
strong suppaort for the propesals was
received. At the 2020 AGM there will be an
advisory resolution on the Annual Statement
and Annual Report on Rermuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2019. | hope we
continue to receive your support.

e
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
17 March 2020
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“ DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The following section of the Directors’
Remuneration Report sets out a summary
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM

held cn 17 May 2019. There have been no
changes to the policy since that date. The
full Directors’ Remuneration Policy is set out
below for ease of reference.

Policy scope
The Pelicy applies to the Chairman,

Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors.

Policy duration

The current Remuneration Policy was
passed by a binding shareholder vote at
the Company's AGM held on 17 May 2019
and became effective from the date of that
meeting. The policy takes into account

the provisions of the new UK Corporate
Governance Code which is effective from

1 January 2019, and other good practice
guidelings from institutional sharehclders
and shareholder bodigs. All payments to
Directors during the policy period will be
consistent with the approved policy.

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Centaur recognises the need to attract,
retain and incentivise executives with the
appropriate skills and talent to manage and
develop the Group’s businesses, drive the
Group’s strategy and deliver shareholder
value. The main pringiples of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy are:

-

To achieve total remuneration packages
that are competitive in the sector within
which the Group operates and with the
market in general;

To provide an appropriate balance
between fixed and variable remuneration
which rewards high levels of performance;
and

To incentivise and retain managerent
and to align their interests with those of
shareholders.

Considerations of employment
conditions elsewhere in the
Group

The Committee considers the base salary
increases and remuneration policies and
practice more generally for all employees
when determining the annual salary
increases and remuneration policy for the
Executive Directors, Employees have not
been consulted in respect of the renewal of
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, although
the Committee will keep this approach
under review.

Consideration of shareholder
views

The Committee considers shareholder
feedback received in relation to the

Annual Report and AGM each year, This
feedback, plus any additional feedback
received during the course of the year, is
then considered as part of the Company's
annuai review of its remuneration policy.

In addition, the Committee will seek to
engage directly with major shareholders
and their representative bodies should any
material changes be made to the Directors’
Remuneration Poficy. Details of votes for
and against the resclution tc approve last
year's Remuneration Report and the 2019
Remuneration Policy are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy —
summary table

The table below sets out the Remuneration
Policy approved by shareholders at the
AGM held on 17 May 2019,

Note that payments may be made under
arrangements in place prior to this policy
becoming effective (including pension, cther
benefits and incentives).

The remuneration offered to employees of

the Group will be adapted to reflect local
market practice and seniority.
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* DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

1 i,

Base salary

2019
Incentive
Plan {*2019
IP”) for
2019 only

iﬁ& s St ;

Reflects the value
of the individual and
their role

Refiects skills and
experience over
time

Provides an
appropriate level of
basic fixed income
avoiding excessive
risk arising from
over reliance on
variakle incorme

Incentivises delivery
of 2019 strategic
goals

Maxiri:m award
only payable

for achieving
demanding targets

Reviewed annually,
normally effective

1 April

Paid in cash on a
monthly basis

Pensionable

Benchmarked
against companies
with similar
characteristics and
sector comparators

Not pensionable
Deferral of any
award in excess of
75% of maximum
into shares for two
years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable

cn deferred share
awards

*

The Committee has not
set a maximum level

of salary. Increases will
be set in the context

of satary increases
amongst the wider
work force

The Committes retains
the discretion to make
increases above

this level in certain
circumstances, for
example, but not limited
to:

An increase in the
individual’s scope
and responsibilities
Alignment to the
external market

An increase to
reflect an individual's
performance and
development in the
role, e.g. where a
new appointment is
recruited at a lower
salary level and is
awarded stepped
increases

Not applicable

200% of salary - Measured over 2019

> Based on maximising
shareholder value from
divestments of non-core
assets, achieving stretch
profit and opsrating
margin targets for the
ongeing Xeim business
and reducing central
overhead costs by the
end of 2019

Clawback provisions
apply
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(2020
onwards)

Long term
incentives

Pension

Incentivises annual
delivery of financial
and strategic goals

Maxirmum bonus
only payable

for achieving
demanding targets

Aligns to main
strategic objectives
of defivering

profit growth and
shareholder return

Provides
competitive
retirement benefits
Provides an
opportunity for
Executive Directors
to contribute to their
own retirement plan

-

Targets reviewed
annually

Not pensionable

Deferral of any
bonus over 75%
of base salary into
shares for three
years

Dividend equivalents
may be payable

on deferred share
awards

Annual grant of
conditional awards
or nil cost options

Dividend eguivalents
may be payable on
sharss to the extent
awards vest

Defined
contributions made
to the Executive
Director's own
pension plan. Cash
alternatives may also
be paid

%-‘ ot

« 100% of salary

»  Awards capped
at 100% of salary
{200% in exceptional
circumstances}

Up to 15% of base
salary, although pension
provision in respect

of future Executive
Director appointments
wili be aligned to the
workforce where
passible

Normally measured over
a one-year performance
period

Primarily based on
Group’s annual financial
performance {majority, if
not afl)

Personal and/or strategic
objectives (minority)

Measures for the following
years will be set out in

the Annual Report on
Remuneration of the
relevant year

Clawback provisions
apply

Normally a three-year
performance period

Performance is based

on financial and/or share
price-based measures
(e.g. EPS and relative
TSR

The Cemmittee may alter
the weighting and targets
for each grant annually

if it determines that it is
appropriate to do so
Targets for the following
years will be set out in
the Annual Report on
Remuneration

Awards vest as follows:

Threshold performance:
25% of award

Maximum performance:
100% of award

Clawback provisions
apply

Not applicable
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“* DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Other
benefits

Share
ownership

+

e !
e iz
Aids retention and
recruitment

To provide
alignment of
interests between
Executive Directors
and shareholders

Executive Directors
are provided with
private medical
insurance

Other benefits
including company
car allowance

and car parking
may be provided

if considered
appropriate by the
Committee

50% of the net of
tax vested LTIP
shares required to
be retained until the
guideline is met

g

There is no maximum.
Set at a level which the
Committee considers
is appropriate in

the context of the
circumstances of the
rofe/individual and
focal market practice

Not applicable

*  200% of salary Not applicable

The Annual Report on Remuneraton sets out how the Company implemented the policy presented abeve in 2019 and will apply it in 2020.
Not all employees have a bonus opportunity, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are lower. Participation in the 2019 IP was limited to Executive Directors and

participation in the LTIP was limited to Executive Directors and certain selected senior management. Other employses are eligible to participate in the Company's aft employee share
plan. In general, these differences arise to ensure remuneration arrangements are competitive in the market, together with the fact that remungration of the Executive Directers and
senior executives typically has a greater emphasis on perforrmance related pay. All bonus schemes are discretionary.

was an approptiate focus on the remaining business

delivery of long-term returns to shareholders and the Group's financiat growth

The choice of performance metrics applicable 1o the 2019 iP reflected Centaur’s strategy 1o simplify the business and maximise shareholder vaiue dunng 2019 while ensuring that there
The choice of performance metncs applicable to the annual bonus plan reflect the Comimttee's belief that any ncentive compensation should be appropriately challenging and primarily

tied to financial measures.
The EBITDA, EPS and TSR performance condrions applicabie 1o the 2020 LTIP awards were selected by the Committee on the basis that they are consistent with rewarding the

Executve Directors may participate in any all-employee share plan, in line with HMRC Iimits, and to the extent offered.
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Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would

be set in accordance with the terms of the Company’s prevailing
approved remuneration palicy at the time of appointrment and would
take into account the skills and experience of the individual, the
market rate for a candidate of that experience and the importance
of securing the relevant individual.

On recruitment, salary may (but need not necessarily) be set below
the normal market rate, with phased increases as the executive
gains experience. Pension provision will be aligned to that provided
to the general workforce where possible. Incentive awards would
be no more than set out in the Policy table above. In addition, on
recruitment the Company may compansate for amounts foregone
from a previcus employer {using Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary)
taking into account the quantum foregone and, as far as reasonably
practicable, the extent to which performance conditions apply, the
form of award and the time left to vesting,

For an internal promotion, any variable pay element awarded in
respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay out according
to its terms. Any other ongeing remuneration obligations existing
pricr to appointment may continue, provided that they are put to
shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity.

The Committee may agree that the Company will meet relocation,
legal fees or incidental costs where appropnate.

Service contracts and loss of office payments

The current Executive Directors have service contracts which have
a 12-month notice pericd, dated 21 September 2016 for Swagatam
Mukerjl ang 6 Novermber 2019 for Simon Longfield. In respect of
these service contracts, at the Board’s digcretion, a payment in

lieu of any unexpired notice may be paid, comprising an amount
for base salary, pension and any accrued holiday entitiement. The
amount may be zaid in one lump sum or in two instalments and
mitigation will be applied to the secend instalment. If termination

is within six menths of a change of contral, a payment equal to

12 months' salary, pension and accrued holiday pay is payable.
Where the Company terminates the contract in any other manner,
any damages shall be calculated in accordance with common

law principles including those relating to mitigation of loss.
Notwithstanding the above, the Campany Is entitled to terminate
employment without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of
nctice in specified circumstances (e.9. sérious misconduct).

An annual incentive will nermally be payable for the period of the
financial year served, afthough it will normally be pro-rated and paid
at the normal pay-out date. Any share-based entitiements granted
to an Executive Director under the Company's share plans wili be
determined based on the relevant plan rules. However, in certain
prescribed circumstances, such as death, disability, retirement ar
other circumstances at the discretion of the Committee, ‘good
leaver® status may be applied. For good leavers, awards will
normally vest at the vesting date set out in the relevant award,
subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions
at the time and reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the
performance period actually served. However, the Committee has

discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employment
or to dis-apply time pro-rating.

in addition to the above, outplacement support may be provided
and legal fees or any other minor incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable.
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee is determined by the Remuneration Committee (cther than the Company Chairman, if he sits on the
Committee). The fees for the Non-Executive Directors ars set by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors. The table summarises
the key aspects of the Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors:

b 5 sy

Chairman Reflect time
and Non- commitments and

. responsibifities of
E).tecutwe each role, in line
Directors with those provided
fees by similarly sized

companies

Letters of appointment

Cash fee normally
paid on a monthly
basis
Reimbursement of
incidental expenses
where appropriate
Reviewed
periodically

An additional
amount will be
paid for Chairing a
Committee

There is no prescribed Not applicable
maximum annual fee or

fee increase

The Committee and
Board are guided by
the general increase

in the Non-Executive
market, but may decide
to award a lower or
higher fee increase to
recognise, for example,
an increase in the scale,
scope or responsibility
of the role or take
account of relevant
market movements

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year period with
the option for an extension for a further three-year period and provide for a notice period of three months, All of the current Non-Exscutive
Directors have chosen to submit to annual re-election at each AGM,

Colin Jones
William Eccleshare
Robert Boyle
Rabecca Miskin
Carol Hosey
Leslie-Ann Reed

1 September 2018

1 March 2020

1 September 2018 1 September 2021

1 July 2016 1 July 2019 1 July 2022

8 January 2010 8 January 2019 19 March 2020
13 January 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020
5 February 2020 5 February 2020 5 February 2023

1 March 2020 1 March 2023

Robert Boyle and Rebecca Miskin agreed to remain on the Board until their retirement on 31 March 2020 in order to grovide a handover
following the appointments of Carol Hosey and Leslie-Ann Reed.

Approach to fees on recruitment

For the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, the fee will be set in accordance with the approved remuneration policy

in force at that time.
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“ ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy will be applied during the year ending 31 December 2020 is set out below.

Base salary
The Executive Directors' current and proposed salaries are as follows:

Swagatam Mukerji ' £328,400 £320,000 £260,100 2%
Simon Longfield 2 £178,500 £175,000 N/A 2%

' Swagatam Mukerji becare CEC on 4 September 2019 At this time the Remuneration Committee determined that his salary should be increased to £220,000pa with effect from 4
Septernber 2019 in line with his new responsibilites.

2Simon Longfield was appointed Chief Financial Officer on 6 Novermnber 2019 and s salary on empioyment was £175,000pa.
I The Executive Directors are expected o receve a 2% salary increase from 1 April 2020 in ine with the expected general workforce increase.

Pension and benefits

Pension and benefits provision will be in line with the policy. Swagatam Mukerji receives a pension allowance equivalent to 8% of annual
salary. Simon Lengfield receives a pension allowance equivalent to 5% of annual salary, in line with the pension arrangements for the
warkforce.

Annual bonus for 2020

The maximum bonus for Executive Directors will be 100% of salary. The majority of bonus potential will be measured against financial-based
targets with a minority based on strategic objectives. Any annual bonus greater than 75% of basic salary will be awarded in Centaur Media
Plc shares and deferred for three years.

Long term incentives for 2020

LTIF awards wil be granted to Executive Directors in 2020 under the 2016 LTIP as follows:

> One-third of the 2020 award will be based on adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA thresholds and targets will be set for the year ending 31
December 2022 in line with the Company’s long-term business plan.

*  One-third of the 2020 award will be based cn absolute EPS targets. The EPS target range for these awards will be set in line with the
Company’s long-term business plan.

One-third of the 2020 award will be based on relative TSR measured against the constituents of the FTSE SmallCap (excluding

investmant trusts). 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper quartile TSR

over the three years ending 31 December 2022. In addition to the TSR perfermance condition, the Committee will need to be satisfied

that the Company’s TSR performance reflects the underlying financial performance of the Company for this part of an award 1o vest.
The performance targets for the above awards wil be disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report to the 2020 Annuai Report subject to
any commercial senstivity.

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The fees for the Company Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors from 1 April 2020 are as follows:

Caolin Jones (appointed as Chairman 30 June 2019)! 100,000 43,775 128%
William Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Robert Boyie {to retire 31 March 2020) - 43,775 N/A
Rebecca Miskin {to retire 31 March 2020) - 43,775 N/A
Carol Hosey (appointed 5 February 2020y 45,000 - N/A
Leslie-Ann Reed {appointed 1 March 2020)2 45,000 - N/A
Neil Johnson (resigned 30 June 2019) - 125,000 N/A

' Colin Jones joined the Board on an annual fee of 143,775 which increased to £125,000 from 30 June 2019 following his appointment as Charman.
His fees were reviewed foliowing the completion of the simplification programme and it was determined that they would be reduced to £100,000 with effect from 1 January 2020.

2 Carol Hosey was appointed as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 5 February 2020. Her annual fees are £40,000 plus £5,000 for chairing the
Remuneration Committee.

1 Leslie-Ann Reed was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 1 March 2020. Her annual fees are £40,000 and she wilt receive an agditional £5,000 from 31 March 2020 for charring the
Audit Committee.
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Remuneration received by Directors for the year (audited)
Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 Becember 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

Salary Total Total
and fees Benefits Bonus' Pension LTIP? Total Fixed Variable
g £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Swagatam Mukerji 2019 278,177 3,660 404,426 19,783 115195 821,241 301,620 519,621
{CEO from 4 September 2019) 2018 253,750 8416 - 19,686 - 281,852 281,852 -
Simon Longfield 2018 27,428 - - 729 - 28,157 28,157 -
{appainted 6 November 2019} 2018 - - - - - - - -
Sor-Exenr gt Dhera o g
Colin Jones 2019 84,388 - - - - 84,388 84,388 -
{appcinted as Chairman 30 June 2019) 2018 14,592 - - - - 14,592 14,592 -
Willam Eccleshare 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Robert Boyle 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Rebecca Miskin 2019 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
2018 43,775 - - - - 43,775 43,775 -
Frrver Dneate:
Andria Vidier 2019 283,681 11,076 481,866 30,166 168,626 975,425 324,933 650,492
(to 30 September 2019) 2018 371,448 17,360 - 40,024 - 428,832 428832 -
Neil Johnson 2019 62,500 - - - - 82,500 62,500 -
{to June 2019} 2018 125,000 - - - - 125,000 125,000 -
Notes:

' The bonus ameunts refate to rermuneration under the 2019 !P as set out on page 55.
2 The LTIP amounts relate 1o the vesting of the 2017 LTIPs as set out on page 56
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Annual bonus for the year (audited)

As approved by shareholders at the 2019 AGM, the 2019 Incentive Plan (“2019 IP") for Andria Vidler {CEQO) and Swagatam Mukerji (CFQ)
was capped at 200% of base salary based on financial performance to 31 December 2019 with amounts delivered in the form of a cash
award with partial deferral into shares. This arrangement operated instead of the normal 100% of salary bonus and 100% of salary LTIP.
The three elements of the 2019 (P were:

> 50% of the award based on maximising shareholder vaiue from the divestment of non-core assets;

25% of the award based on significantly reducing central overhead costs by the end of 2019; and
25% of the award based on achieving stretch profit and operating margin targets for the ongeing Xeim business for 2019.

Up to 75% of the 2018 IP was to be paid in cash following the end of the 2019 financial year with any amount earned in excess of 75%
of the maximum deferred into Centaur Media plc shares for two years from the date that the cash element is paid. Targets and actual
performance were as follows:

a) 32 v

A target range of proceeds was set for the divestment programme. Following a strategic decision to retain The Lawyer, the target proceeds
were reduced and the maximum potential for this part of the award was reduced from 50% to 35% of the criginal total award. The total
gross proceeds from the disposals, before working capital adjustments, were £21.75m, which was 92.8% of the target, equal to 32.5% of
the 2019 IP. As all the disposals had been completed before Andira Vidler stepped down from the Board, the Committee dlid not reduce her
entitternent under this eloment of the 2019 IP.

N T e T ISP TS B TR B AR PR R PEERRA B R SRV YRR UITES PRV PE LU TR S LI DEES PRI (AL Ie ) I alo TA i ofe T LS T T

b) 25 ot asaed pased on s goicanriiy oo ceatral s L ats Dy The oy J0td
The Board set an ambitious target of removing over £6m of annualised central overhead costs by the end of 2018. As the Group has
successfully reached this target, 100% of this opportunity was payable, equal to 25% of the 2019 IP award.

As the cost reduction target was not fully completed at the time that Andria Vidler left, the Committee awarded her 87% of the available
opportunity equal to 21.9% of the 2018 IF.

€} IZET e aeaed naard o roneevnyg st b
The Board set stretch profit targets for the new Xeim business on the basis of contribution after portfolio {CAP) costs from a low end of
£12.83m to a high end of £14.26m paying between 50% and 100% respectively of this part of the award. Xeim'’s actual CAP result for the
year of £13.50m resulted in a 47.2% pay out egual to 23.6% of the 2019 IP.

As Andria Vidler left after nine months of the year, her award was reduced by 256% equal to 17.7% of the 2018 |P.

A summary of the 2019 |P amounts payable for the Executive Directors is as follows:

Drolt Ao apeesat o e argots o e apgonr Lot Bosimess for 2074

a) bonus based on divestment of non-core assets 247,928 168,938
b) bonus based on reducing central overhead costs 166,575 160,000
¢) bonus based ¢n achieving stretch targets for Xeim business 67,363 75.488
Total benus 481,866 404,426

As the bonus awards were less than 75% of the maximum, no share deferral will cperate.
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Vesting of 2017 LTIP awards

The Committee agreed to the 2017 LTIP vesting six months early on the basis that the Group had been significantly restructured by the

half year, and the original performance tests were no longer easily measurable. The Committee did not adjust the EPS targets following the
disposals and awards subject to the EPS test (50% of total) lapsed in full. The TSR test was satisfied in full and awards under this test (50%
of total) vested. Further detalls relating to these awards are:

EPS 50%

Relative TSR vs FTSE 50%
SmallCap index {excluding
investment trusts)

Total LTIP vesting

0% vesting below 6.5 pence Below threshold EPS
25% vesting at 6.5 pence

100% vesting at 10.5 pence

Straight-line vesting between these

points

(0% vesting below median
25% vesting at median

100% vesting at upper guartile
Straight-line vesting between
these points

Upper Quartile

These awards vested on 26 September 2018 following the announcement of the Interim Results, as follows:

f

Andria Vidler 802,982

Swagatam Muketji 548,546

?26 September

50% 401,43 2019 42 pence
26 September
50% 274,273 2019 42 pence

0%

50%

50%

168,626

115,185

In respect of the requirernent to estimate the amount of any LTIP award which is attributable to share price appreciation, the share price on
24 April 2017, the date of grant, was 45.8p. The share price on 26 Septermber 2019, the date of vesting, was 42.0p and at 31 December

2019 it was 38.5p.
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Grant of LTIP awards in 2019

No 2018 LTIP grant was made to Andria Vidler or Swagatam Mukerfi, in their roles as CEQ and CFQ respectively. Following his appointment
as CEQ, and as part of a revised remuneration package for this role, including a lower saiary than the previous CEQ, LTIP awards were
granted to Swagatam Mukerji on 3 October 2019 over shares equal to 100% of salary with performance tests based on profitable revenue
growth, Group EBITDA margin growth and relative TSR (each weighted one third). Details of this award are set out below:

Swagatam Mukerji

3 October 2019 758,293

100% of
base salary

£320,000

See below

' The share pnce used 1o calculate the face value of the award was the average share price for the 5 working days pnor 1o the date of grant.

The performance conditions for this award are set out in three parts below:

Profitable revenue growth' 33.3%

Group EBITDA margin growth 33.3%

Relative TSR vs FTSE SmallCap 33.4%
index {excluding investment trusts)
at 1 January 2019°

3 years to
31 December 2021

3 years to
31 Degember 2021

3 years to
31 December 2021

50% — Median?

100%?

Between Median and 100%

Bottom %2

Top %?
Between bottom and top

Median

Upgper Quartile or above

Between Median and Upper
Quartile

1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021

25%

100%

Straight-line basis
between 25% and
100%

Nil

100%

Straight-line basis
between Nil and 100%

25%

100%

Pro-rata on a straight-
line basis between 25%
and 100%

' PRG is defined as growth in aggregate Business Unit EBITDA as a % of revenue compared wih 2018 base. I this ratio is flat or declines, then no award will be made under this

performance condition.

? The performance targets for revenue growth and EBITDA growth for the three years are commercially sensitive and are not disclosed . They will remain commercially sensitive dunng the
three-year period of performance until the calculation is performad and disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report.

?The TSR element will only vest if there has been sustained improvernent in the Company’s underlying financial performance over the performance penod.

Andria Vidler purchased 2,900 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares on a 1 for 2
basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 1,450 matching shares being awarded in the year.

Swagatam Mukerji purchased 4,208 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares ona 1
for 2 basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 2,104 matching shares being awarded in the year.
Beard changes and payments for loss of office (audited)

Andria Vidler stepped down as CEQ on 4 September 2018 and stepped down from the Board on 30 September 2019. Details of her
termination arrangements are set out below:

salary and pension paid up to 30 September 2019. Healthcare benefit continued until 31 December 2019.

an amount of £392,642 was paid in respect of payment in lieu of her 12 month notice period. No further payment in respect of loss of
office was or will be made.

award under the 2019 IP, pro-rated to date of departure where appropriate, to be paid on the normal payment date in 2020 as detailed
on page 55.

2017 LTIP award vested on 26 September 2019 following the completion of the divestment programme, as described on page 56.
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treated as a good leaver for her 2018 LTIP award of 740,807 shares which will vest on the third anniversary of the grant, subject to
performance conditions and pro-rating. No LTIP awards were made to Andria Vidler in 2019.

Swagatam Mukerji was appointed as CEC on 4 September 2018, Details of changes to his remuneration on appeintrment were as follows:
annual salary increased from £260,100 to £320,000;

pensicn eguivalent of 9% of salary as previously providad when he was CFO;
2018 IP calculated based on a weighted average salary, for his period as CFO and CEQ (see page 55); and
LTIPs granted as set cut on page 57.

Simon Longfield was appointed as CFO on 8 November 2019. Details of his remuneration on appeintment were as follows:
+ annual salary of £175,000; and

pension equivalent to 5% of salary in line with the pension provided to the workforce.

In respect of the Non-Executive Directors, Colin Jones replaced Neil Johnson as Chairman from 30 June 2019. Neil Johnson retired from the
Board on 30 June 2019 and Ron Sandler retired from the Board on 3 January 2019. No paymenits for loss of office were paid or are payable
to Neil Johnson ar Ron Sandler.

Payments to past Directors {audited)

Consistert with a long-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, was paid £3,000 during the
year (2018: £3,000) for advisory services performed.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)

Share ownership plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders. The Executive Directors are expected
to build up and maintain a shareholding in the Company equal to 200% of salary from the date of the 2019 AGM. Where an executive does
not meet this guideline, they are required to retain at keast 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the Company’s LTIP until the guideline
is met.

The tables below set out details of Executive Directors' outstanding share awards under LTIP schemes (which will vest in future years,
subject to performance and continued service). Under each scheme the exercise price is £nil.

. . S Lo S : .o ;
Andria Vidler 674,194 - 674,194 - 30/3/16 1/1/16 — 30/03/19 - 52.7p

31/12/18 29/0919

802,982 - 401,491 401,491" 244117 1117 - 24/04/20 — 45.8p
31/12/19 30/06/20

740,807 - - 740,807 6/4/18 1/1/18 - 08/04/21 50.2p
31/12/20 05/10/21

2,217,883 - 1,075,685 1,142,298

Swagatam Mukeriji 573,394 - 573,394 - 4/10/16 1/1/16 - 04/10/19 - 43.6p
31/12/18 03/04/20

548,546 - 274,273 274,273! 24/417 1417 - 24/04/20 - 45.8p
31/12/19 30/06/20

506,072 - - 506,072 6/4/18 1/1/18 - 068/04/21 — 50.2p
31/12/20 05/10/21

- 758,293 - 758,293 3/10/19 1119 - 03/10/22 - 42.2p
31/112/21 02/04/23

1,628,012 758,263 847,667 1,638,638

' As detailect above, the LTIP awards granted to Andria Vidier and Swagatam Mukeniin 2016 lapsed in 2019 as a result of the threshold EPS and TSR targets not being met. Awards made
In 2017 were accelerated following the completion of the divestment programme. The TSR part (50%) of the Award vested, whereas the EPS part (50%) of the award lapsed.

? The exercise period for the 2017 LTIPs was shortened following therr early vesting from 23 October 2020 to 30 June 2020.
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The table below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by Directors (including their connected persons where relevant).

Andria Vidler
Swagatam Mukeriji
Simon Longfield (appointed 6 November 2019)
Moo et
Colin Jones

Neil Johnson
Wiliam Eccleshare
Rebert Boyle
Rebecca Miskin
Carol Hosey
Leslie-Ann Reed

' Or on date of gessation, if earlier

185,190
80,289

100,000
117,037
14,800

2 On 9 Cctober 2019 Swagatam Mukerji transterred 120,000 shares to his wife Rina Mukerii

Tincludes LTIPs granted in 2017 which vested in 2018 (see above),

Performance graph

189,538
136,6012
34,499

120,000
100,000
117,037

14,800

No 1,142,298°
No 1,538.638°

No

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

1,331,836
1,675,239
34,409

120,000
100,000
117.037

14,800

The graph below shows the TSR of Centaur Media plc compared to the performance of the FTSE SmallCap index (excluding investment
trusts) over the last ten and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis that it is the index against which performance for

the purpose of share awards made under the LTIP is assessed. Owing to the change to the financial year end in 2014, there was no financial

year ended 3C June 2014 and, instead, TSR performance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 is shown.
The graph shows the value of £100 invested in Centaur Media plc on 1 July 2009 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE

SmallCap index (excluding investment trusts) at each financial period end.
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History of remuneration for the CEO
The table below sets out the CEQ single figure of total remuneration cver the past ten and a half years.

31 December 2019 Swagatam Mukerji

{from 4 September 2019) 258,743 70 N/A

31 Dacember 2019 Andria Vidler
{until 30 September 2019) 9754252 63 50
31 December 2018 Andria Vidler 430,859 0 0
31 December 2G17 Andria Vidler 558,526 37 0
31 December 2016 Andria Vidler 422,605 0 Q
31 December 2015 Andria Vidler 416,607 2 N/A,
31 December 2014 Andria Vidler 670,077 56 N/A

(18menth perioq) (from 14 November 2013)
30 June 2013 Geoff Wilmot 514,920 Q
30 June 2012 Geoff Wilmot 383,321° 7 0
30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmot 568,673 58 0
30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot 450,180 45 o)

' Based on salary and benefits for the period from 4 September 2015 to 31 December 2019 and a pro-rated portion of the 201 P relating to that period. Excludes the LTIP part of his
remuneration ¢n the basis that this related to hus role as CFO.

?Based on total remuneration including salary, benefits, 2019 IP and LTIP remuneration (as set out on pages 54 to 58), but excluding £392,642 contractual notice payment as detalled on
page 57.

* Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual notice payment as detailed in the 2013 Report and Accounts.
Charnge in the CEQ's remuneration

The table below shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for Swagatam Mukerji (as CEQ) between the current year and
Andria Vidler (as the previous CEQ) for the pravious financial year compared to all employees of the Company.

Salary’ CEO (14)%

Employees 71%
Benefits? CEO {59)%
Employees 5)%
Annual bonus CEO Note?
Employees 15%

! Swagatam Muker annual salary on appointment as CEQ of £320,000 compared to Andna Vidler's 2018 annual salary of £373,278.

2 Swagatam Muketjr benefits (health insurance, pension and other benefits} on appointment as CEQ compared to Andra Vidler's 2018 benelrts.

* No bonus was paid to the CEO for 2018, Detalls of bonuses paid to Swagatam Mukerji and Andria Vidier relating 1o 2019 under the 2019 IP are set out on page 55. On the basis that
bonuses are inked directly to salary, the change in bonus potential between Andna Vidler and Swagatam Mukerji will also reduce by 14% as per note’ relating o salary.

CEQ pay ratio
The table below sets out the CEO pay ratios.

2019 Option G 49:1 34:1 21:1

Option C was selected given that this method of calculation was considered to be the most efficient and robust approach in respect of
gathering the required data for 2019 and the salaried employee data is considered representative of the relevant quartiles.

i 26th %tile Median 75th %tile 25th %tile Median 75th Ytile
2019 £20,509 £27 674 £43.997 £20,509 £29,058 £46,618
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Change in remuneration of the CEC

2_01 9 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change 2018 2018 % Change
CEQ' £363,691 £371,448 2)% £47,906 £57,384 (18)% £616,675 £ N/A
Salaried employees? £36,799 £39,469 (N% £1,541 £1,625 (5% £2.329 £2,022 15%

' Calculated based on @ month's salary, benefits and bonus for Andna Vidler up 1o the point of stepping down from the Board on 30 Septernber 2019 and 3 month's salary, bonus and
benefits for Swagatam Muker) thereafter.

? Calculated based on all employees 1n the Group {including discontinued operations).

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in distributions to sharehoiders and employee remuneration costs.

Employee remuneration costs £29.0m £31.5m (6%
Dividends paid and share repurchases £7.7m £4.7m 64%

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Comimittee is responsible for monitoring, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least annually on the
broad policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chalrman, Company Secretary and management tier below the Board.

It also determines their individual remuneration packages, including pension arrangements, bonuses and zall incentive schemes and the
determination of targets for any performance-related pay schemes cperated by the Group. In addition, the Committee reviews pay and
conditions across the workforce and takes this into account when considering executive remuneration. Minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee.

External advisors

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers it appropriate. During the year, the Committee sought
advice relating to executive remuneration from FIT Remuneration Gonsultants (‘FIT'), who were appointed by the Committee. The Committee
is satisfied that the advice received from FIT in relation to executive remuneration matters during the year under review was cbjective and
independent. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by the Remuneration Gonsultants Group Code of
Conduct. The fees charged by FIT for the year, based on time and materials, amounted to £16,820.

Statement of shareholder voting

The voting results for the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2019 AGM) and last year's Birectors’ Remuneration Report were as follows:

Approval of Dirgctors' Ramunaration Policy in 2019! 102,637,475 (87.8%) 14,247,400 (12.2%) 116,784,875 3,233

Approval of Directors’ Remuneraticn Report in 2019 116,764,376 (99.98%) 20,500 (0.02%; 116,784,876 3,233

' Objecticns were raised by 1SS 10 the 2013 1P, undér which Andra Vidier and Swagatam Mukerji wourd be entitied to increased annual bonuses for one year only. While we respect the
views of ISS, the Board feels that ISS has failed to recognise the unusual circurnstances of the past year during which the Group embarked on a fundamental reshaping of its portfolio
that is critical to the delivery of sharehaolder value.

Approval

The Board of Directors has approved this Remuneration Committee Report, including both the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
17 March 2020

61



Centaur Media Plc Annual Report and Financial Statements ‘o~ 11 yeas - ded 31 Decaroe 2019

-~ STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annuat Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Cempany faw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Graup financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or less of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directcrs are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial statements and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Company financial statements. subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company wil
continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Greup and Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdem governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Directors’ confirmations

‘The Directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Governance Report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

+  the Company financia! statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and result of the Company;

the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liakilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

» the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
« so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company's auditors are unaware; and

they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group and Company's auditors are aware of that information.

By order of the Board
Company Secretary
17 March 2020
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% INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Centaur Media plc's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

»  give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group's profit and
the Group's and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the Company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Staterments {the “Annual Report”), which

comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019; the Consofidated statement of
comprehensive income, the Consclidated and Company cash flow statements, and the Consolidated and Company statements of changes

in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {(*ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fuffiled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to
the Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the Group or the Company in
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Our audit approach

Qverview

= Overall Group materiality: £244,000 based on 0.5% of Revenue (2018: £245,000 basad on 5% of
Adjusted profit before tax}.

Bt e Al

«  Overall Company materiality: £236,000 (2018: £222,000), based on 1% of Total Assets capped at a
level below Group materiality.

RS = The two significant components of the Group were based in the UK and have both been audited by the
@@% UK audit team.

P el

PP »  Impairment of goodwill (Group)
3 Bt e x;)
g‘* % b 2 «  Accounting for disposals {Group)

oo F ik

» Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (Company)

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstaternent in the financial statements.
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Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to GDPR, health and safety in relation to events and tax, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation

of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluateg management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to
posting inappropriate journal entries to increase the expenses allocated as adjusting items, posting inappropriate journal entries to increase
revenue and managermeant bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the Group engagement team incliuded:

+  enquiries with management and the Group’s internal legal teams, including consideration of known or suspecteg instances of fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations;

+ understanding and evaluating the design and implementation of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect iregularities,
including whistleblowing arrangements;

*  inspecting management reports and Board minutes in relation to any regulatory matters; and

+ identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations, postings by
unexpected users and key word searches.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further remaved non-compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of

not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion,

We did not identify any key audit matters refating to irregularities, including fraud. As in all our audits we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal contrals, including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any camments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identifled by our audit.
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impairment of goodwill

Refer to pages 41 to 43 (Audit Committee
Report), pages 88 to 89 (Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements) and
pages 100 to 101 {Note 10).

IFRS requires that management perform an
impairment test on goodwill annually. At 31
December 2018 the carrying value of goodwill
is £52.2m (2018: £62.6m), with no impairment
charge recognised in the year {2018: £13.1m).

Management aggregates operations into Cost
Generating Units ('CGUs') which represent the
level at which the cash flows {and goodwill)
are monitored and therefore this is the level at
which management performs its impairment
assessment.

Determining if an impairment charge is required
for goodwill involves significant judgement
regarding the angoing structure of the business,
future results and cash flows of the business,
including forecast growth in future revenues
and EBITDA margins, as well as determining

an appropriate discount factor and long-term
growth rats (‘LTGR’). Market conditions remain
challenging and the remaining businesses have
experienced varying levels of profitability.

Management used a Value in Use ("VIU’) maodel,
which included the factors and judgements
referred to above, to compute the present value
of forecast future cash flows for each CGU
which were then compared to the carrying
value of the net assets of each CGU (including
geodwill, tangible and intangible assets) to
determine if there was an impairment.

Due to these factors and the judgements
involved, we consider this 1o be a key audit
matter.

{Group)

appropriate disclosures have been presented in the financial statements.

We checked and confirmed that the allocation of CGUs was consistent with internal
management monitoring and includad: Marketing {Xeim) and Legal (The Lawyer).

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these
included appropriate consideration of historical variances and uncertain market
conditions, and we also considered the appropriateness of sensitivity disclosures
provided in the financial statements, given that an impairment could arise from
reasonably possible changes to the model's key assumptions, particularly around
EBITDA forecasts.

We evaluated the Board approved forecasts for each CGLU and understood the
process by which these were calculated. We also obtained evidence of the Board
approval of these forecasts to 2022.

P

S

As part of our assessment we considered:

+  management’s key assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts including
the cost savings, revenue and EBITDA growth rates, and overhead levels by
comparing them 1o Board approved budgets and historical results;

+ forecast scenarios, including sensttivities surrounding potential cost savings to
be achieved and contribution growth;

« the discount rate applied, by invalving our valuations experts in assessing the
cost of capital for the Group and comparable organisations; and

»  LTGR applied, by involving our valuations experts in comparing management’s
rate to forecast long term GDP growth in the UK and industry growth reports.

We benchmarked the Group's discount rate (12.8% pre-tax) and LTGR (2.5%)
against external market data and considered our own independent range of
estimates. The long-term growth rate applied in management’s mode! was
considered optimistic based on our expectation of 2%. However, as a result
management factored a reduction in their LTGR into their applied sensitivities which
did not result in an impairment

After consultation with our valuaticns experts, we have determined that the discount
rate applied by management is within cur expected range.

In our view, the judgements made by management in preparing the impairment
model are acceptable. We note, however, that while management’s base case
forecasts and sensitivities indicated no impairment, there are certain reasonable
downside scenarios that would result in an impairment to both CGUs. We have
therefore evaluated the disclosure of sensitivity analyses performed by management
(as set out in Note 10) to ensure that these sensitivities are appropriately disclosed
in the financial statements and present a balanced view of reasonably possible
changes to assumptions in the VIU models.

We agree with management’s assassment that goodwill is not impaired and that
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Accouriting for disposals

Refer to pages 41 1o 43 (Audit Committee
Report), page 88 to 89 (Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements) and
page 98 {Nate 8).

The Group disposed of Financial (FiN), Travel
and Meetings (T&M), Human Resources (HR)
and Engineer (ENG). These disposals fall

under the scope of IFRS 5 ‘Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued operations’ and are
disclosed in the year-end financial statements as
discontinued cperations. The Group recognised
a profit on disposal of £7.8m during 2019 in
connection with these disposals.

Judgement is required to allocate the costs
relating to the disposals, the split between
continuing operations and discontinued
cperations and net asset value of the portfolios.

During the year, a small entity, Venture Business
Research (VBR), was also disposed which did
not qualify as a discontinued operation under
IFRS 5, with the resulting loss on disposal of
£0.1m included within continuing operations.
The Lawyer, despite being initially marketed for
sale and receiving offers did not meet the Asset
Held for Sale {{AHFS") criteria at 31 December
2019.

We consider the accounting for disposals

to be a key audit matter as the application

of IFRS 5 is significant to our audit given the
assessment of the classification is complex, the
transaction and its accounting is non-routine,
involves significant management judgement and
specific disclosures are required in the financial
staterments.

(Group)

Qur audit procedures included the following:

-

reviewed Sales and Purchase Agreements and recalculation of the gain on
disposal workings prepared by managerment, with consideration agreed to cash
receipts;

tested the net assets of each business;

tested the allocation of disposal costs including professional fees and
transaction bonuses to ensure the profit/loss on disposal is correct;
consideration of the allocation of financial statement balances between
continuad and discontinued operations to ensure it is appropriate;

reviewed the related disclosures in the financial statements to ensure they
comply with the requirements of IFRS 5;

assessed management's judgement that The Lawyer did not meet the IFRS 5
criteria for assets held for sale at year-end and VBR did not meet the IFRS 5
criteria for discontinued operations.

As a result of the above procedures, we:

agreed with management's assessment that the disposals of FIN, T&M, HR and
ENG met the criteria of discontinued operations. In addition, we agree that the
Lawyer did not meet the assets held for sale criteria at year-end and VBR did
not constitute discontinued cperations;

agreed with management's calculation and presentation of the profit on
disposals of FIN, T&M, HR and ENG as part of discontinued operations and
loss on disposal of VBR as part of continuing operations;

agreed the way in which costs directly attributable to the disposals were
allocated to the profit / loss on disposals; and

considerad the related disclosures in Note 8 and cther sections of the financial
statements with respect to the disposals to be sufficient and appropriate.
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Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Refer to pages 41 to 43 {Audit Committee
Report), pages 88 to 83 {Key accounting
assumptions, estimates and judgements) and
pages 104 to 105 (Note 13).

IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, requires
management to consider whether there are any
indicators of impairment. The Company has
investments in subsidiaries, with a total carrying
amount of £90.1m at 31 December 2019 (2018:
£125.8m). An impairment charge of £35.7m has
been recognised in the year (2018: £13.1m).

Determining if an impairment charge is required
for investments in subsidiaries involves
significant judgement regarding the ongoing
structure of the business, future results and cash
flows of the business, including forecast growth
in future revenues and EBITDA margins, as well
as determining an appropriate discount factor
and long-term growth rate ('LTGR"). Market
conditions remain challenging and different parts
of the businesses have experienced varying
levels of profitability.

Management used a VIU model to compute

the present value of forecast future cash flows
of the Group’s operationg which was then
compared to the carrying value of the underlying
investment. An impairment charge of £35.7m
has been recognised as the VIU model used to
compute the present value of forecast future
cash flows of the Group did not support the
carrying value of investments.

We consider this to be a key audit matter given
the size of the balance and the significant
judgements and estimates involved to determine
whether the carrying value of the investment is
appropriate.

(Company)

We considered management’s assessment of indicators of impairment and whether
the actual impairment recognised in 201§ is appropriate. Factors considered in our
assessment were the results of the VIU model used for the impairment test over
gocdwill referred to above) and market capitalisation of the Group compared to the
investrent carrying value.

We reviewed the judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure that these
included appropriate consideration of historical variances and uncertain market
conditions, and we also considered the appropriateness of disclosures provided in
the financial statements to explain the amount impaired.

We evaluated the Board approved cash flow forecasts for the Group and
understood the process by which these were prepared. We obtained evidence of
the Board's approval of these farecasts to 2022,

As part of our assessment, we considered:

< management’s key assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts including
the cost savings, revenue and EBITDA growth rates and overhead levels, by
comparing them to Board approved budgets and historical results;

- forecast scenarios, including sensitivities surrounding potential cost savings to
be achieved and EBITDA growth;

<« the discount rate applied, by involving our valuations experts in assessing the
cost of capital for the Group and comparable organisations; and

* LTGR applied, by involving our valuations experts in comparing management’s
rate to forecast long term GDP growth in the UK and industry reports.

We benchmarked the Group’s discount rate {12.8% pre-tax) and LTGR (2.5%)
against external market data and considered our own indapendent range of
estimates. The LTGR applied in management’s model was considered optimistic
based on our expectation of 2%. However, as a result management factored

a reduction in their long-term growth rate into their applied sensitivities. After
consultation with cur valuations, we have determined that the discount rate applied
by management is within our expected range.

There are a range of possibie impairment outcomes when management's forecasts
are sensitised. However, we consider the impairment recognised by management
and the related judgements to be acceptable and in the range identified. We also
note that there are certain reascnable scenarios that would result in an increased
impairment charge and we have therefore evaluated the disclosure of the sensitivity
analyses performed by management (as set cut in Note 13} to ensure that these
sensitivities are appropriately disclosed and present a reflection of reasonably
possible changes tc assumptions in the VIU model.

We agree with management’s assessment resulting in an impairment charge of
£35.7m and that the disclosures in the financial statements as set out in Note 13
surrounding the impairment are appropriate.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which
they operate.

The Group maintains all of its books and records of its operations in the London head office with the exception of the MarketMakers
Incorporated Limited entity ('MarketMakers’), which was acquired in 2017, which is managed from its Portsmouth office.

MarketMakers, alongside the rest of Centaur Group, have been identified as two in-scope compaenents. Both required full scope audits as
they are financially significant.

The Group audit team performed audit procedures over both components.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain guantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together
with gualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit precedures on
the individual financial statement line iterms and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate
on the financiai statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whele as follows:

I TTET I STENCTR SRR FY) SRR T T T HIPE IY ST

Overall materiality £244,000 {2018: £245,000). £236,000 (2018: £222,000).

How we determined it 0.5% of Revenue (2018: 5% of Adjusted 1% of Total Assets and capped at a level
profit before tax) telow Group materiality

Rationale for benchmark applied We believe that revenue is a key The principal activity of the Company is
benchmark for the Group for 2019 given that of a holding entity, and this benchmark
the current environment of change for the is an acceptable and normal materiality

Group, and we have therefore changed our  basis to adopt.
benchmark from 2018.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group materizlity. The range of
materiality allocated acrgss the two in-scope components was between £106,000 and £236,600. One component was audited to a local
statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £12,200 (Greup audit)
(2018: £12,250) and £11,800 {Company audit) (2018: £12,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Hoparhing o w o IV

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or We have nething material to add or to draw attention to.

draw attention to in respect of the Directors” statement in the However, because not all future events or conditions can be
financial statements about whether the Directors considered it predicted, this staterment is not a guarantee as to the Group's and
apprapriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in Company’s ability to continue as a going concsrn. For example,

preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of - thg tarms of the United Kingdem's withdrawal from the European
any material uncertainties to the Group's and the Company's ability  Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential

to continue as a going concern over a period of at least twelve implications on the Group's trade, customers, suppliers and the
manths from the date of approval of the financial statements. wider economy.
We are reguired to refiort if the Directors’ statemsnt relating We have nothing to report.

to Going Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsitility is 10 read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether thera is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstaternent of the cther information. If. based
on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2008 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our wark undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 (CAOB). ISAS
{UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us alsa to report certain opinions and matters as described below
required by I1SAs (UK} uriess otherwise stated),

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors” Report
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal
reguirements. (CAQG)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. {CAOB)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Cerperate Governance Statement (on
pages 37 to 40) about interna controls and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital
structures in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA (‘DTR") is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguirements. {CAOG})

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their enviranment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstaternents in this information. {CAQB)

In our opinion, based on the work undartaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance Staternent {on
pages 37 to 40) with respect to the Company's corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR. (CA0B)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
Company. (CAQB)

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the
solvency or liquidity of the Group
We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

»  The Directors’ confirmation on page 22 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

+  The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks ang explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

+  The Directors’ explanation on page 26 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performad a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and staterent in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group. Our review was substantially less in scope
than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the Birectors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the
statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Gode (the "Code”); and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit. (Listing Rules)
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Other Code Provisions

We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

»  The staterment given by the Directors, on page 82, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole 10 be fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members tc assess the Group’s and Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company cbtained in the
course of performing our audit.

+  The section of the Annual Report on pages 41 to 43 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

+  The Directors' statement relating tc the Company's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditars.

Directors’ Remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006. (CACE)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained maere fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The Directars are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 13As {UK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no ather purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where exprassly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requited to report to you if, in our opinion:

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appeinted by the Directors to audit the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2004 and subsequent financial periods. The pericd of total uninterrupted engagement is 16 years, covering the years ended
30 June 2004 to 31 Becember 2019. A competitive tender process for the audit was undertaken for the year ended 31 December 2017
during 2016.

JULIAN JENKINS
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Lendon

17 March 2020
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OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Restated? Restated? Restated?

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory

! St Resuits’ tarms’ Results

: o 2018 2018 2018

T £m £m £m

EEP AL 2 3.3 - LR 50.3 - 50.3

Other operating income 2 14 - 1.5 0.8 - 08

Net operating expenses 3 510, T3 I ey (53.3) {18.1) (71.4)

Jmasalng e it [l 1G4 (2.2 (18.1) (20.3)

Finance costs 6 10,31 - RSBl 0.2 - (0.2)

S N A .- T3 13.71 (2.4) {18.1) (20.5)

Taxation 7 10.5} i~ .7 0.4 0.7 1.1
L S T S T R TRTIATH

OIS 9 11,91 5.0 3.0 2.0 {17.4) (19.4)

Cizcontinued speratines
Profit / (joss) for the year from discontinued
cperaticns after tax 8,14 2.3 VoG 9.9 6.0 {0.8) 52

Prott “doss: or the Lo 3t boralhe o

carars af b parent ATt ta 0.4 1.5 1.3 4.0 {18.2) (14.2)
oAl corpre e g et e e S

wteoutabie o owne 5 b e 0.1 1.5 1.9 4.0 {18.2) (14.2}
Earrrgs < osa: ponaiar s b obrtanle o

craners of th parcnt [¢]

Basic from continuing operations 11,30} {1.301 5.5} {1.4p) (12.1p) {13.5p)
Baslic from discontinuing operations Lep 53¢ 4.2p (0.6p) 3.6p
D m pnaht eSS O e pene 0.3 1.0r 2.8p 12.7p) (9.9p)
Fully diluted from continuing operations ATV R 4.3 {1.4p) (12.1p) {13.5p)
Fully diluted from discontinued operations 1.8p 5.3p 4.0p {0.4p) 3.6p
Fulty ailutad ront arndit Ctas s e il yeor [RIRTR 1.00 2.6p (12.5p) (9.9p)

TAdjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1 {b)
?See note 1 [a) for description of prior year restaterment

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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% CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shares Foreign
Share Cwn Share to be Deferred currency Retained Totat
capital shares premium issued shares reserve earmings Equity
Note £m £m &m £m £€m gm £m £m
I 15.1 6.5} 1.1 1.1 01 - 74,0 B4.9
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive ioss - - - - - - (14.2) (14.2)
IAEN LN
Dividends 26 - - - - - - 4.3) 4.3)
Acquisition of treasury
shares 24 - {0.4) - - - - - 0.4)
Fair value of employee
services 25 - - - 0.7 - - - 0.7
a1 50 Doy 2014 131 6.9) 1.1 1.8 a1 - 55.5 66.7
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - - - - 1.9 14
a Sowith awnoers
N as
LANTE A
Dividendis 26 - - _ _ - - 71 7
Acquisition of treasury
shares 24 - {086 - - - - 2.5
Exercise of share awards 25 - C.3 - O - 0.2 -
Fair value of employee
senices 25 - - - o - - - oA
Foreign currency on
translation - - - - b - 0.1
An a2y Do Yia int P72 1A T3 i 3.1 501 511

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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“ COMPANY STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shares
Share Qwn Share to be Deferred Retained Tetal
capital shares premium issued shares earnings equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £rm

At 1 January 2018
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss - - - - - (13.7)
|..r Lo p SRV E
tear
LS
Dividends 26 - - - - - 4.3)
Fair vaiue of employee senvices 25 - - - 0.7 - -
As gl 31 Deocambir 2203 RSP 5.3 1 [ o1 I 3.2
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss - - - - - (40.2) 40.2)
T sacuons vath v us
thor capacity as o 3
Dividends 26 - - - - - (7.1} (7.1)
Exercise of share awards 25 - - - Q.1) - 0.1) {0.2)
Fair value of employee services 25 - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
As 3t Besomber 2014 191 5.3 11 1.3 a1 150 7.8

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these censolidated financial statements,
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OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Registered number 04948078

“. oy T 5
Goodwiil

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and eguipment

Deferred tax assets

Diarart L3a0

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax assets

Tom nssaein
Crrrars a1
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Deferred income

Provisions
Mo e aee et
Meeonrr et sl e

| ease labilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities

Mt s

TARLAl G o L s T et Qs ot e

Share capital

Own shares

Share premium

Other reserves

Fareign currency reserve
Retained earnings

ot e,

“See note 1 fa) far description of prior year restatement

Note

10
11
12
15

16
17
18
22

19
20
21
23

20
23
15

24

Restated?
31 December

2018
£m

6826
15.8
1.3
08
80.2

1.4
13.7
01
0.2
15.4
95.6

(13.2)

(15.0)

{0.1)
(28.3)
(12.9)

66.7

151
(6.9)
1.1

1.9

55.5
66.7

The financial statements on pages 72 to 121 were approved by the Board of Directers on 17 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Simon Longfield
Chief Financial Officer
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Registered number 04948078

Investrments
Deferred tax assets

ETEY
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

SRR P ]

Loyt Aaiknties

Trade and other payables

Nt et haeies

Coamr ol ng enso s Athe a0 awrers of the aares

Share capital
Own shares
Share premium
Cther reserves
Retained earnings

Tatal wyont

Note

17
18

24

151
6.3}
1.1
1.9
16.0
27.3

31 December
2018
£m

125.8
0.1
1269

3.1
3.1
128.0

(53.8)
(50.7)

75.2

151
6.3
1.1
1.9
63.4
752

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its
own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The movement in retained earnings includes the Company’s loss for

the year of £40.2m (2018: £13.7m) and dividends of £7.1m (2018: £4.3m).

The financial statements on pages 72 to 121 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2020 and were signed on its behaff by:

Simon Longfield
Chief Financial Officer
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% CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note

Ll L ST o

Cash generated from operations 27
Tax refund / {paid)

Tt T T A

SUUETUENG S E e e et e e e

Cash consideration received on disposal of subsidiaries less cash and cash equivalents

disposed of 14
Directly attributable costs of disposal of subsidiaries 14
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12
Purchase of intangible assets "
Acquisition of subsidiary 23
RN B L T S E L T Lt A A 10 B VEr A I AT ATVERE SAPRNHS TSRV P

Cast flows o imaneetg actvibos

Payment for shares bought back 24
Loan arrangement fees 6
Interest paid 5]
Repayment of obligations under lease arrangements 20
Dividends paid to Company’s sharehclders 26
Proceeds from borrowings 28
Repayment of borrowings 28
Met cass flows asod g hearcindg activioes
Mobarersas - Cdeor st o Tash 100 Sash goLva anta
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

TASH AN ST SOy TE G e 0 yoa 18

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Year ended
31 December
2018

£rn

6.8
1.2
5.6
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% COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

- Year ended
- - 31 December
o 2018
Note . £m
RS B [ NI STR U FETARS SN T S
Cash generated from cperating activities 27 3 4.7
e T L e s lingg A e
Net cash flows used in investing activities - -
B R RS I S TIPS B T LI
Interest paid 6 2.2 ©.4)
Cividends paid to Company’s shareholders 26 71 4.3)
Proceeds from borrowings 28 2.3 4.5
Repayment of borrowings 28 (2.8 4.5)
Net cash flows used in financing activities 7.3 4.7)

Mot oo 1o aash and cashoanioow e - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year - -

Zasn w0 Tulvalents at ontt o gt 18 - -

The notes on pages 79 to 121 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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% NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated and Company financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Group consisting of Centaur Media Ple and its subsidiaries, and the Compary, Centaur Media Plc. Centaur Media Plc is a public company
limited by shares and incorporated in England and Wales.

{a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS’} as adopted by the Eurcpean Union ana {IFRS Interpretations Committee (‘IFRS IC') and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concearn basis. The Directors have carefully assessed the Group’s ability to continue
trading and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
at least twelve manths from the date of approval of these financial statements and for the foreseeable future.

Net cash (see reconciliation in note 27) at 31 December 2019 amounted to £9.3m (2018: £0.1m). In November 2018, the Group renewed
its £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotland and Lloyds, which runs to November 2021 with the option
to extend for 2 periods of 1 year each. None of this was drawn-down at 31 December 2019. Our reported cash conversion rate for the year
was 100% (2018: 856%).

The Group has net current liabilities at 34 December 2019 amounting to £3.1m {2018: £12.9m). In the prior year these primarily arose from
its normal high levels of deferred income relating to events in the future rather than an inability to service its liabilities, as deferred income will
not result in a cash cutflow. In the current year net liabilities is at a lower level due to the disposal of businesses with high levels of deferred
income during the year. An assessment of cash flows for the next three financial years, which has taken into account the factors described
above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation which would be sufficient to allow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital
requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its UK subsidiaries, to cover all principal areas of expenditure, including maintenance,
capital expenditure and taxation during this year, and to meet the financial covenarts under the revolving credit facility. The Company has
net current liabilities at 31 Decernber 2019 amounting to £62.4m (2018: £50.7m). These almost entirely arise from unsecured payables to
subsidiaries which have no fixed date of repayment.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of agsets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates.

Having assessed the principal risks and the other matters discussed in connection with the viability statermnent on page 26, the Directors
consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing its conselidated financial statements.

New and amended stondards adopted by the Group
The following new standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019 have been adopted by
the Group:

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 sets out the requirements for lesses and lessor lease accounting. The new standard replaces IAS 17, and eliminates the
classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and instead introduces a single accounting model
for leases which requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.

Impact

The Group has performed an impact assessment on its existing and any expected upcoming lease arrangernents. On adoption the Group
has taken advantage of the ‘short term lease’ (lease term 12 months or under) and ‘low value items’ (those deemed to be immaterial)
axemptions. The Group has also applied the practical expedient on transition where only contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 are assessed for the purposes of IFRS 16, however the Group does not believe that any contracts other than those falling in
scope after the practical expedient is applied would be deemed to contain a lease arrangement under IFRS 16.

The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective transition approach where comparative periods are not restated. but the
cumulative impact of applying IFRS 16 is reflected as an adjustment to the opening balance sheet at 31 December 2019, Arrangements
already constituting finance leases under IAS 17are not impacted by the transition to IFRS 16. At adoption on 1 January 2019 there were
three existing lease arrangements captured by iIFRS 16 that were previously accounted for as operating leases under 1AS 17. During the
year, one contract commenced that constitutes a lease arrangement under IFRS 16.
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% NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Each lease arrangement has been accounted for over its lease term as outlined in the contract. Where options to extend or terminate exist
in these contracts, the recognition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets represent the Directors understanding of likely future cash flows
under these contracts. The assets and liabilities will continue 1o be reviewed and will be revalued where a change in the future cash flows is
indicated.

Right-of-use assets with a value of £5.5m were recognised (£2.3m for existing leases transitioning on adoption of IFRS 16 and £3.2m for a
new lease commencing on 1 October 2019). Lease liabilties with a value of £6.5m were recognised (£3.3m for existing leases transitioning
on adoption of IFRS 16 and £3.2m for a new lease commencing on 1 October 2019). The value of the IFRS 18 impact to the P&L is
immaterial, however the expenses are now classified as depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease
lizbility. Please see note 20 for details of these assets, liabilities and expenses. There is no impact to cash flow. All leases discussed here are
property leases.

Disclosures

Disclosures have been made in line with IFRS 16 requirements. The accounting policy for leases is set out in note 1() and the use of the
incremental borrewing rate as an accounting estimate in calculating the prasent value of leases is set out in nete 1(t{vi. Further disclosures
on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities can be found in notes 12 and 20.

Other

No other new standards or amendments to standards (including the Annual Improvements (2015) to existing standards) that are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019 affected any of the amounts recogniged in the current year or any prior
year and is not likely to affect future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
There are no standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected tc have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foresesable future transactions.

Prior year restatements

{) Discontinued operations

Where the requirements of IFRS 5 have been met, the operational results of subsidiaries dispased of have been presentad in discontinued
operations in the current period and restated to discontinued in the comparative period. See notes 8 and 14 for more details.

ii} Correction of prior period accounting errors

Where indicated, restatements have been made to prior year comparatives for trade receivables and other payables (presented in trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables on the face of the consclidated statement of financial position). The restatement is in respact
of credit balances which were reported in trade receivables in 2018, with the result of lowering the balances of both trade receivables

and other payables by £0.8m. This was identified after the authorisation of the 2018 Annual Report, and therefore the balances are being
retrospectively reclassified. This restatement has impacted the balances on the consolidated staterment of financial position and notes 18, 20
and 28. This restatement has no impact to periods prior to 2018.

Comparative numbers
Certain prior year comparatives have been updated to reflect current year disclosures.

(b) Presentation of non-statutory measures

In addition to statutcry measures, the Directors use various non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group’s performance and
consider that presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding of the core trading performance of the
Group. The measures used are explained and reconciled to their equivalent statutory headings below.

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share, split between continuing and discontinued operations, provide
additional useful information on the core operational performance of the Group to sharehalders, and review the results of the Group on an
adjusted basis internally. The term ‘adjusted’ is nct a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titled profit
measurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or supericr to, IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made in respect of:

*  Exceptional items — the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes them from the adjusted results
where the nature of the item, or its magnitude, is material and likely to be nen-recurring in nature so as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the results of the core operations of the Group. Details of exceptional items are shown in note 4.

+  Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - the amortisation charge for those intangible assets recognised on business combinations
is excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges arising from investment activities. As such, they are
not considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group. Details of amortisation of intangible assets are shown in note 11.

= Share-based payments — share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the Group as the
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Directors believe that the volatility of these charges can distort the user's view of the core trading performance of the Group. Details of
share-based sayments are shown in note 25,

+  Impairment of goodwill — the Directors believe that non-cash impairment charges in relation to goodwill are generally volatile and
material, and therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group. Previous impairment charges were presented
as exceptional items. Details of the goodwill impairment analysis are shown in ncte 10.
+ Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries — profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from adjusted results of
the Group as they are unrelated to core trading and can distort a user’s understanding of the performance of the Group due to their
infrequent and volatile nature. See note 4.
Other separately reported items — certain other items are excluded from adjusted results where they are considered large or unusual
encugh to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year. Details of these separately disclosed items are shown in note 4.
The tax related to adjusting items is the tax effect of the items above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes (primarily exceptional
items), calculated using the standard rate of corporation tax. See note 7 for a reconciliation between reported and adjusted tax charges.

Further detalls of adjusting items are included in note 4. A reconciliation between adjusted and statutory earnings per share measures is
shown in note 9.

Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating loss as follows:

Restated?
RO 2018
Note em £m
Zase pefor tan 18.7% 20.5)
Arliusting items
Excepticnat operating costs 4 4.7 20
Impairment of goodwill 10 - 12.8
Amortisation of acquired intangibie assets 1 2.1 25
Share-based payment expense 25 a1 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Venture Business Research Limited) 14 (18] -
Adusiond ns Detore tas 1.4 {2.4)
Finance costs 5] 0.3 0.2
Adinsusd soeratineg foss 1.1 2.2)
Cash o oroas of adusan g teirns 2.7 {0.8)
T om0 cnuEtbg tems 7 i1.2) 0.7

25ee note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adijusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as cash flow from operations excluding the impact of adjusting
iterns, which are defined above, and including capital expenditure. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile itemns not rafated to the core trading of the Group and includes the Group'’s management of capital expenditure.
Statutory cash flow from operations reconciles to adjusted operating cash as below:

2018

Note £m

Reported cash flow from operating activities 27 6.8
Adjusting items from operations 3 25
Working capital impact of adjusting iterns from operations 121 (1.7)
Adumiond sveer b e i flove 7.3 76
Capital expenditure S 2.8)
Poab cigsiial v e o L ar N 4.8

o
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Underlying revenue growth

The Directors review underlying revenue growth in order to allow a like for like comparison of revenues between years. Underlying revenues
therefore exclude the impact of event timing differences, revenue contribution arising from acquired or disposed businesses and other
revenue streams that are not expected to be ongeing in future years.

Statutory revenue growth reconciles to underlying revenue growth as follows:

X . “ota

Reported revenue 2018 T © 426 77 503
Disposed business — Venture Business Research ('VBR’) - 0.3 0.3)
Closed evant — Marketing Week Live (1.5) - (1.5)
Underbying 2vasle 20170 1 h 3.5
Reported revenue 2019 4Q.7 8.2 48.9
Disposed business — Venture Business Research (‘'VBR') - 0.1) 0.1)
Clcsed event — Marketing Week Live (1.1} - (1.1)
Undearlyimng movnnis 200182 PG S 7.7
Reportad rovenun: ~ =N 3 370
Underlying raverue growth . 3 {27
Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure defined by IFRS. It is defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and impairment of tangible
assets and amortisation and impairment of intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combination. 1t is used by

the Directors as a measure to review performance of the Group and forms the basis of some of the Group's financial covenants under its
revolving credit facility. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as foillows:

Restated?

2l 2018

i ) : 7 B N . ) Note‘ o - -',::1 B E,m,
Adjusted operating loss (as above) o (2.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 2.2 09
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 0ot -
Amertisation of computer software 11 2.5 2.7
Impairment of computer software " 3.3 -

11 1.4

Adjusted EBITDA

?See note 1 (a) for description of prior year restatement

Net cash/(debt)

Net cash/{debt) is not a measure defined by IFRS. Net cash/(debt) is calculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the
Group's financing arrangements. The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clarity over the Group’s liquidity as a whole. A
recongciliation between net debt and statutory measures is shown in note 27.

{¢) Principles of consoiidation
The consolidated financial staternents incorporate the financial statements of Centaur Media Plc and all of its subsidiaries after elimination of

intercompany transactions and balances.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fuly consolidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group until the date that the Group ceases to control
them. In the statement of comprehensive income, the results of subsidiaries for which control has ceased are presented separately as
discontinued operations in the year in which they have been disposed of and in the comparative year.

On the disposal of a subsidiary, assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are de-recognised from the consolidated statement of financial
pesition, earnings up to the date of loss of controt are retained in the Group, and a profit/{loss) on disposal is recognised measured as
consideration received less the fair value of assets and liabilities disposed of.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.
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(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial staterments are presented in Pounds Sterling,
which is the Group and Company's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominatad in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the staterment of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

(ifii) Group Companies
The results and financial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

« Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

= income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates {unless this average is not
a reasonabile approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

« Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cn conselidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of berrowings are
recegnised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liahilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in accordance with IFRS 15. Revenue is measured at the transaction price, which is the amount of consideration

te which Centaur expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer. Judgement may arise

in timing and allocation of transaction price when there are multiple performance obligations in one contract, however an annual impact
assessment is performed which has confirmed that the impact is immaterial in both the current year and comparative year. Revenue arises
from the sales of premium content, marketing services, training and advisory, events, marketing and advertising sclutions, and telemarketing
services in the nermal course of business, net of discounts and value added tax. Goods and services exchanged as part of a barter
transaction are recognised in revenue at the fair value of the goods and services provided. Returns, refunds and other similar allowances,
which have histarically been low in volume and immaterial in magnitude, are accounted for as a reduction in revenue as they arise.

Where revenue is deferred it is held as a balance in deferred income on the consclidated statement of financial position. At any given
statement of financial position date, this deferred income is current in nature and is expected to wholly be recognised in revenue in

the fallowing financial year, with the exception of returns and credit notes, which have historically been low in volume and immaterial in
magnitude. Additionally, in the current year, deferred income held in a subsidiary at the point of its disposal wili not have been recognised in
revenue for the Group for the year.

The Group recognises revenue earned from contracts as individual performance obligations are met, on a stand-alone selling price basis.
This is when value and control of the product or service has transferred, being when the product is delivered to the customer or the peried in
which the services are rendered as set out in mare detail below.

Premium Content

Revenue from subscriptions is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over the subscription pericd reflecting the continuous
provision of paid content services over this time. Revenue from individual publication sales is recognised at the point at which the publication
is delivered to the customer. In general the Group bills custormers for premium content at the start of the contract.

Marketing Services

Revenue from campaign work and consultancy contracts is recognised when the Group has obtained the right to consideration in exchange
for its performance, which is when a separately identifiable phase {milestone) of a contract has been completed and the value and benefit

of the services rendered have been transferred to the customer. In general the Group bills customers for marketing services up front on a
milestone basis.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Training and Advisory
Revenue from training and advisory is deferred and recognised over the period of the training or when a separately identifiable milestone of a
contract has been delivered to the customer. In general the Group bills customers for training and advisory up front on a milestone basis.

Events
Consideration received in advance for events is deferred and revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the event takes place. In
general, the Group bills custorners for events before the event date.

Marketing and Advertising Solutions

Marketing Solutions revenue from display and bespoke campaigns is recognised over the period that the service is provided. Sales of online
advertising space are recognised over the period during which the advertisements are placed. Sales of advertising space in publications

are recognised at the point at which the publication occurs. In general the Group bills customers for marketing and adverlising solutions on
delivery.

Telemarketing Services

Revenue from telemarketing services is deferred and recognised over the period that the service is delivered generally according to the
number of hours expended as a proportion of the total hours contracted. In general the Group bills customers for telemarketing services in
advance.

{f) Other operating income
Other operating income includes revenue from all other operating activities which are not related to the principal activities of the Group.

Included in ather operating income is rental income and transitionai services agreement income.

Rental income is for the sub-lease of properties under lease, which is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term using the
exemption avaifable for short-terrn leases under IFRS 16, see note 1(j).

Transitional services agreement income relates to services provided to the tuyers of the Group companies disposed of during the year,
which is recognised at the point in time at which the service is delivered. The costs associated with this income are included within net
operating expenses on the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income.

{g) Investments
In the Company’s financial statements, investrments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value.

Invastments are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the investments fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use.

An asset’s value-in-use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash fiows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital. Any
impairment is recognised in the staterment of comprehensive income. If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
investment's recoverable amount, impairment losses that have been recognised in prior periods may be reversed. This reversal is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

(h) Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes iterns of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further includes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group and Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the staterment of financial position date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax fiabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is recognised in cther comprehensive income.
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{i) Leases

Lessee gccounting

Under IFRS 186, leases are accounted for on a ‘right-of-use model' reflecting that, at the commencement date, the Group as a lessee

has a financial obligation to make lease payments to the lessor for its right to use the underlying asset during the fease term. The financial
cbligation is recognised as a lease liabitity, and the right to use the underlying asset is recognised as a right-of-use ('RCU’) asset. The

ROU assets are recognised within property, plant and equipment on the face of the censolidated statement of financial position, and are
presented separately in note 12.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments using the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be
readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate (ses note 1{t)(vil)). Subsequently the lease liability is measured at amortised cost, with
interest increasing the carrying amount and lsase payments reducing the carrying amount. The carrying amount is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost which comprises:

+ the amount of the initial measurernent of the lease liability;

*  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
*  any initial direct costs; and

*  an estimate of costs to be incurred at the end of the lease term.

Subsequently the ROU asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depraciation is calculated to write
off the cost on a straight line-basis over the lease term.

Using the exemption available under IFRS 16 the Group elects not to apply the requirements above to:
+  Shortterm leases; and
+ Leases for which the underlying asset is of a low value.

In these cases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an expense cn a straight-line basis over the lease term, or another systematic
basis if that basis is more representative of the agreesment.

Lessor accounting

The Group had contracts for the sub-lease of areas of its Wells Street property lease. These arrangements were exempt from the
requirements of IFRS 16 under the short-term lease exemption as they all had a lease term of under twelve months from the date of
transition. As such, the income derived from these sub-leasing arrangements is recegnised on a straight-line basis and is presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in ‘other operating income’. All arrangements in which the Group acted as a lessor
ceased during the year.

{j) Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amaortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. An impairmeant loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset's fair value less cost
of disposal and its value-in-use. An asset’s value in use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted
average cost of capital.

(k} Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publicatiens and
exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event. Cost is measured as all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bring
the inventories to their present location and condition.

{l) Property, plant and equipment

See note 1{j for right-of-use assets. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impalrment losses. The historical cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of
acquisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight line-basis over the expected
useful economic lives to the Group over the following pericds:

Leasehald improvements — 10 years or the expected length of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings —51to0 10 years

Computer equipment -3to5years

Right-of-use assets — over the lease term

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

{m) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Where the cost of a business acquisition exceeds the fair values attricutable to the separable net assets acquired, the resulting goodwill
is capitalised and allocated to the cash-generating unit ({CGU’) or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. Goodwil has an indefinite useful life and is testead for impairment annually on a Group level or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Each segment is deemed to be a CGU. Goodwill and acquired intangible assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with |AS 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangitle assets is required, the carrying value of the segment is compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Any impairment
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income {in net operating expenses) and is classified as an adjusting item. Impairment of
goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of a CGLU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(i} Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships and non-compete arrangements

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost. Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships ana
non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful
{ife and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amaontisation and impairment losses.

(iii) Software

Computer software that is not integral to the operation of the related hardware is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Costs
associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group that will generate probable future
economic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when the criteria of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are met. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

{iv) Amortisation methods and periods
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic
lives to the Group over the fallowing periods;

Computer software -3to 5years

Brands and pubtishing rights - 5to 20 years

Customer refationships - 3 to 10 years or over the term of any specified contract
Separately acquired websites and content -3tobyears

Non-compete arrangements — Qver the term of the arrangement

(n) Employee benefits

(i} Post-employment obligations

The Group and Campany contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in net operating expenses when employer centributions become payable.

(i} Shore-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees. The fair value of the share-based
compensation expense is estimated using either a Monte Carlo or Black-Scholes option pricing mode! and is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in 2quity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

+ Including any market performance conditions;

+  Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets,
cash flow perfermance and remaining an emgloyee of the entity over a specified time period); and

» Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions {for example, the requirement for employees to save).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting year, the Graup revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on
the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The Gompany issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury
shares to settle share-based compensation awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution, only if it is left unsettled. The fair value of employes senvices received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions for deferred contingent consideration are measured at fair value. Where the deferred consideration is contingent on the continued
employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight line
basis over the period of the arrangement.

{p) Equity

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity. The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over the nominal
value of those shares is recognised in the share premium account. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's eguity instruments, for example as the result of a share buyback or share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incrernental costs (net of income taxes) ts deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly atiributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of the Campany.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contributed equity. The Company
also holds a non-distributable reserve representing the fair value of unvested share-based compensations plans.

Own shares
Own shares consist of treasury shares and shares held within an employee benefit trust. The Company has an employee benefit trust for the
granting of shares to applicable employees.
Own shares are recognised at cost as a deduction from equity shareholders’ funds. Subsequent consideration received for the sale of such
shares is also recognised in eguity, with any difference between the sale proceeds and the criginal cost being taken to retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised in the financial statements on transactions in treasury shares.
{q)} Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the yaar in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company’s final dividend for the year, approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
(r) Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. In light of the disposals of subsidiaries, the reportable segments of the Group have changed since
the year ended 31 December 2018, In the year then ended {and in previous years) the three reportable segments of the Group, each of
which were allocated a proportion of corporate income and costs, were:
= Marketing {renamed to Xeim);
+ Financial Services (disposed 31 March 2019); and
»  Professional, which comprised the following portfolios:

Legal, which consisted of The Lawyer and Venture Business Research ('VBR') (VBR was disposed on 13 May 2019,

Human Resources (disposed 30 April 2019);

Travel & Meetings {disposed 30 April 2019); and

Engineering {disposed 31 May 2019).
Consequently, the core operations are now organised around the two continuing reportable market-facing segments Xeim and The Lawyer
{the remaining component of the previous Legal portfolio), with corporate income and costs presented separately as “Central”,

Certain prior year comparatives have been updated to reflect current year presentation.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(s) Financial instruments
The Group has applied IFRS 8, Financial Instruments as outlined below:

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies and measures its financial assets in line with one of the three measurement models under IFRS 9: at amortised cost,
fair vaiue through profit or foss, and fair value through other comprehensive income. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets based on the requirements of IFRS 9 at initial recogniticn.

They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financiat position date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group's financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of financial position. Please see the following sections.

(i} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are accounted for under IFRS 9 being recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost less any
allowance for axpected lifetime credit losses under the “expected credit koss” model. As mandated by IFRS 9, the expected lifetime credit
lcsses are calculated using the 'simplified’ approach.

The ailowance for expected lifetime credit losses for trade receivables is established by considering, on a discounted basis, the cash
shertfalls it wouid incur in various defaults scenarios for prescribed future periods and multiplying those shortfalls by the probability of each
scenario occurring. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the abillty of the customers to settle the receivables. The allowance is the sum of these probability weighted outcomes. The
allowance and any changes to it are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within net operating expenses. A provision
matrix is used to calculate the allowance for expected lifstime credit Icsses on trade receivables which is based ¢n historical default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. When a trade receivable is uncoliectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group defines a default as failure of a debtor to repay an amount
due as this is the time at which our estimate of future cash flows from the debtor is affected.

(iif) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable cn demand or maturing within three months of the statement of
financial positicn date.

{iv} Financial fiabifities
Debt and trade payables are recagnised initially at fair value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction casts, and subsequently at
amortised cost.

Interest expense on debt is accounted for using the effective interest method and is recognised in income.

{v) Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
{vi) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carried subsequently at amortised cost. Costs of
borrowings are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred or, where appropriate, across the term of the related
borrowing.

{vii) Receivables from and payables to subsidiaries
The Company has amounts receivable fromn and payable to subsidiaries which are recognised at fair value. Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries are assessed annually for recoverability under the requirements of IFRS 9.

(viii) Derivative financial instruments
The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges.

(t) Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS reguires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires management to
exercise its judgement and to make estimates. The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

(i} Carrying value of goodwill, other intangible assets and Company investment estimate

In assessing whether goodwill, other intangible fixed assets and the Company's investment are impaired, the Group uses a discounted
cash flow model which includes forecast cash flows and estimates of future growth. If the results of operations in future periods are lower
than included in the cash flow maodel, impairments rmay be triggered. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-calculations.
Further details of the assumptions and sensitivities in the discounted cash fiow model are included in notes 10 and 13.
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Intangible assets arising on business combinations are identified based on the Group's understanding of the acquired business and previous
experience of similar businesses. Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and
appropriate, using information reviewad at Board level where available. Discount rates applied in calculating the values of intangible assets
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are calculated specifically for each acquisiticn and adjusted to reflect the respective risk profile of
each individual asset based on the Group's past experience of similar assets,

(i} Recoverability of trade receivables estimate

The allowance for expected lifetime credit losses for trade receivables is calculated in line with IFRS @. This is established by censidering on
a discounted basis the cash shortfalis it would incur in various default scenarios for prescribed future periods and multiplying the shortfalls
by the probability of each scenario occurring. The historical foss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. Further details about trade receivables are included in
note 17 and information about the credit risk and expected lifetime credit losses are shown in note 28,

(iii} Adjusting items judgement

The term 'adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS. Judgement is required to ensure that the classification and presentation of certain
items as adjusting, including excepticnal items, is appropriate and consistent with the Group’s accounting policy. Further dstails about the
amounts classified as adjusting are included in notes 1(b) and 4.

(iv) Share based payments estimate
The falr value of the share-based compensation expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income requires the use of
estimates. Details regarding the determination of fair value of these costs are set out in note 1{n)(ii).

{v} Deferred tax judgement and estimate

The calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities requires judgement. Where the ultimate tax treatment is uncertain, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on an estimate of future taxable income and recoverability. Where a change in circumstances
oceurs, or the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax balances in the year in which that change or outcome is known. The accounting policy regarding deferredt tax is set out above
in note 1(h).

fvi) Valuation of intangibles estimate

Intangibles assets acquired in a business combination are required to be recognised separately from goodwill and amortised over their useful
life. The Group has separately recognised computer software, brands and customer relationships in the acquisitions made {see note 11).
The fair value of these acquired intangibles is based on valuation techniques that require inputs based on assumptions about the future and
estimates related to current market conditions.

The Group aiso makes assumptions about the useful life of the acquired intangibles as outlined in note 1{mj{iv).

{vii) Lease incrementol borrowing rate estimate

The adeption of IFRS 18 on 1 January 2019 requires the use of an incremental borrowing rate ('1BR’} to discount minimum future lease
payments to present value. The IBR is an estimate used in accounting for leases under IFRS 16 where the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined. The IBR is the rate of interest that a lessee weould have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to cbtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. This
is calculated by using LIBOR as a reference rate and adjusting for the Group’s specific borrowing rate on its existing revolving credit facility.
Additionally, for each individual contract a lease specific adjustment is made where necessary by using market yields on similar assets as a
data point.

2 Segmental reporting

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief cperating decision-maker, reviewing the Group's internal reporting on a manthly
basis in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

In light of the disposals of subsidiaries in the current year, the reportable segments of the Group have changed since the year ended 31
December 2018. In the year then ended {and in previcus years) the three reportable segments of the Group were as follows, with corporate
income and costs allocated to each on an appropriate basis:

+  Marketing {renamed Xeimj;
+  Financial Services (disposed 31 March 2019); and
»  Professional, the aggregate of the following pertfolios:
Legal (which consists of The Lawyer and VBR (until disposal of VBR on 13 May 2019));
Human Resources (disposed 30 April 2019);
Travel & Meetings {disposed 30 April 2019); and
Engineering (disposed 31 May 2019).
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Consequently, the core operations are now organised around the two continuing reportable market-facing segments: Xeim and The Lawyer
{the remaining component of the previous Legal portfolio). Corporate income and costs have been presented separately as “Central”. The
Group believes this is the most appropriate presentation of segmental reporting in order for the user to understand the care operations of

the Group. There Is no inter-segmental revenue.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equiprment, intangible assets including goodwill, inventories and trade receivables.

Segment liabilities comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income.

Corporate assets and liabilities primarily comprise property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets, current and deferred tax balances, cash

and cash equivalents, borrowings and lease liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and includes additions resulting from

acquisitions through business combinations.
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Other operating income
Adjusted operating profit

Excepticnal operating
costs

Impairment of goodwilt

Amortisation of acquired
intangibles

Share-based payments

Profit on disposal of
subsidiary
Dpeorat o doss) Coroht
Finance costs

(Loss) / profit before tax

Taxation

(Les sty peofit for the yeoar

Segment assets
Caorporate assets
Corsohdated wotal
AEEets

Segment liabilities
Corpoerate liabilities
[oh ]

aredd Latal

habn
O'}':'?' Loy
Capital expenditure

(tangible and intangibie
assets)

% See note 1 {a) for descrption of prior year restatement

11
25

14

Supplemental Information

Revenue by Geographical Location

56.6

(11.4)

2.4)

03

50.3

5.3

{0.6)
(12.8)

(2.5)
(0.2)

{10.8)

74.3

(13.8)

2.2

08
(7.5)

(1.4)

{0.6)

8.9

2.9

®.7)

0.8

(0.5)
(0.3)

(0.3)

0.1
6.4

6.4
1.2
5.2
18.4

18.4
{8.4)

8.4)

The Group’s revenues from continuing operations from external customers by gsographical location are detailed below:

Umnited Kingdom

Europe (excluding United Kingdom)

North America
Rest of world

? See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restaternent

[ A

Restated?
Xeim
2018

MEm
345
1.7
4.2
22

42.6

Restated?
The Lawyer
2018
gm
6.1
0.7
0.4
0.5
7.7

01
13.9)
02
SERE
o
1112}
92.7
2.3

5.6
122.2)
8.7

128 9

Restated?
Total
2018

£m

406
2.4
46
27

50.3

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdem. The Directers therefore consider that the Group currently
operates in a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom.
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2 Segmental reporting continued

Revenue by fype
The Group's revenue from centinuing operations by type is as follows:

Restated? Restated? Restated?

= v Xeim The Lawyer Total

1) . 2018 2018 2018

o oo £m £m £m

Premium Content 1.0 3.3 [ 11.2 3.2 14.4
Marketing Services EEN - N 4.5 - 4.5
Training and Advisory T 5 - 5 8.0 - 8.0
Events 12 2.1 4.7 18 6.5
Marketing and Advertising Sclutions NS 2.6 K 4.6 2.7 7.3
Telemarketing Services 35 - 373 9.6 - 9.6
o 5.2 183 42.6 7.7 50.3

2 See note 1 (a) for descnption of prior year restatement

The accounting policies for each of these revenue streams is disclosed in note 1 (), including the timing of revenue recognition. There are
some contracts for which revenue has net yet been recognised and is being held in deferred income, see note 21, This deferred income is
all current and is expected to be recognised as revenue in 2020.

Other operating income
The Group's other operating income from continuing operations by type is as follows:

ity 2018

i £m

éalrerof goéds' anhd ée?vic]as o T " o
Rental income .8 08
Transitional services agreement income 0.8 -
16 0.8

Rental income relates to the sublease of part of the Group’s rented property in London. There is not expected te be income in respect of this
going forward as this property has been vacated in December 2013. See note 29 for further details.

Transiticnal services agresment income relates to services provided to the buyers of the Group companies disposed of during the year.
There is not expected to be income in respect of this going forward as all transitional services agreements have ceased during the year.
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3 Net operating expenses
Continuing operating loss is stated after charging:

Note
Employee benefits expense 5
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 12
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 12
Amortisation of intangible assets 11
Impairment of intangible assets 11
Impairment of goodwil 10
Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Venture
Business Research Limited)
Other exceptional operating costs 4
Property costs
Repairs and maintenance expenditure
Impairment of trade receivables 28
Share-based payment expense 25

IT expenditure

Other staff related costs
Marketing expenditure
Other operating expenses

Cost of sales
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

! Adjusted results exclude adjusting iterns, as detailed in note 1 (b)

2 See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restatement

Services provided by the Company’s auditor

Fees payable to the Company’s auditcr for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial

staternents

2.1
0.1

=4

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:

The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

SOl audhoees
Audit related assurance services

DU TN e

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company and consolidated financial statements include nen-recurring fees of

£72.000 (2018: £34,000).

oA
1.3
2.1
.1
0.4
2.1

Restated?
Adjusted
Results’
2018

£m

30.3

0.9

27

33
0.1
0.2

3.1
25
2.1
8.1
533
19.6
0.1
33.6

53.3

Restated?
Adjusting
Items®
2018

£m

1.6

25

12.8

0.4

Restated?
Statutory
Results
2018

£m

31.9

0.9

5.2

12.8

0.4
33
0.1
0.2
0.8
3.1
25
2.1
8.1

71.4

19.8
0.1

51.7

71.4

208
£'000

214

58
272
25
25

297

a3
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“NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Adjusting items

As discussed in nate 1(b), certain items are presented as adjusting. These are detailed below:

Restated®

o 2018

. : Note : £m

Exceptional operating costs

Staff related restructuring costs (including external employment advice costs) 5 2.3 0.4
Casts relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives - 0.3
Divestment programme related costs 1.3
Exceptional operating costs LT 2.0
Impairment of goodwil 10 - 12.8
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 2.4 2.5
Share-based payment expense 25 [eN 0.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 8,14 1 -
Adjusting items to profit before tax A 18.1
Tax relating to adjusting items 7 112y (0.7)
Toral acjusung stoems arter e ar sontinuimg operabions 5.1 17.4
RIS ET ,‘J:: 'rn\d“w; ) T h ’
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 8.14 7.6 {0.1)
Exceptional costs 8 6.1 0.5
Impairment of goodwil 10 - 0.3
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 a1 0.3
Tax relating to adjusting iterns 7 - {0.2)
Totad adpastiogg toms atter tax "0 Qiscantn e aperators (7.8} 0.8
Tritan adiasting Hems Afte Six o ) - {yivfﬂ 18.2

2Ses note 1 (@) for descrption of prior year restatement

Exceptional costs

Stoff reiated restructuring costs (including external employment advice costs)

In the current year staff related restructuring costs of £2.4m related to the Group's cost reduction plan following the comgpletion of the
divestment programme in 2019 and £0.1m of related external employment advice. During 2018 staff related restructuring costs of £0.2m
related to the clesure of the E-consultancy Asia Pacific office, £0.1m related to restructuring of the Xeim portfolio and £0.1m related to the
restructuring of the in-house production function.

Costs relating to strategic corporate restructuring initiatives
In the prior year these relate to professional fees for the corporate simplification programme to restructure the Group ahead of the
divestment programme arnaunced in October 2018.

Divestment programme related costs

I bath the current and the prior year divestment programme related costs include professional fees incurred relating to the sales process for
The Lawyer of £1.2m (2018; £0.1m) and management incentives of £1.0m (2018: £1.2m) related to that programme. These management
incentives sit in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in Note 3 along with staff related restructuring costs (excluding external employment advice
costs).

Other adjusting items
Other adjusting items relate to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets (see note 11) and share-based payment costs (see note 25) as
well as the items discussed below:

Goodwill impairment
In the prior year, an impairment of £13.1m {£12.8m and £0.3m in continuing and discentinued operations respectively) has been recognised
against goodwill primarily relating to events to be closed and other businesses within the Xeim portfolio. See note 10 for further details.

Loss / profit on disposal of subsidiaries

In the current year the loss on disposal of a subsidiary in continuing operations of £0. 1m related to the disposal of Venture Business
Research Limited ("VBR"). This is not presented in discortinued operations as it does not represent a separate major line of business and
therefore has been included in continuing operations.
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The profit on disposal of subsidiaries in discontinued operations relates to the subsidiaries sold in the divestment programme. See note 14
for further details. In the prior year £0.1m profit on disposal arose in relation to the 2017 disposal of the Group’s Home Interest segment

following the agreement of final completion accounts.

5 Directors and employees

Note

Wages and salaries 257
Social security costs 2
Other pension costs 0.3
Adjusted staff costs 29.0
Exceptional staff related restructuring costs {excluding

external employment advice costs) 4 21
Equity-settled share-based payments 25 n1

31.5

2 See note 1 {a} for description of prior year restaterment

Restated?
2018
Group
£m

276
341
0.8

31.8

0.4
0.8
327

S 2018
Camparty

DL £m
14 1.0
Lol 0.2
0.1 G
15 1.3
0.8 -
2.1 0.8
23 2.1

The staff costs presented above are for continuing operations and exclude all staff costs relating to the disposed subsidiaries as specified in

note 14, which are presented in discontinued operations.

The average monthly number of employees employed during the year, incluging Directors, was:

AR

[RIFSTILS]

Neunbaer
Xeim o ' ' o T s
The Lawyer 52
Central 10
Discontinued 85

2018
Group
Number

805
55
10
88

758

2510 2018

SN ATy Company
Byt Number
1 4

i 4

With the exception of MarketMakers, a brand under Xeim, the Group's employees have contracts of service with Centaur Communications
Limited and are paid by Chiron Communications Limited, both of which are Group companies. As the employees provide senvices to the
Company, their costs are recharged and the relevant disclosures are made in the financial statements. The MarketMakers' employees are

employed and paid by MarketMakers Incorporated Limited.
Key management compensation

Sataries and short-term employmér\t benefits
Termination benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payments

Key management is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members.

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind
Termination benefits

Charge under long term incentive schemes
Post-employment benefits

2018
£m
© 29 1.8
S 0.1
0l 041
- 0.6
i 26
A 2018
Vi £m
S 09
. -
- 0.3
a1 0.1

2.3 13
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5 Directors and employees continued
Highest paid Director’s remuneration

2018

£m

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind ' 4 R 0.4
Termination benefits [ -
Charge under long-term incentive schemes - 0.2
1.2 0.6

No Directors exercised share options during the current or prior year. One Directors was paid compensation in respect of loss of office
during the year (2018 — Nil). Further details of Directors' remuneration are included in the Remuneration Commitiee Report between pages
45 to B1.

6 Finance costs

RO zZNng

Note PRl £m

Interest payable on revolving credit facility - -
Commitment fees and amortisation of arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit facility 0.2 0.2
Lease interast 20 3 -
Total finance costs 0.3 0.2

Interest and fees on revolving credit facility

These finance costs are in relation to the £25m revolving credit facility, none of which is drawn-down at 31 December 2019 (2018: Enil).
As indicated by the consolidated cash flow statement, all draw-downs from this facility during the year were also repaid within the year.
Finance costs in relation 1o this facility resulted in cash outfiows by the Company and Group of £0.2m during the year (2018: £0.4m).

Lease interest

On the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, lease liabilities were recognised for the Group’s property lease arrangements. £0.1m of
interest on these leases was incurred during the year. There was no interest on lease liabilities in the prior year when these leases were
accounted for under |IAS 17 as operating leases. Please refer to notes 1 (@) and 20 for further details.

7 Taxation

s S 07 2018 2018 2018
TR UTRTINE PRI TR R I Tria Continuing Discontinued Total
Note c [ Jie: £rm £m £m
Apalyses k:!‘;z'-.'\;‘ } Y e c o N o I ' 7 R

oot lax 22
UK Corpecration Tax - RS 0.5 ©.6) 1.4 08
Overseas tax - - - 0.3 - 0.3
- 0.6 0.6 0.3) 1.4 1.1

Doforr o tax 15
Current period et 0.1 0.7} 0.7) {0.2) {0.9)

Adjustments in respect of pricr

years 0 101 - 0.1) - 0.1)
o3 - 07 0.8) 0.2} (1.0
avl i 1 WA 01 (1.7) 1.2 0.1
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) / profit in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

. : 2018 2018 2018
r T Continuing Discontinued Total
) : £m £m £m
{Loss) / profit before tax 3T 103 T3 (20.5) 6.4 (14.1)
Tax at the UK rate of corpeoration tax of
18.00% (2018: 19.00%) © 3 23 A 3.9 12 .7)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes U - a7 2.7 - 2.7
Profit on disposal - {1.51 13 - - -
Effects of changes in tax rate on
deferred tax balances 3 - [P - - -
Deferred tax adjustment on business
disposal 21 0.1 3.2 - - -
Deferred tax not recognised - - - 01 - 0.1
Adjustments in respect of prior years - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Different tax rates of subsidiaries in
other jurisdictions - - - 01 - a1
Taxabhon ;oradit 7 charge .70 0.6 i1 {1.1} 1.2 01

The Finance Act 2015 included legislation to reduce the rate of corpgeration tax from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17% from 1 April
2020. This change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The government has announced that the rate of corporation
tax will not be reduced from 1 April 2020 and that it will remain at 19%, but this has not yet been enacted and therefore, the Group's
deferred tax balances continue to be recerded at 17%.

A reconciliation between ths reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense taking account of adjusting items as discussed in note 1(b)
and 4 is shown below:

AN lakk:! Sl 2018 2018 2018

Lt T - ontaged Tt Continuing Biscontinued Total

Y T s £m £m Em

Reported tax {credit) / expense 0.7 05 0.1) (1.1 1.2 01

Effects of:

Amortisation of acquired intangible

assets 0.5 - 2.5 0.3 0.1 0.4

Share-based payments - - - G.1 - 0.1

Exceptional expenses 3.7 - c.7 .3 01 0.4

Adjusted tax expense / (credif) ! 0.5 1 0.4) 1.4 1.0
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8 Discontinued operations

in the current year, the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:

*  Centaur Financial Platforms Limited ('FIN’} on 31 March 2019;

+  Centaur Media Travel and Mestings Limited (‘'T&M") on 30 Aprit 2019;
+  Centaur Human Resources Limited {'HR') on 30 April 2019; and

+  Centaur Engineering Limited {'ENG') on 31 May 2019.

The disposals were effected in line with the Group's strategy to simpilify its structure, to improve operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands.

A profit of £7.8m arose on the disposal of these subsidiaries being the difference between the proceeds of disposals and the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets and attributable goodwill, less transaction costs. Details of these disposals can be found in note 14,
in addition to the above named subsidiarnes, the Group disposed of its Venture Business Research Limited {"VBR') subsidiary on 13 May
2019 to an employee of VBR. A loss on disposal of £0.1m arose on this dispesal as detailed in note 14. The loss on disposal, as well as the
operational results of VBR have not been included in discontinued operations as it does not represent a separate major line of business and
these have therefore been included in continuing operations.

In the prior year £0.1m profit on disposal arose in relation to the 2017 disposal of the Group's Home Interest segment {'HI') following the
agreement of final completion accounts.

The results of the discontinued operations, which were included in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income and consclidated
cash flow statement, were as follows:

b Tanl HR oG HI Tata FIN TE&M HR ENG H Total
Year zndect Year ended
Sataroar ot Decwmmper A0 31 December 2018
S e e 0 e £m
Revenue 21 3s 07 04 - 70 83 64 32 23 - 202
Expenses 1. 15 (2.2 0.6} (0.4 - 14.3) (5.4) 4.8 (2.2) (1.5) - (139
{Loss) / profit on disposal 0,31 3.4 3.8 1.8 - T3 - - - - 0.1 0.1
Profit bators las 0.z 1.3 3.9 1.8 - ol 29 1.6 1.0 08 0.1 6.4
Attributable tax expense 10,20 0.3t 0.1} - B s (0.6) {0.3) 0.2) 010 - {1.2)
Lty a ek - 4.3 3.8 1.3 - 9.9 23 1.3 0.8 0.7 0.1 5.2
Less / {profity on disposal 0.8 3.0 (3.3} (1.8 - 1781 - - - - 0.1) {©.7)
Exceptional costs - - .1 - - C.1 0.3 0.1 0.1 - - 0.5
impairment of goodwil - - ~ - - - 03 - - - - 03
Amortisation of acquired
intangible assets N - - - - 01 0.2 - 0.1 - - 03
Tax refating to adjusting items® - - - - - - 0.2) - - - - 0.2)
Tota! admisung emg 2.9 3.0 \3.7H 11.81 - 17 Bi 0.6 0.1 0.2 - 0.1) 0.8
Sdjustod areft At ewtrle
oy msrontinaed aporatiens 3.9 1.3 a0 - - 2.3 29 1.4 1.0 0.7 - 6.0
= T '\“ Hi - i FIN ) '_I'&M HR . ENG H! To_ta}
. Year ended
K 31 Decermnber 2018
Tan o IS £m
épeféting cash flows s 2.2 3 AL L T - - . . -
Investing cash flows - - - - - - - - - - - -
Financing cash flows - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tornovsbonog 3 [V T oo RN - e - - - - - -

! Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1 (b)

The attributable tax expense stated in the table above is derived from the profit of discontinued operations. No income tax expense arose on
the profit or loss on disposals.
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9 Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS') is ¢calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year. 1,573,134 (2018: 857,991) shares held in the employee benefit trust and 6,964,613 (2018: 6,964,613}
shares held in treasury have been excluded in arriving at the weighted average number of shares.

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares. This comprises share options and awards (including those grantec under the share save plan) granted to Directors
and employess where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share have also been presented on an adjusted continuing and discontinued basis, as the Directors believe
that these measures are more reflective of the underlying perfermance of the Group. These have been calculated as follows:

Restated?
R 2018 Restated?
Earnings 2018 Restated?
A / (Loss) Weighted 2018
i [MEEEAE attributable to average Earnings /
- owners of the rumber of {Loss) per
NS ANTR parent shares share
Note iy P £m milions Pencs
5-:1;;'&' o ) S T ’ -
Continuing operations 5.0 112.8 A (19.4) 143.9 (13.5)
Continuing and discontinued operations 1.9 142.8 1.0 (14.2) 143.9 {9.9)
Eff 2o ol dilutive secuntues
Options: Continuing operations - - - - - -
Options: Continuing and discontinued
operations - 2.1 - - - -
[T
Continuing operations 8.0 112.8 15.6) {19.4) 143.9 {13.9)
Continuing and discontinued operations 1.9 1509 1.3 (14.2) 143.9 9.9
Aagigstad
Coritinuing operations
Basic 8.3 142.8 {5.9) (19.4) 143.9 (13.5)
Other exceptional costs 4 3.7 - 3.3 2.0 - 1.4
Impairment of goodwil 10 - - - 12.8 - 89
Amertisation of acquired intangibles ! 2.1 - 17 25 - 1.7
Share-based payments 26 0.1 - D 0.8 - 0.6
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 .1 - 0.1 - - -
Tax effect of above adjustments 7 1.7 - A 0.7) - {0.5)
Discontinued operations
Basic 9.9 112.8 5.0 52 143.9 3.6
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 14 i7.3) - 15.5] 0.1) - 0.1)
Other exceptional costs 4 0.1 - oA 0.5 - 0.4
Impairment of goodwill 10 - - - 0.3 - 0.2
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 11 0.1 - U 0.3 - 0.2
Tax effect of above adjustment Y - - - {0.2) - 0.1)
A e b
Continuing operations 1 (e R 2.0} 143.9 {1.4)
Continuing and discontinued operations o Pi2e [N 4.0 143.9 2.8
Options: Continuing operations - - - - - -
Options: Continuing and discontinued
operations - a1 - 10.8 {0.2)
At R
Continuing operations n:l HPS! RNl 2.0) 143.9 (1.4)
Continuing and discontinued operations 0.4 150.8 [N 4.0 154.7 2.§
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9 Earnings/(loss) per share continued

Restated” Restated? Restated?
. Adjusted Adjusted Statutory
R Results’ ltermns’ Resuits
L 2018 2018 2018
£m £m £m
.
s T A
Fully diluted from continuing operations (B 157] AT SRS (1.4p) (12.1p) (13.5p)
Fully diluted from discontinued operations ST BRels) ISP 4,00 {0.4p) 3.6p
Fully diluted from centinuing and
discontinued [ 3] 130 13p 2.6p (12.5p) {9.9p)

1 Agjusted results exclude adjusting tems, as detailed 10 note 1 {5}
?Zee note 1 {g) for description of pnar year restatement

In 2019 and 2018, there was no difference in the weighted average number of shares used for the calculation of basic and diluted loss per
share for continuing cperations as the effect of all potentially dilutive shares cutstanding was anti-dilutive.

10 Goodwill

G

Crst Note i
At 1 January 2018 159.4
Additions in the year 0.1

At 31 December 2018 180.5
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 {48 .4)
At 31 Decontear 2010 1

Accumutated areuanrrent

At 1 January 2018 838
Impairment for the year 131

At 31 December 2018 96.9
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 (38.0)

AL 3T Do s 000 Gel

Mt Book vaiie
52

AL 3T Decartye 2ot 52 2

At 31 December 2018 62.6

Additions in the prior year relate to the additional consideration paid for the acquisition of MarketMakers in 2017 following the finalisation of
contingent consideration paid during the year.

In the prior year, the largest adgjusting item of £12.8m relates to the impairment of goodwill which primarily related tc events to be closed and
other businesses within the Xeim portfolio. Following a review of expacted cash flows from the Financial Services partfolio, the carrying value
of its goodwill was impaired by £0.3m.

Disposals in the current year relate to the disposal of Centaur Financial Platferms Limited (net book value £4.8m), Centaur Media Travel and
Meeting Limited {net book value £5.6m), Centaur Human Resources Limited (net book value £nill and Centaur Engineering Limited (net beok
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value £nil). See note 14 for further details.

Goodwill by segment

Each brand is deemed tc be a Cash Generating Uinit ('CGU'"), being the lowest level at which cash fliows are separately identifiable.

Goodwill is attributed to individual CGUs and has historically been reviewed at the operating segment level for the purposes of the annual
impairment review as this is the level at which management monitors goodwill. In light of our simplification plan, Financial Services and Other
Professional segments have been disposed of and the remaining segments are Xeim and The Lawyer:

THe et Lo R R A

Note i T
s 48.9 16.0 5.1 56 75.6
Additions 0.1 - - - 0.1
Impairment charge {12.8) - 0.3) - {13.1)
Lo Doesamie 2018 36.2 16.0 4.8 5.6 E2.6
Disposal of subsidiaries 14 - - 4.8) 5.6) {10.4)
AL 3T Socomper 2013 HE 16,2 - - 522

Impairment testing of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

At 31 December 2019, goodwill and acquired intangible assets (see note 11) were tested for impairment in accordance with I1AS 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value of the segment is compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use (‘ViU").

The Group estimates the VIU of its CGUSs using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the
assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% (2018: 11.3%). The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's weighted
average cost of capital and is used across all segments, which are all based predeminantly in the UK and considered to have similar risks
and rewards.

The key assumptions used in calculating VIU are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calculation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5%
{(2018: 2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues.

The assumptions used in the calculations of VIU for each segment have been derived based on a combination of past experience and
management's expectations of future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business
where managemeant have identified the key growth and focus areas which will deliver the targets, and conversely which areas of the
business will be de-prioritised over that period. The farecasts reflect the transformed Group which is more focussed and streamlined in order
to deliver higher margins and profits.

I the prior year, before impairment testing, goodwill of £48.9m. £21.6m and £5.1m was allocated to the Xeim, Professional, and Financial
Senvices segments respectively. Prior to a fuli impairment test, the geodwill of each segment was reviewed. This led to an impairment

in 2018 of £12.8m to be recegnised in Xeim primarily related to events to be closed and other businesses within the portfolio, and an
impairment ¢f £0.3m in the Financial Services segment following a review of expected cash flows,

In the current year the goodwill and acquired intangible assets carrying values of the two continuing segments, Xeim and The Lawyer, have
been compared with their recoverable amount in the impairment tests. The forecast used in the calculation is the Group's MAP22 plan which
is discussed in the Strategic Repert. The key assumptions and variables in this plan are sensitised in isclation and in combination. The main
sensitivities applied to the key drivers are outlined below.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the VIU calculations, holding all other variables constant, to:

i apply a 10% reduction to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash flows. No impairment would occur in either of the
segmeants.

iy apply a 1% increase in discount rate from 12.8% to 13.8%. No impairment would occur in either of the segments.
{iii) reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2.5% to 1.5%. No impairment would occur in either of the segments.
A key sensitivity is EBITDA growth in both Xeim and The Lawyer, which is driven by a combination of segment profit growth and the Group's

disclosed annualised overhead cost savings target of £5m. As the Group has already achieved the run-rate savings for this target by the end
of Decermber 2019, further sensitivities have been performed oniy over the profitable revenue growth from Xeim and The Lawyer:

Xeim - In the base case the CAGR of EBITDA for the forecast period of 2019 to 2022 is 16%. VIU exceeds the carrying amount by £29.2m.
EBITDA CAGR would have to fall by 9% to 7% in order for the VIU to equal the carrying amount.

The Lawyer — In the base case the CAGR of EBITDA for the forecast period of 2019 to 2022 is 12%. VIU exceeds the carrying amount by
£13.8m. EBITDA CAGR would have to fall by 12% to nil in order for the VIU to equal the carrying amount
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11 Other intangible assets

At 1 January 2018

Additions - separately acguired
Additicns - internally generated
A0 31 Zeocomtyor 2002
Additions - separately acquired
Additions - internally generated
Disposal of subsidiaries

A0 31 Decoembrer 2010

Accumulated amortisaic:n

At 1 January 2018

Amortisation charge for the year
At 37 December 2017
Amortisation charge for the year
Impairment charge for the year
Disposals of subsidiaries

At 31 Decoambor 201797

Mot ook value az 3 Do 2013

Net book value at 31 December 2018

Net book value at 1 January 2018

Note

14

14

Annual Report and Financiat Statements ot yeas ended 31 Cecemse 2019

16.1
1.8
0.7

18.6
0.8
C.4

(1.2)
i35

9.5
2.9
12.4
26
0.3
1.1)
112

bl
6.2
6.6

(3.9)

33
3.7

7.2
2.2
9.4
2.1

(1.9

0.3

0.1

418
1.8
0.7

44.3
0.8
0.4

(8.8

36.4

23.2
5.6

28.8
5.0
03
6.2)

R

9.0
155
18.6

~ Amortisation on acquired intangible assets from business combinations 18 presented as an adjusting item in note 4 {see nole 1{b) for further information). Total amortisation of £2.5m
{2018: £2.8m) on such assets 1s al amortisation on assets in the asset groups 'Brands and publishing rights’, *Customer relationships’ and 'Separately acquired websites and content’
of £2.4m {2018: £2 7m) in addition to £0.1m (2018: £C.1m) of amortisation on acquired intangitle assats i the asset group 'Computer software’. These total amounts have been split

betwean continuing and discontinued operations in note 4.

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets is included in net operating expenses In the statement of comprehensive income.

The amortisation charge in continuing operations is £4.9m {2018: £5.2m) and in discontinued operations is £0.1m (2018: £0.4m). The
impairment charge for the year is whally in continuing operations and relates to obsolete software.

Other intangible assets are tested annually for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 at a segment tevel by comparing the carrying value
with its recoverable amount. Please see note 10 for further details.

The Company has no intangible assets (2018: £nil).
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Note

At 1 January 2018

Additions - separately acquired

SL DL J01

Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 {1
January 2019)

Additions - separately acquired

hv!

2xmbar 2413

Acctariate ] dopraoiation

At 1 January 2018

Depreciation charge for the year
A3 Desnmipny 20173
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment charge for the year

A1 31 Danompaor 2019

’\i‘* Book valle at 31 Bezeomper 2070
Net bock value at 31 December 2018
Net book value at 1 January 2018

Leasehoid
improvements
£m

2.2

2.2

1.3
0.3
1.6
0.4
0.2
22

0.6
0.9

Fixtures
and fittings
£m

0.6
0.1
0.7

0.3
0.2
0.5
0.1

0.6

VIS
0.2
03

Computer
equipment
£m

1.3
0.4
1.7

0.2
1.3

0.8
0.4
1.2
0.2

s
0.5
0.5

RCU assets -
property

23
3.2

Total
_Em

41
05
4.6

23
3.4

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment is included in net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive

income.

The depreciation and impairment charge for the year is wholly in continuing cperations. The impairment relates to leasehold improvernents in
the Wells Street office which was vacated by December 2019,

The Company has no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil}.
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13 Investments

At 1 January 2018 146.2
Transfer from amounts receivable from subsidiaries 4.3
C B T S AR A I | it

ool a At o rrarrtert

At 1 January 2018 12.2
impairment charge for the year 1341
At 31 December 2018 253
Impairment charge for the year 35.7
4030 Seemeer 2009 5100
A tnos value at 31 Oeceah or 2019 ' T ' g0 1
Net book value at 31 December 2018 125.8

Net book value at 1 January 2018 134.0

Following an internal corporate restructure in the prior year, £4.9m of intercompany balances due from subsidiaries of Gantaur Media plc
were capitalised.

Impairment testing of the investment

In assessing whether an impairment of the investment is required, the carrying value of the investment is compared with its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is measured based on value-in-use {'VIU'}. As outlined in the tables below the carrying value of the
investment represents the Company's direct ownership of Centaur Communications Limited ('CCL’). CCL in turn directly or indirectly controls
the rest of the Group's subsidiaries. Therefore, the VIU of the Company’s investment in CCL is supported by the operations of the entire
Group.

In the prior year the Company impaired its investment following an impairment test which identified the VIU no longer supported the carrying
value of the investment. After this impairment at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the investment was fully supported by the future
cash flows of ali the subsidiaries owned by the Group at that date.

In the current year, due to the disposals of the Group's subsidiaries noted below, the Group's cash flows and therefore its VIU was reduced.
This was identified as an indication of impairment of the Company’s investment carrying value and a full impairment assessment was carried
out. An impairment of £35.7m was identified and recogniged in the Company’s statement of comprehensive income. The remaining balance
is supported by the underlying trade of the Group.

The Group estimates the VIU using a discounted cash flow model, which adjusts the cash flows for risks associated with the assets and
discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12.8% {2018: 11.3%). The discount rate used is consistent with the Group’s weighted average cost
of capital.

The key assumptions used in calculating VIU are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA growth, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group has used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calculation and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.5%
{2018: 2.5%). This timescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues.

The assumptions used in the calculations of VIU have been derived based on a combination of past experience and management’s
expectations of future growth rates in the business. The forecasts have been prepared following a review of the business where
management have identified the key growth and focus areas which will deliver the targets, and conversely which areas of the business will
be de-prioritised over that period. The forecasts reflect the transformed Group which is more focussed and streamlined in order to deliver
higher margins and profits. Sensitivities are applied to each of the key assumptions and variables in isolation and in combination, in line with
those sensitivities applied for goodwill impairment testing as outlined in note 10.

EBITDA growth is driven by a combination of profit growth and the Group's disclosed annualised overhead cost savings target of £5m.

As the Group has already achieved the run-rate savings for this target by the end of December 2019, further sensitivities bave been
performed only over the profitable revenue growth from Xeim and The Lawyer. In the forecast applied to derive the VIU which had resulted
in the impairment noted above, EBITDA CAGR for the Group is 11%. If the EBITDA CAGR for the Group were to fall by 5% to 6% then the
additional impairment indicated would be £22.6m.
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The Group disposed of its interest in the following subsidiaries during the year:

Centaur Engineering Limited
Centaur Financial Platforms Limited
Centaur Human Resources Limited
Centaur Media Travel and Msetings
Limited

Venture Business Research Limited

100
100
100

100
100

Events and information services

Cther publishing activities
Research data and analysis

Other publishing activities
Research data and analysis

. c
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

R S I
31 May 2019
31 March 2019
30 April 2019

30 April 2019
13 May 2019

The net profit on disposals of these subsidiaries was £7.7m (£0.1m loss on the disposal of VBR and £7.8m profit on the disposal of the
other four subsidiaries). See note 14 for further details,

At 31 December 2018, the Group has control cver the following subsidiaries:

I°8

Name-

Centaur Communications Limited”
Centaur Media USA Inc.?

Centaur Newco 2018 Limited

Chiron Communications Limited
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pty Limited®
E-consultancy Australia Pty Limited?
E-consultancy LLC®
E-consultancy.com Limited
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited®
Mayfield Publishing Limited

Pro-talk Lid

Taxbriefs Holdings Limited

Taxbriefs Limited

Thelawyer.com Limited

Xeim Limited
Your Business Magazine Limited

! Dirgctly owned by Centaur Media Plc

100
100

Fromad et sy

Holding company'and agency services
Digital information, training and events
Media representation services

Digital information, training and events
Dormant

Digital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Telemarketing and Research
Investment company

Digital Publishing

Holding company

Digital and print publishing

Pubiishing of consumer and business journals and

periodicals
Digital information services
Investment company

? Registered address is 2711 Centervile Road, Suite 400 Wilmington, DE19808, USA. Functional currency is USD.
* Registered address is 30 Cecil Street, #13-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712, Functional currency is USD.
* Registered address is Level 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia. Functional currency is AUD.

S Registered address is 41 East, 11 Streat, 11Fl, New York, NY 10003, USA. Functional currency is USD.

¢ Registered address is 1000 Lakeside North Harbour Western Road, Portsmouth, Hampshire, PO6 3EN

The registered address of all subsidiary companies, with the exception of these identified above, changed from 79 Wells Street, London,
WA1T 3QN, United Kingdom te Floor M, 106 York Road, London, SE1 7ND, United Kingdormn on 2 December 2019. The functional currency
of all subsidiaries is GBP except for those identified above. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all
entities contralled by the Company at 31 December 2019.

Sttt ot

HERVId o
United Kingdém
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Australia

United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

il o

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
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14 Disposal of subsidiaries

In the current year the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:
+ Centaur Financial Platforms Limited (‘'FIN’} on 31 March 2019;

«  Centaur Media Travel and Meetings Limited {'T&M'} on 30 April 2019;

+  Centaur Human Resources Limited {'HR') on 30 April 2019; and

< Centaur Engineering Limited {"ENG'} on 31 May 2019.

e macr 2019

The disposals were effectad in line with the Group's strategy to simpiify its structure, to impraove operational execution and to focus attention
on leading brands. All disposals were executed by way of sale of 100% of the equity shares. The results of these subsidiaries have been

included in discontinued operations as detalled in note 8.

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Intercompany

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Deferred income

Current tax liability
Netassotsihabhibitioes) disposecd bheaanie e
Sharangidmrs of tne Conpany
Directly attributable costs of disposal
{Loss) / gain on disposal

Sy Lot U ooirspdergiran

EEHE NN
Cash and cash equivalents
Settlement of intercompany balances

The net cash flow arising on the disposals was as follows:

St zasn Tows casie e chispos

Consideration received in cash and ¢ash equivalents
Less:

Directly attributable costs of disposal

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

S TRk st BT
P Wy Aanl o R Y
T Sl It
T T

ie T s - e
1.1 - 1.1 -
- 1.2 0.1 0.4
1.0 1.1 0.4 0.2
1.3 22 0.7 -
0.8 0.3 0.4 0.4
0.8 0.6) {0.4) 0.1)
1.3} 2.9 (1.0) (1.2)
0.1 0.3) - -
ERs 8.5 [ Raet
0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6
{0.8) 3.0 3.8 1.8
3. 1.2 ST 2
5.3 8.0 5.0 2.1
1.3 2.2 0.7 -
RN 12 A7 i
s Tihg SR N
Wb WAL S hane R
- EUA ] Do AR
ST | b 1
53 8.0 5.0 241
{0.6) 0.6) 0.6} 0.5)

0.6 0.3) 0.4) 0.4)
P 1 . P

10.4
2.2
1.7
2.7
4.2
1.7

(1.9
{6.4)
©.4)

20.4

(2.3)
(1.7
I

In addition to the above named subsidiaries, the Group disposed of its Venture Business Research Limited ('VBR') subsidiary on 13 May
2019 to an employee of VBR for £1 settled by cash and £31k settlement of intercompany balances. Net assets of £0.2m, consisting wholly
of other intangible assets were disposed of, resulting in a loss of £6.1m.

The toss on dispesal, as well as the operational results of VBR have not been included in discontinued operations as it does not represent a
separate major iine of business and these have therefore been included in continuing operations.

In the prior year £0.1m profit on disposal arose in relation to the 2017 disposal of the Group’s Home interest segment ('HI") following the

agreement of final completion accounts.
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15 Deferred tax

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below:

It nEs et s S 200G

Adjustments in respect of prior period

Recognised in the staterment of comprehensive income
MO asset o et e 3 Je e 2013
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Mot assot o ot e 3 Socamber 2019

0.5
0.1
0.1
0.7

0.1

[

{1.4)

09
{0.5)
0.1

0.2

0.1
0.1
0.7

©0.7)
01
0.9
03
07

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the

balances net.

Deferred tax assets within one year
Deferred tax liabitities within one year

Totai

1.1

(O]

[

2018
Group
£m

08
0.5)
03

At the statement of financial position date, the Group has unused tax losses of £4.2m (2018: £1.2m) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset of £0.8m (2018: £0.1m) has been recognised in respect of £4.2m {2018: £0.6mj) of such tax losses. Deferred tax assets

and ligbllities are expected to be materially utilised after 12 months.

16 Inventories

Work in progi’ess

2018
Group
£m

1.4

Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publications and exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year amounted to £0.9m (2018: £1.1my). These were included in cost of sales and

employee benefits expense.

The Company had no inventory at 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).

There are no provision amounts in respect of inventories (2018: £nil) and there were no write-downs of inventory in the year {2018: £nil).
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17 Trade and other receivables

Restatecd?
2018 e 2018
. Group o Company
Note - £m i Ta £m
Trade receivables s 1.0 - -
Less: expected credit loss 28 IR (1.2 - -
Trade receivables — net 9.8 : -
Receivables from subsidiaries - - - 2.0
Receivalle from Employse Benefit Trust - - 0.6 0.4
Other receivables 2.3 1.7 0.3 0.4
Prepayments T3 1.7 0.1 0.1
Accrued income o 0.5 - -
Saocial security and other taxes - - - 0.2

11,8 18.7 1.0 31

? Seenote 1 (@) tor description of prior year restatement
Receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.53% (2018: 2.67%).

Trade receivables are accounted for under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss model, recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost less any allowance for expected lifetime credit losses, For further detail refer to note 1(s)iii).

Other receivables includes £1.5m in relation to the lease incentive receivable on exit of the Walls Street property in 2019 and £0.3m
in relation to a deposit on the Waterloo property lease which is fully refundable at the end of the lease term,

18 Cash and cash equivalents

2018
Group
. Em.
Cash at bank and in hand 0.1
The Company had no cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2019 {2018 Enil).
19 Trade and other payables
Restated?
R 2018 it 2018
W Group St Ly Company
) o A o U em ) e £2m
Trade payables 1.1 2.7 - -
Payables to subsidiaries - - 52.7 533
Social security and other taxes f) 241 - -
Other payables v 1.6 - -
Accruals G 6.8 1.4 0.5
12z 13.2 S 538

? See note 1 {a) for description of prior year restaternent
Payables to subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.53% (2018: 2.67%).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables apgroximates their fair vailue.
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20 Leases

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s financial staterments and discloses the new accounting
policies that have been applied from 1 January 2019.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019 but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 period, as permitted
under the specific transiticnal provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and agjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

(a) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases office spaces. Prior to the adoption of IFRS 16 these leases were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the profit or kess on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

From 1 January 2019 relevant leases {i.e. excluding those 1o which a practical expedient has been applied) are recognised as a lease liability
and a corresponding right-of-use ('ROU’) asset at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The ROU asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. | ease liabilities includs the net present value {{NPV')
of future lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be dstarmined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate ('IBR") is used, bsing the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Adjustments are made to the NPV for the initial measurement of the ROU asset. These agjustments are for any rental accrual or
prepayments on the balance shest at 31 December 2018 relating to the asset that arose under the previous accounting standard IAS 17. A
further adjustment has been made in relation to a lease incentive receivable on the exit of a London property that had been fully vacated by
31 December 2019. The lease incentive receivable is in other receivables.

All ROU assets currently held by the Group relate to property leasss. They are presented on the consclidated statement of financial position
within property, plant and equipment and are split out from other fixed assets in note 12. Lease liabilties are presented as a separate line on
the face of the consolidated statement of financial position, split between current and non-current.

(b) Adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019

On adoption of IFRS 18, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘cperating leases
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the IBR as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s IBR applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.8%.

The Group did not have any material leases previously classified as finance leases.

Lease liabilities

bperating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 B ) - 7.3
Less operating leases commitments related to contracts with future commencement dates (3.4)
10 Ln B T R A T D L TN TR TR IO I Y Jangoeer 2010 a0
Impact of discounting using the lessee's IBR at the date of initial application 0.6)
oAt At ccncyaa s oab Taeaaey 200 3.C
Current 2.3

Non-current 1.0

B T -

Right-of-use assets
The recognised ROU assets were measured at an amount equal to that of the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 and adjusted for items as
outlined above.

ROU assets - property ) ' 7 - o L
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20 Leases continued

Additional information

As detailed in the table above, £3.4m of operating lease commitments in relation to a contract with a commencement date of 1 October
2019 were disclosed as at 31 December 2018, The lease liability and corresponding ROU asset was recognised as an addition during the
year on commencement, see saction (b) below, The commitments under this contract discounted at the IBR gave rise to a lease liability and
corresponding ROU asset of £3.2m, recognised on 1 October 2018.

The change in accounting policy did not affect any other items on the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019 other
than those discussed in this note.

The Greup derived income from sub-leasing one of the properties during the year. This has not been included in the value of the ROU asset
in accordance with the short-term lease practical expedient permitted by IFRS 16. The rental income generated in the pericd of £0.8m is
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in ‘other operating income” and is recognised on a straight-line basis.
This source of income ceased in the current year, and no rental income is expected in 2020.

Each lease arrangement has been accounted for over its lease term as outlined in the contract. Where options to extend or terminate exist
in these contracts, the recognition of the lease liabilities ana ROU assets represent the Directors understanding of fikely future cash flows
under these contracts. The assets and liabilities will continue to be reviewed and will be revalued where a change in the future cash flows is
indicated.

(c) As at 31 December 2019

The lease liability and ROU assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Lease ligbilities

BRI RIS TR
My

Cipe

Recorgnised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 Jéﬁudry 2016 ' 33

Additions 3.2
Interest expense 0.1
Cash outflow (2.3)
Asat 31 Docemme 200 3.2
Current 2.1
Non-current 22
S5 oal 21 Docorrmee 2000 17
ROU gssets
B0
e
T
wost
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 23
Additions 32
An at 31 Bocerizar D010 R
A, gt et
Depreciaticn charge for the period 1.6
Impairment charge for the period 0.2
Taat 31 e e 200 <
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 23

SoLab AT e i ST a7
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21 Deferred income

2018
Group
) £m
Deferred income b 15.0
Deferred income arises on contracts with customers where revenue recognition criteria has not yet been met. See note 1 (e) for further
details.
22 Current tax assets
A 2018
e Group
B o £m
Carporation tax receivables S 0.2
The Company had no cerporation tax receivables or payables at 31 December 2019 (2018: £nil).
23 Provisions
ey e
St de gt - LT Tt
o T n: o
Group
At 1 January 2018 7.8 0.1 1.9
Acquisition related 01 - 0.1
Utilised in the year (1.8) - {1.8)
Al 24 Dovember 2013 0.1 0.1 0.2
Utilised in the year C.1) - 0.1)
At 21 Socember 2019 - S N
Current - -
Non-current - 0.1 a1

Tota o ' - 2.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration at 1 January 2018 related to the acquisition of MarketMakers. An additional amount of £0.1m contingent
consideration was provided for during 2018 due to MarketMakers achieving a higher EBITDA than expected. £1.8m was settled in cash

during 2018. The remaining £0.1m was settled in cash during the cumrent year.

Other

The other provision relates to the dilapidation provision which was acquired on the acquisition of MarketMakers in relation to the building
leased by the company in Portsmouth,

All amounts represent the Directors’ best estimate of the balance to be paid at the statement of financial pesition date.

m
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24 Equity

Authorised share capital — Group abd Company

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 20159 20.0 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capftal — Group and Company
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 151 151,410,226

Deferred shares reserve
The deferred shares reserve regpresents 800,000 {2018: 800,000) deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted voting rights and have
no right to receive a dividend payment in respect of any financial year.

Reserve for shares to be issued

The reserve for shares to be issued is in respect of equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The changes to the reserve for shares to
be issued represent the total charges for the year relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees as accounted
for under IFRS 2.

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represents the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At 31 December 2019,
6,964,613 (2018: 6,964,613) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 1,573,134 (2018: 857,991) 10p ordinary shares are held in an
employee benefit trust.

During 2019, the employee benefit trust purchased 1,247,205 (2018: 766,800) ordinary shares in order tc meet future obligations arising
from share-based rewards to emgloyees. The shares were acquired at an average price of 51.7p per share {2018: 45.9p), with prices
ranging from 45.6p to 54p. The total cost of £0.6m (2018: £0.4m} has been recognised in other reserves in the own shares reserve in equity.

25 Share-based payments

The Group’s share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

ity 2018

- B _ Em
Equaty-settert olans

LTIP s 0.8

Total equity-settled incentive plans and share based payment expense na 0.8

The Group's share-based payment schemes upon vesting are equity-settled.

The pricr year charge of £0.8m includes £0.1m in relation to national insurance payable on equity settled share-based schemes. This was
included in liabilities as it was to be settled in cash.

The current year charge of £0.1m {2018: £0.8m) includes an immaterial amount of national insurance {(2018: £0.1m}) payable on equity
settled share-based schemes and is included in liabilities as it is to be settled in cash.

Share based payments in 2019 of £0.1m (2018: £0.8m)} have decreased significantly due to the overall reduction in the number of share
options from 10.6m to 7.6m. This is due to forfeitures and lapses of 0.5m and 5.6m share options respectively resulting in a reversal of
charges previously recognised since granted, mainly in 2016 and 2017. This was offset by an expense recognised for 3.6m new share
options granted during the year and an additional charge recognised on truing up the expense for 1.6m share options that vested during
the year.

1"z
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Long-Term Incentive Plan
The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan (' LTIP") for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This is an existing
incentive policy and was approved by shareholders at the 2016 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of grant and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is charged over the vesting period, taking into account the number of shares expected to vest. Full
details of how the scheme operates are included in the Remuneration Report.

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

Grant date

Share price at grant
date (p)

Fair value (p)
Exercise date
Exercise price (p)
R TNZ AN PEER AN CARS TR A

Balance at
1 January 2019

Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year
Balance 31

31 Dooamrbor 2319

Exercisable at
31 December 2019

Average share price at
date of exercise (p)

Balance at 1 January
2018

Granted during the year
Forfeitedt during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year

Balance at
31 December 2018

Exercisable at
31 December 2018

Average share price at
date of exercise {p)

Grant gate
Expected volatility (%)

Expected dividend
yield (%}

Risk free interest rate {%)
Valuation of model used

_ ESRIN]

I VR

03.10.2019 25.10.2019 25.07.2019 25.07.2018

41.50
22.77
02.10.2022

nil

995,259

EXRRI I B

32.50
16.25
5.04.2022

nil

128,133

48.00
2300
5.04.2022

nil

2,482,366
(245,728}

44,40
22.20
24.07.2019

nil

53,580

(63,590

51.25

53,590

53,590

6.04.2018
50.20
28.65

06.04.21

nil

1,246,879

1,246,879

1,248,879

6.04.2018
50.20
25.10

06.04.21
il

2,104,890

{141,600}

2,145,375
(40,485)

2,104,890

24,0417

45.75
24.46
24,0420

nil

1,351,528

(675,764)

1,351,528

1,361,628

N

07.04.17

40.75
21.08
07.04.20

nil

2,958,786

{92,035)
(478,472)
(2,008,722}

381,557

39.49

3,589,405

{630,619)

2,958,786

04.10.16

44.00
18.04
04.10.19

nil

573,385

{573,395

573,395

573,395

22.09.16 30.03.16

41.00 49.00
16.81 20.92
22.09.19  30.03.19
nil nil
366,667 1,983,489

(366,667) (1,983,489

366,667 2,059,390

~ (75901)

366,667 1,983,489

"Schemes granted on the 25 October 2019, 25 July 2019 and 25 July 2018 were nil-cost options with non-market based performance conditions.
These schemes were valued based on the estimated vesting value of the non-market based conditions and expected forfeiture rates.

13
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25 Share-based payments continued

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a weighted average exercise price of £nil (2018: €nif) and a weighted ramaining life of 1.6
yaars (2018: 1.4 years).

Shares outstanding and exercisable at the end of the year had an initial expiry date of 25 March 2020, which has been extended to 30 June
2020,

The two schemas granted in 2017 were assessed for early vesting following the sale of four business units resulting in a significant change
in the business. As a result the options related to the TSR performance conditions vested and options related to all other performance
conditions lapsed.

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan {‘SELTIP’)

The Centaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Pian (the 'SELTIP’) was introduced during 2011 and was approved by
shareholders at the 2010 AGM. This is not an HMRG approved scheme and vests over a three-year period with service and performance
congitions. Awards were granted under this scheme in 2011 for no consideration anc no exercise price. This scheme has closed to new
awards.

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summarised in the following table:

T =T SE_T T Boiey e [
Taw s ew Lo et rontibninan ERNTTAN T Alowc ater ot
2013 £8.0m £8.6m 30% £0.1m £0.1m 118,851
* The Remuneration Committee did not aliocate the entire bonus pool In 2013.
“* Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment.
Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Pian
These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:
Grant date i 15,08.11
Share price at grant date (p) 33.88
Fair value (p) 23.76
Exercise date 17.09.14
Exercise price {p) nil
Mo g s
Balance at 1 January 2019 5,862
Granted during the year -
Forfeited during the year -
Exercised during the year -
Doy (0 i 3 Danaoiminas 0
TeeErs st 2031 Decorbar 2010
Average share price at date of exercise {p) -
Balance at 1 January 2018 6,862
Granted during the period -
Forfeited during the period -
Exercised during the period -
Balance at 31 December 2018 8,862
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 6,862

Average share price at date of exercise (p) -

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a weighted average exearcise price of £nil (2018 £nil) and a weighted remaining life of 2.7
yoars (P018: 3.7 years).
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These awards were priced using the following models and inputs:

15.00.11

Grant date

Expected volatility {%) 54.00

Expected dividend yield {%) 5.26

Risk free interest rate (%) 0.57
Black-Scholes

Valuation of model used

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Share Incentive Plan, which is a HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides employees with the opportunity
to purchase shares in the Company. This plan is open to ail employees who have been employed by the Group for mere than 12 months.
Employees may invest up to £1,800 per annum {or 10% of their salary if less) in ordinary shares in the Company, which are held in trust.
The shares are purchased in open market and are held in trust for each employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time,
or tax-free after five years. The Group matches the contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased. Other than continuing
employment, there are no other performance conditions attached tc the plan.

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group.

: 2018
TR Group
Number of outstanding matching shares 18,071 57,268

26 Dividends
S 2018
‘o £m

Eoputy dividons

Final dividend for 2817: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share - 22
Interim dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share - 2.1
Final dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 21 -
Interim dividend for 2019: ordinary dividend of 1.5p and special dividend of 2.0p per 10p ordinary share 5.0 -
Tt 4.3

In the current year the Board announced a new progressive dividend policy. An interim dividend payment of £5.0m was paid in October
2018. This comprised a £2.1m ordinary dividend at 1.5p per share and a £2.9m special dividend at 2.0p per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 the Board is recommending a final dividend payment of £0,.7m at 0.5p per share. The dividend
proposed by the Directors, subject to sharehelder approvat at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 29 May 2020 to all sharehalders
on the Register of Members on 11 May 2020.

The interim and final dividends of £5.0m and £0.7m together result in a total dividend pertaining to 2019 of £5.7m.

15



Centaur Media Plc Annual Report and Financial Statements ‘o to poa- 2nded 31 Decerser 29

“ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Notes to the cash flow statement
Reconciiiation of (loss)/profit for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities:

- 2018 e 2018
s Group I Company
Note <o £rn T £m
Profit/lloss) for the year i3 14.2) 2 13.7)
Tax 7 (e OB 14 {3.2)
Interest expense 6 R 0.2 i 1.6
Depreciation 12 2.3 0.9 - -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 12 [0 - - -
Amortisation of intangible assats 11 5.0 5.6 - -
Impairment of intangible assets 11 0.3 - - -
Impairment of goodwill 10 - 13.1 - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 14 G.1 - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 14 (7.8l 0.1) - -
Loss on impairment of investment 13 - - 35.7 131
Share-based payment charge 256 0.1 0.8 Q.1 0.3
Unrealised foreign exchange differences - - - -
Cther 0.2 - - -
Changes in working capital {excluding effects of
acquisitions and dispesals of subsidiaries):
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 0.5 (1.3} 1.8 (2.3)
Increase in trade and other payables 1.3 1.4 5.8 89
Increase in deferred income 0.3 0.3 - -
Cash generated from operating activities 1.5 6.8 7.3 4.7
Analysis of changes in net cash/(debt)
31 Decemb':tr oot B D b
2018 T S0y
KO Note £m 1
Cash and cash equivalents ' N T 01 Tap BN
Net cash 01 1.2 J.3
At 47
31 December Mt h L oTE
2018 RSS! o
LA Note £m ARl
Cash and cash equivalents ' 18 - - -

Net cash - - -
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management

Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management policies. The Board receives monthly reports from
the Chief Financial Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of policies and processes put in place to manage risk. The Board sets
policies that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating effectiveness of the Group.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, capital risk and currency risk.
Of these, credit risk and liquidity risk are considered the most significant. This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each
of the above risks.

Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting pelicies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 1(s). Al financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Restated®
v 2018
Note ; £m
sooansral asEeTs

Cash and bank balances 18 0.1
Trade receivables - nat 17 8.3 9.8
Cther receivables 17 2.2 1.7
Total financial assets 13.1 1.6

sinvancial haotitn s
Lease liabilities 20 4.3 -
Trade payables 19 13 2.7
Accruals 19 5.7 6.8
Provisions 23 ot 0.2
Other payables 19 1.7 1.6
Total financial liabilities 15,9 1.3

2 See note 1 {a) for description of pricr year restatement

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other receivables (note 17). Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
staterments, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Credit
risk is managed on a Group basis. The Group does not consider that it is subject to any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industries and geographies. The
Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk in relation to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced predominantly by the circumstances of individual customers as opposed to
industry or geographic trends.

The business assesses the credit quality of customers based on their financial position, past experience and cther qualitative and
quantitative factors. The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days
from the date of invoice. Under normal trading cenditions, the Group is exposed to relatively low levels of risk, and potential losses are
mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the requirement for events and certain premium content subscription inveices to be
paid in advance of service delivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trads receivables
balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.

Any trade receivable balance which is objectively determined to be uncoflectible is written off the ledger, with a charge taken through the
staterment of comprehensive income. The Group also records an allowance for the fifetime expected credit loss on its trade receivables
balances under the simplfied approach as mandated by IFRS 9. The impairment model for trade receivables, under IFSR 9, requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on expected lifetime credit losses, rather than only incurred ones as was the case under 1AS 39.
All balances past due are reviewed, with those greater than 90 days past due considered to carry a higher level of credit risk. Refer to note 1
(s) for further details on the approach to allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

The allowance for expected lifetime credit losses, and ¢hanges to it, are taken through administrative expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

The ageing of trade receivables according to their original due date is detailed below:
“See note 1 (a) for description of pror year restatermnent

Restated?
Do 2018 2018
2L Gross Provision
o £m £m
Not due o7 - 53 (0.1}
0-30 days past due 5 - 2.3 -
31-60 days past due 3.5 0.9 0.1)
61-90 days past due Sl S 0.4 -
Over 90 days past due 1.5 1L 2.1 (1.0)
T3 1 1.0 1.2

? Gee note 1 {a} for description of prior year restatement

Trade recelvables that are less than 3 months past due are generally not considered to be impaired, except where specific cradit issues or
delinquency in payments have been identified. In making the assessment that unprovided trade receivables are not impaired, the Directors
have considered the guanturm of gross trade receivables which relate to amounts not yet included in income, including pre-event invaices
in deferred income and amounts relating te VAT. The credit quality of trade receivables not yet due nor impaired has been assessed as
acceptable.

The mcvement in the allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables is detailed below:

ROAR RO AN 2018 2018 2018

ERRUBTMIEK] D ontinnnes Toytiae Continuing Discontinued Total

O i S £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January T c.1 1.2 1.5 - 1.5

Litilised b - O 0.8) - 0.8
Additional provision charged to the

statement of comprehensive income M - 0.1 0.3 - 0.3

Disposal of subsidiaries - 10.1) AE - - -

Balance at 31 December L - 1.3 1.2 - 1.2

The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of
invoice or, in the case of live events related revenue, ne less than 30 days before the event. All credit and recovery risk associated with trade
receivables has been provided for in the staternent of financial position. The Group's policy for recognising an impairment loss is given in
note 1 {g)(i). Impairment losseas are taken through administrative expenses in the statement of comgrehensive income.

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
Cash and cash equivalents

Banks and financial institutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies. We choose only to deal with those with a2 minimum ‘A7
rating. We determine the credit quality for cash and cash equivalents 1o be strong.

Other receivables
QOther raceivables are neither past due nor impaired. These are primarily made up of sundry receivables, including emgloyee-related debtors
and receivables in respect of distribution arrangements.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk

by maintaining adequate reserves and working capital credit facilities, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. In
Novernber 2018 the Group renewed its £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scetland and Licyds which runs
10 November 2021 with the optian to extend for two pericds of one year each. As at 31 December 2019, the Groug had cash of £9.3m
{2018: £0.1m) with a full undrawn loan facility of £25.0m (2018: full undrawn loan facility of £25.0m).

The following tables detall the financial maturity for the Group's financial liabilities:

Sk oo PP 3
T = AL
Financial liabilities
Interest bearing 4.3 R 2.1 2
Non-interest bearing 1.6 118 11,5 )
15.2 15,3 13.6 2.0
HACH '“.:Nc_w‘-'»mlmr' D01 rostae o 7
Financial liabilities
Interast bearing - - - -
Non-interest bearing 11.3 11.3 11.2 01
11.3 11.3 1.2 0.1

2 See note 1 (a) for description of prior vear restatement
The Directors consider that book value is materially equal to fair value.

The book value of primary financial instruments approximates to fair value where the instrument is on a short maturity or where they bear
interest at rates that approximate to the market.

The following table details the level of fair value hierarchy for the Group's financial asset and liabilities:

ISt LR il o amhtes
PRAUZE _e-;rf:i 3 a B
Cash and Bank balances Lease Liabilities
T Trade Payables
Trade receivables — net Accruals
Other recelvables Provisions
Other payables
Borrowings™

*Borrowings are purely in relation 1o the Group's revolving credit facility which is discussed above., The amount drawn down from this facility
at 31 December 2018 was £nil (2018: £nil).

All trade and other payables are due in one year or fess, or on demand.

Interest rate risk

The Group has ne significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed tc interast rate risk when it borrows funds at floating interest rates
through its revolving credit facility. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group evaluates
its risk appetite towards interest rate risks regularly, and may undertake hedging activities, including interest rate swap contracts, 1o manage
interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility f deemed necessary.

The Group did not enter into any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and as at 31 Decermnber 2019, the only floating rate to
which the Group is exposed was LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabllities is detailed in the
liquidity risk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure 10 variable interest rates at the
reporting date.

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net profit after tax would
increase / decrease by £nil {2018: £nil) and equity by £nil {(2018: £nil)
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28 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising return to
stakeholders, as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt/cash, which inclugdes cash and cash equivalents {note 18), and equity attributable

to the owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital (note 24), cther reserves and retained earnings. The Board also censiders the
levels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the akility to issue new shares for acquisitions, in managing capital risk in the
business.

The Group continues to benefit from its banking facilities (as renewed during November 2018), which features bath a working capital facility,
to assist in managing the Group's liquidity risk. and an acguisition facility to support the Group's acquisition strategy. The facility, available
until November 2021 with an option to extend for a further 2 periods of 1 year each, allows for a maximum drawdown of £25m.

Interest is calcuiated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage position, which is re-measured guarterly in line with
covenant testing. The Group's borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. The principal financial covenants under the
facility are that the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA (see note 1(b) for explanation and reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA) shall not
exceed 2.5:1 and the ratic of EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1. At 31 December 2019 and throughout 2019 all these
covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially all the Group’s net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The majority of revenue and profits is generated in the United
Kingdom and conseqguently foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group continues to monitor its exposure to currency risk, particularly as
the business expands into overseas territories such as North America, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be
sensitive tc movements in currency rates.

29 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments

Due to the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the Group’s future lease commitments are recognised as lease liabilities and ROU assets.
The moverment from the commitments of £7.3m at 31 December 2018 to the recognition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets are detailed
in note 20.

i 2018

FOTVT TS (AT TS RV T URTR I £ L U B0 U EDVS IS 14 TR FER TSR B N £m
Within one year - 2.5
Later than one year and less than five years - 4.8
7.3

At 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings.
These arrangements were excluded from the requirements of IFRS 16 under the short-term lease exemption (see note 20 for further details).
All sub-leasing arrangements ceased during the year.

KAR RN 2018
et e ik s e a0 L e £m
Within cne year - 0.5
Later than one year and less than five years - -

0.5

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments.

30 Pension schemes

The Group contriputes 1o individual and collective money purchase pension schemes in respect of Directors and employees once they have
completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the year in respect of these defined contribution schemes is shown in note 5.
Included within other payables is an amount of £0.1m {2018: £0.1m) payable in respect of the money purchase pension schemes.

31 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no cagital commitments. At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments totalling £0.1m
in relation to fit-out costs for the new WeWork property lease.
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32 Related party transactions

Group
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 5. There were no other material related party transactions for the Group in the current
or prior year.

Company
During the year, interest was recharged from subsidiary companies as follows:
2018
7 ] B 7 B . £m
Interest payable v 1.3

There were no borrowings at the year end.
The balances outstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 17 and 19.
There were no other material related party transactions for the Company in the current or prior year.

Audit exemption
For the year endad 31 December 2019 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant t¢ sections 479A-C of Companies Act 2006 over
the liabilities of the following subsidiaries and, as such, they are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual
financial statements, or preparation of individual financial statements, as appropriate, for this financial year.
rat stk
Torenany LT

L [

01595235 42.8

Centaur Communications Limited

Centaur Newce 2018 Limited 11725322 -
Chiron Communications Limited 01081808 B7.5
Econsultancy.com Limited 04047149 29
Mayfield Publishing Limited 02034820 0.4
Pro-Talk Limited 03838119 0.3
Taxbriefs Holdings Limited 03572089 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247331 0.7
Thelawyer.com Limited 11491880 3.0
Xeirm Limited 05243851 11.3
Your Business Magazine Limited 01707331 0.3

See note 13 for changes tc subsidiary holdings during the year,
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited will have its statutory audit for the year ended 31 December 2019 petformed by PwC.

33 Post balance date events
No material events have occurred after the reporting date.
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* FIVE YEAR RECORD (UNAUDITED)

Restated”

2015 2016" 2017 2018

Revenue (£m) 69.9 719 64.7 50.3
Operating loss (Em) 4.7) 3.9 0.3} 20.3)
Adjusted operating profit / (loss) (£m) 10.5 9.1 4.1 2.2
Adjusted operating profit / (loss) margin 15% 13% 6% (4%)
L.oss before tax {EZm) 5.6) {4.4) 0.7 (20.5)
Adjusted profit / (loss) before tax (€m) 0.8 8.6 3.7 2.4)
Adjusted diluted EPS (pence) 53 4.5 1.8 (1.4}
Ordinary dividend per share (pence) 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Net operating cash flow {£m) 4.7 14.0 121 5.6
Average permanent headcount (FTE) 564 554 589 758
Revenue per head (£'000) 125 13 110 66

*See note 1 (a) for description of prior year restatement

Restated”

2015* 2016* 2017 2018

£m £m £m £m

Premium Content 20.2 209 19.1 14.4
Marketing Services - - 1.9 4.5
Training and Advisory 3.1 5.1 8.0 8.0
Events 241 25.7 18.7 6.5
Marketing and Advertising Solutions 225 20.2 12.8 7.3
Telemarketing Services - - 4.2 9.6
69.9 71.9 64.7 50.3

Restated”

2015* 2016* 2017* 2018

£m £m £m £m

Goodwill and other intangble assets 06.4 88.8 94.2 781
Other assets and liabilities 2.1} (7.8} {13.4) {11.5)
Net assets before net debt 94.3 81.2 80.8 66.65
Net {debt) / cash (17.9} (14.1) 4.1 0.1
Total eguity 76.4 67.1 84.9 66.7

© 2015 - 2017 have not been restated with regards to discontinued operations relating to the disposals completed during 2019. 2018 has
been restated for discontinued operations in line with the comparatives disclosed in these financial staterments.
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“ DIRECTORS, ADVISERS AND
OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION
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04948078
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Carol Hosey {appointed 5 February 2020)

Leslie-Ann Reed (appointed 1 March 2020)

Company Secretary
Helen Silver

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1 Embankmeant Place

Lendon
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Share Registrars Limited
The Courtyard

17 West Street

Farnham

Surrey

GU9 7DR

External Lawyers
Dechert LLP

160 Queen Victoria Street
London
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